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THE EMBLEM OF THE UNIVERSITY

The emblem of the University takes the form of a circle with three concentric circles placed close together
on the periphery, all on a background of yellow. In the center of this circle is a smaller concentric circle
enclosing a full bloom lotus, Nelumbo nucifera, in abstract form, and consisting of two tiers of petals one
underneath the other. In the center of the circle, stylized stamens enclosed in two concentric circles
surround the receptacle. Between the outer set of concentric circles and the central lotus is a wide circular
band carrying the motto of the University on the upper half of the band, while the name of the University
appears in the lower half, both written in Sinhala characters. The Motto, taken from an ancient Buddhist

text, reads;
‘Vijja Uppatatam Settha’

(‘among all that rise knowledge is greatest’)

VISION STATEMENT

Prosper lives through Education

THE MISSION OF THE UNIVERSITY

Develop globally competent citizens through our tradition of education for a sustainable future, drawing

inspiration from cultural heritage and wisdom
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The year 2019 was a milestone in the long journey of the University of Sri Jayewardenepura as the university was
able to celebrate Sixty-years since its glorious inception. The university in celebrating its sixty-year journey also
paid tribute to its 145-year legacy.

The composition of the University during the year 2019 is as follows: The University of Sri Jayewardenepura
comprises of eight faculties (8) of education: the Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences (FHSS), Faculty of
Applied Sciences (FAS), Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce (FMSC), Faculty of Medical Sciences
(FMS), the Faculty of Graduate Studies (FGS), Faculty of Technology (FoT) and the Faculty of Engineering (FoE)
and the Faculty of Allied Health Sciences (FAHS). Measures have been taken so as to establish a Faculty of Urban
Agriculture and Aquatic Resource centre by the beginning of the second quarter of the year 2020.

Furthermore, the University also consists of one Postgraduate institution; the Postgraduate Institute of
Management (PIM), located in Colombo 08. The institute today has expanded into Global Markets such as Dubai
(UAE), Doha (Qatar), Muscat (Oman) and Kuwait City (Kuwait) and Bangladesh.

The beginning of the year was indeed rewarding as the Vice-Chancellor of the University was nominated as the
Chairman of the Committee of Vice-Chancellors and Directors (CVCD), thereby making the University of Sri
Jayewardenepura a hot-bed for action that concerns the development of the Higher Education system in the
country. The role of the Vice-Chancellor as the Chairman in the CVCD was further rewarded when he was
appointed as a member representing the Constituency II of the Association of Commonwealth Universities,
where he was responsible as one of the members representing the Universities of South East Asia.

While the university was gaining recognition nationally and internationally, the university was also developing
in terms of infrastructure, and academic developments. The Faculty of Allied health Sciences was officially
initiated in January 2019. Several refurbishment projects saw its completion in the first quarter of the year.

The year can be considered a revolutionary year where a number of innovative introductions were made. Many
of these projects were exhibited to the public during the Innovate Sri Lanka 2019 Exhibition, Vice-Chancellor
provided the public with an outlook of the capabilities of students, their talents etc.

During the first quarter of the year, 2019 many celebrations were held in celebration of the legacy of the University
of Sri Jayewardenepura. The event was officially marked by the almsgiving and Pirith Chanting ceremony that
took place on the 17" and 18" of February 2019.

The almsgiving held on the 18" of February 2019 was graced by 145 monks marking the 145-year-old legacy
dating back to the inception of the Vidyodaya Pirivena which was the foundation for the success of the University
of Sri Jayewardenepura.

Blood donation camps, international symposia, open learning programmes, medical camps and evenings of
music were part and parcel of the celebration. The main highlight of the 60" Anniversary celebration was Innovate
2019 exhibition and the Sandeshawili Kavinaluwa.
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The second quarter of the year was marred by tragedy that befell the Nation. The Easter Sunday Attacks that took
place towards the latter part of April crippled the University system. While student activities were paused further
after New Year vacation, the academic, non-academic and administration staff of the university worked tirelessly
to restore normalcy.

The third quarter of the University academic year was equally challenging as Administrative and Non-Academic
Staff launched a Trade Union Action with regard to an issue in salary uniformity. The University activities were
crippled, however, the staffagreed that the students should not suffer in the process. Thereby, the 45™ convocation
of the University of Sri Jayewardenepura took place in a smooth manner.

In the year under review, the student intake of the University in all faculties have increased significantly in
comparison to the year 2018, the total amounting to 12,982 which is a significant increase in comparison to the
12,608 students recorded in the year 2018. The present values only indicate that of the Internal Graduate intake.

There has also been an increase in the staff recruited in the year under review. While the academic staff of the
university as recorded as of December 2018 stood as 931 which has increased to 946 in the year 2019. Total
permanent staff recorded as 1726 as at December 2018 increased to 1759 as at December 2019.

The University also introduced a new Department, Department of Polymer Science to the FAS and several new
departments for the newly established Faculty of Allied Health Sciences

The University is dedicated to providing its main stakeholders with the best facilities, thereby a number of
departments have been subjected to refurbishment, and the hostel occupancy rate has increased from 4555 in
2017 to 5424 in 2018.

Furthermore, the university in its journey to becoming a self-sustainable university that will provide its mother
nation a wealth of knowledge and human resources has increased its internal revenue to Rs. 6,635,297,907 in
2019, which is a significant increase from Rs. 5,649,251,082 recorded in 2018.

This journey of succession is only afforded by the university due to the commitment of its forefathers Rev.
Hikkaduwe Sri Sumangala Thero and Rev. Welivitiye Sri Soratha Thero, accordingly, the University
commemorated our forefathers in a ceremonious manner in the year under review. The 108th Commemoration
of Ven. Hikkaduwe Sri Sumangala Thero, founder of the University of Sri Jayewardenepura was held on 26th
April 2018 at the University premises and 56th Commemoration Ceremony of Rev. Weliwitiye Sri Soratha Thero
was held on the 25" of July 2019.

Senior Prof. Sampath Amaratunge
Vice-Chancellor
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The University of Sri Jayewardenepura situated in the heart of Colombo boasts of along and glorious
history. Having been established in the 1959 at Gangodawila, its roots can be traced back to the
Vidyodaya Pirivena established in 1873 by Hikkaduwe Sri Sumangala Thero at Maligakanda. Today

the University pays homage to 60 years of history while paying tribute to journey of 145 years.

The University of Sri Jayewardenepura formerly known as Vidyodaya Pirivena was the essence of the
revival of Sri Lankan Education. It is the second oldest University in Sri Lanka and the first University
established in Independent Ceylon.

Today the University stands strong with eight faculties, faculty of Humanities and Social
Sciences, Faculty of Applied Sciences, Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce, Faculty of
Medical Sciences, Faculty of Graduate Studies, Faculty of Engineering, Faculty of Technology and its
latest addition Faculty of Allied Health Sciences. The University is home to over 12,000
Undergraduates, over 1000 postgraduate students. It is considered the largest University in terms of
Student Population in Sri Lanka.

The University is also in the forefront of research and innovation with a research council of over 22
research centres and anInvention, Innovation and Venture Creation Council with over 50
Entrepreneurs and stakeholders with over 15 patents.

The University has also maintained cordial relationship with many international bodies of education
and have signed over 60 MoUs with recognized internationally acclaimed universities; and over 60
MoUs with established international and local companies, the university strives to give its students
an international experience, offering student exchange programmes and internships.

Throughout the years the University of Sri Jayewardenepura has managed to develop in many areas
expanding its horizons and will continue this journey reaching many milestones that will no doubt
ensure that the University will produce smart, efficient, skillful and professional individuals that will
aid in the development of our mother nation.
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Humanities and Social Sciences 14 | 25 2939 835
Applied Sciences 11 12 2264 544
Management Studies and Commerce 12 12 4867 1205
Medical Sciences 17 6 1077 240
Faculty of Technology 03 03 961 -
Faculty of Engineering 05 01 478 -
Faculty of Graduate Studies - 2251 413
External Examination 14 6 98852 (registered full total 1934
+05 3639 registered for 2019)

FHSS Pali, Buddhist Philosophe, Buddhist Civilization o - - - 03 -
2]
EMS MBBS £ - 2¢ 1 1*
* The faculty does not earn an income from these students
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Information relating to the commencement and termination of 2018/2019 academic year batch are as follows.

Faculty of Humanities and Social

Faculty of Allied Health Sciences

MLS - 21.01.2020

. 913 13.03.2020 31.01.2021
Sciences
Faculty of Applied Science 779 13.01.2020 01.01.2021
Faculty of Management Studies

1214 04.12.2019 18.10.2020
and Commerce
Faculty of Engineering 120 05.02.2020 09.05.2021
Faculty of Technology 315 Not yet start registering
Faculty of Medical Sciences 161 MBBS -07.11.2019
exact date cannot be given as
Nursing, Pharmacy & because practical tests
72 '

1215

150 :

321 :

2015/2016 837 628 121 3272
2016/2017 877 698 1213 231 120 321 3460
2017/2018 942 743 1223 235 121 318 3582
2018/2019 913 779 1214 233 120 315 3574
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FHSS 60 437 209 129 835
FAS 44 183 109 208 544
FMSC 173 329 265 438 1205
FMS 9 43 62 56 170
FAHS 5 17 27 21 70
500
450
400
350
300
250
200
150
100 I I
0 l . -~ . . — mm
FHSS FAS FMSC FMS FAH
M First Class M Second Upper M Second Lower M Pass
FHSS - Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences
FAS - Faculty of Applied Sciences
FMSC - Faculty of management Studies and Commerce
FMS - Faculty of Medical Sciences
FAHS - Faculty of Allied Health Health Sciences
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H iti ial

umanities & Socia 65.2% 26.4% 8.4% 100.0%
Sciences
Applied Sciences 18.0% 80.0% 2.0% 100.0%
Management Studies & 15.1% 82.9% 2.0% 100.0%
Commerce
Medical Science 4.2% 94.1% 1.7% 100.0%

Note:

(1) Above figures are based on the Employability Survey conducted at the time of the 2019 convocation.

(2) Category ‘Other’ includes graduates who are involved in higher studies and the graduates who are
not seeking any jobs

Employment Status by Faculty

100%
80%
60%
40%
20%

0%
Humanities & Applied Sciences Management Medical Science
Social Sciences Studies &
Commerce

B Unemployed ® Employed H Other
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List of students who received Mahapola Scholarships in 2019 under different faculties are shown below. Rs.5050/-
is paid for Merit Scholarships and

Rs. 5000/- for Ordinary Scholarships.

University contribution amounting to Rs. 2450/- are shown as below.

Academic Faculty
Year Humanities | Applied | Management | Medical | Engineering | Technology | Amount Spent
& Social Sciences Science for the Months
Sciences (Rs)
2012/2013 - - - 67 - - 1,457,750.00
2013/2014 - - - 65 - - 3,699,500.00
2014/2015 514 117 884 118 - - 35,071,750.00
2015/2016 503 182 838 89 37 208 41,867,760.00
2016/2017 534 236 844 105 51 219 44,901,150.00
2017/2018 619 287 940 106 52 245 49,004,200.00
Total 2170 822 3506 550 140 672 176,002,110.00

Payment of Bursaries during the year is shown below ( by Academic Year and Faculties ) 2019

Humanities
& Social Mgt. & Enginee . Techn
Academic year Sciences Commerce : Medical | ring ology Applied Annual Expenditure
2012/2013 2 39,500.00
2013/2014 4 812,100.00
2014/2015 91 73 21 48 8,062,100.00
2015/2016 209 110 26 11 22 122 16,101,300.00
2016/2017 181 95 29 7 26 118 16,251,100.00
2017/2018 155 37 18 8 12 120 9,060,000.00
Total 636 315 100 26 60 408 50,326,100.00
Advance 760 41 50 209 355 19,724,000.00
Payments2017/2018 e
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Provision of hostels for University students and details of accommodation provided for are as follows:

Humanities and Social Sciences 2272 322 2594
Applied Sciences 193 110 303
Management Studies & Commerce 1229 343 1572
Medical Sciences 275 224 499
Technology 188 357 545
Engineering 48 167 215
Total 4205 1523 5728

1734 993 165 78 - - 2970

Hostel maintained by the University or rented and the number of students occupying the hostel are as follows.

860 579 18 421 545 a5 Y%
Total numbers of occupying the hostel = 5728
Total Numbers of Students =~ 13000

IR

Percentage of occupying the hostel 5728 x 100 %
=13000

44%

IR
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Employee Classification (As at 31st December 2019)

Service Category Salary Code |Approved Cadre | Actual Cadre | Vacancies
1. Primary Level
Primary Grade - Unskilled U-PL1 325
Primary Grade - Semi Skilled U-PL2 576 85 48
Primary Grade - Skilled U-PL3 118
2 Secondary Level
Management Assistant - non - Technical U-MN1 282
Management Assistant - Technical U-MT 1 110
Associate Officers - Segment 2 U-MN 2 594 7 80
Associate Officers - Segment 1 U-MN3 19
Staff Assistant/ Supra & Senior Staff Assistant U-MN 4 96
3 Tertiary Level
Temporary Tutor/Demonstrator/ Instructor/Asst. .
Lecturer/Research Assistant/Lecturer Fixed 365 272 %3
Academic Support - Segment 2 U-AS1 42 22 20
Junior Executive / Managers U-EX1 31 26 5
Academic Support - Segment 1 U-AS2 38 30 8
4. Senior Level
Medical Officer Uu-MO1 7 4 3
Chief Medical Officer U-MO 2 0 0 0
Middle Level Executives U-EX2 12
25 1
Middle Level Executives U-EX2(a) 12
Senior Executives U-EX3 2 2 0
Lecturer U-AC3
Associate Professors U-AC4 871 687 184
Professors/ Senior Professors U-ACS5
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Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences 12 05
Faculty of Applied Sciences 15 01
Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce 34 06
Faculty of Medical Sciences 04 01
Faculty of Technology - -

Faculty of Engineering - -

Faculty of Allied Health Sciences 03 01
Others 03 01
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Chancellor

Vice Chancellor

Ven. Dr. Eththapana Dhammalankara Maha Nayaka Thero

Snr.Prof.Sampath Amaratunge

DEANS

Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences

Faculty of Applied Science

Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce
Faculty of Medical Sciences

Faculty of Graduate Studies

Faculty of Engineering
Faculty of Technology
Registrar

Bursar

Librarian

Proctor

Deputy Proctor of the Faculties

Humanities and Social Sciences

Applied Sciences

Management Studies & Commerce

University of Sri Jayewardenepura
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Dr. D.P.S. Chandrakumara (upto 30-06-2019)
Prof.S.C.B.Heenkenda (from 01-07-2019)

Prof. S.S.L.W.Liyanage(upto 13-03-2019)
Prof.L.Karunanayake (from 14-03-2019)

Dr. U. Anura Kumara
Snr. Prof. (Mrs.) S.G.Yasawardena

Snr. Prof. (Mrs.) D.M.S.H.K. Ranasinghe
(up to 14.02.2019)

Snr. Prof. M.M. Pathmalal (from 15.02.2019)
Dr. S.A.A.M. Subasinghe(upto 14.07.2019)
Dr. K.M.D. Konthasinghe(from15.07.2019)
Prof. P.B. Mandawala (upto 28.02.2019)
Snr. Prof. S. Liyanage(from 01.03.2019)
Mr.K.G. Britto

Mrs. K.T.C.Priyangani

Dr. (Mrs.) W.D.A.N.D.Wijayasundara
Mr.A.R.P.C.Udayakumara

Ven. Elamaldeniya sarananda Thero

Ms. H.P.I. Nadeeshani
Mr. B.A.S.C. Kumara

Dr. P.R.S.De Silva

Dr. P.K.P. Perera

Dr. P.K.D.D.P.Pitigala

Dr. RR.M.K.P.Ranathunge
Dr. N.M.S.Sirimuthu

Dr. T.S.M.Amarasena

Dr. (Mrs.) U.K. Thalgaspitiya
Dr. (Mrs.) M.G. Tharangani
Mr.P.C. Kaluthanthri

Mr. M.V.S.S. Udayanga
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Medical Sciences

Engineering

Technology

Allied Health Sciences

Mr. C.R. Piris
Dr.P.P.R.Perera

Dr. D.M.R.Dinalankara
Dr. (Mrs.) M.H.H.V.D.Y. Mudunkotuwa

Dr. (Mrs.) C. Patabadige
Dr. (Mrs.) L. Udugoda

Dr. R.D.Gunarathna

Dr. R.Liyanage

Dr. N.S. Kumara

Dr. A AT.D. Amarasinghe
Dr. G.U.S. Wijesekara

The Council

Under paragraph 44 of section VII of the Universities Act No 16 of 1978 as amended by University Amendment
Act No. 7 of 1985, the University Council comprised the following in year 2019;

Ex-officio members

Vice Chancellor (Chairman)
Registrar (Secretary)
Deans
Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences
Faculty of Applied Science
Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce

Faculty of Medical Sciences
Faculty of Graduate Studies

Faculty of Engineering
Faculty of Technology

Senate representatives

Prof. M.M.Pathmalal(27.03.2019)

University of Sri Jayewardenepura
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Senior Prof.Sampath Amaratunge

Mr.K.G. Britto

Dr. D.P.S. Chandrakumara (upto 30-06-2019)
Prof.S.C.B.Heenkenda (from 01-07-2019)
Prof. S.S.L.W.Liyanage(upto 13-03-2019)
Prof.L.Karunanayake (from 14-03-2019)

Dr. U. Anura Kumara

Snr. Prof. (Mrs.) S.G.Yasawardena

Snr. Prof. (Mrs.) D.M.S.H.K. Ranasinghe
(upto 13.02.2019)

Mr. M.M. Pathmalal (from 15.03.2019)

Dr. S.A.A.M. Subasinghe (upto 14.07.2019)
Dr. K.M.D. Konthasinghe (15.07.2019)
Prof. P.B. Mandawala (upto 28.02.2019)
Snr. Prof. S.Liyanage(01.03.2019)
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Prof. H.Dissabandara ( 31.01.2019)
Prof. Muditha Widanapathirana (from 01.2.2019

Dr. P.J.Kumarasinghe (from 28.03.2019)

COUNCIL MEMBERS APPOINTED BY THE UNIVERSITY GRANTS COMMISSION

Rev.Dr.Pallegama Rathanasara Thero

Mr.Edwin Karunasena Ganihigama

Mr.Thisath Dewapriya Bandara Wijayagunawardane
Dr.AM Mubarak

Prof.RL Jayasekara

Mr.Ashoka Hettigoda

Mr.Nishadha Gamage

Prof. AOM De Soyza

o 0 N o ok w N

Prof.Thakshila Serasinghe
10. Mr.G Chamindra de Silva

11. Prof. DTB Tennakoon

Sub Committees of the Council

(i) University Finance and Capital Works Committee
(ii) Leave and Awards Committee
(iii) Audit and Management Committee

(iv) Planning and Development Committee

The Senate
The Senate consisted of the appointed members under paragraph 46 of Universities Act No.16 of 1978.

Sub Committees of the Senate

(i) External Degrees Committee
(ii) Research and Publications Committee

(ii) Computing Committee
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The Council, Senate and other authorities including nominated committees have met as follows during the year
2019

Number of Meetings
Council 11(one special meeting)
Senate 10
Finance and Capital Works Committee 10
Leave and Awards Committee 11
Research Committee 10
External Degrees Committee 07
Planning and Development Committee 06
Audit and Management Committees 04
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ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICERS

Under the direction of the Registrar Mr. K.G. Britto the following officers carried out administrative functions.

Deputy Registrar

Academic, Student Affairs and Publications
Faculty of Technology

Academic Establishments Division

Faculty of Graduate Studies

Exam Division

Student Welfare Division

Senior Assistant Registrar

Faculty of Medical Sciences

External Examinations

Faculty of Management Studies & Commerce
Planning & Capital Works

General Administration and Services

Legal and Documentation

Assistant Registrar

Non Academic Establishments Division
Faculty of Management Studies & Commerce
General Administration and Services
Planning & Capital Works

Humanities and Social Sciences

Information and Services

Faculty of Applied Science

Faculty of Technology

Works Engineer (Civil)

University of Sri Jayewardenepura [15]

Mr. L.L.W. Perera

Miss. A.M. Sriyanganie Mendis (upto 28.02.2019)
Mr. A.B. Welivita

Mr. E.K.N. Dharmaratne

Miss U.D.D.S.Gunasinghe (upto 15.08.2019)

Mrs.K.P.Y.T.Malkanthi

Mrs. H.P. Weheragoda
Mrs. S.N.Palangasinghe
Mrs. H.K.S.D. Geeganage
Mrs. S.D.S. Hiranthi

Mr. M.N.Thalgahagoda
Mr. M.N.Thalgahagoda

Mrs. C.D.R.Peeris

Mrs. C.G. Balasooriya
Mrs. K.I. Malalgoda

Miss. A.D.S. Samadarie
Miss A.D.S.Samadarie
Miss. W.M.S. Maduwanthi
Mrs. W.K.B.P.Lakshanthi
Miss. V.B. De Labrooy
Mrs. D.S.M.Ranasinghe

Mr. O.A.W. Karunaratna
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Administrative officers who served under temporary / contract / assignment basis in year 2019

Project Engineer

Engineer

Engineer (Civil)

Deputy Registrar

Senior Assistant Registrar

Junior Lawyer

University of Sri Jayewardenepura
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Mr.K.Rathnam (On Contract basis)
Mr.AN.Punchihetti (On Contract basis)
Mr.Gamini D Nanayakkara(On Contract basis)
Mr.M.N.Abesinghe(On Contract basis)
Mr.H.P.S.Tissera(on Assignment Basis)
Mr.P.M.Vidanagamage(on Assignment Basis)
Mr.A.A.E.Athukorala(On Contract basis)
Mrs.R.T.M.Ranathunga(Contract basis)
Mr.Leelarathne Kankanamge(On Contract basis)
Mrs.Vishaka Koralage (Assignment Basis)
Mrs.R Gunarathne (Assignment Basis)
Mrs.R.T.M.Ranathunge (On Contract basis)
Mrs.A.L.W.Amarathunga(On Contract basis)
Mrs.P Weerasiri (on contract Basis)

Miss.R.M.S.R.Ramanaya(Assignment Basis)
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FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICERS

Under the direction of the Bursar Mrs. K.T.C.Priyangani the following officers carried out financial administration

functions.

Deputy Bursar
Finance Division

Faculty of Management Studies & Commerce

Deputy Internal Auditor

Senior Assistant Bursar
Finance Division (Payments)

Supplies Division

Faculty of Management Studies & Commerce
Faculty of Medical Sciences

External Degree & Extension Coursed Unit (Finance)
Faculty of Technology

Assistant Bursar

Faculty Humanities and Social Sciences

Faculty of Applied Sciences

Faculty of Graduate Studies

Faculty of Engineering
Finance Division

Finance officers who ser nder temporar ntr

Supplies Division

Deputy Bursar

University of Sri Jayewardenepura [17]

Mrs. J.T.L.Dharmasena
Mrs. M.A.P.P.Chandradasa

Mr. W.M.K.N. Bandara

Miss. M.N. Suraweera

Mrs. K.K.M.S.D.K. Galkaduwa (Sabbatical Leave)

Mr. K.J.M. Nandana
Miss. A.A.K.N. Ranasinghe
Mrs. S. Walpola

Mr. KH.U.D.W. Kumara

Mrs. G.W.L. Priyanthika

Mrs. M.D.D.U.Disanayake
Ms. M.G.Kumbukage
Miss H.M.S.H.Sandarenu
Miss. K.H.A.D. De Silva

ignmen isin r201

Mr.T.P.Liyanaarachchi
(Placement on Sabbatical Leave)

Mr.H.A.Dharmasena(Assignment Basis)

S.M.Withana Arachchi
(Placement on Sabbatical Leave)
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Meaning of terms
PIM - Postgraduate Institute of Management

FHSS -Faculty of Humanities & Social Sciences
FAS - Faculty of Applied Sciences

EMSC -Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce
FMS -Faculty of Medical Sciences

FGS -Faculty of Graduate Studies

FT -Faculty of Technology

FE -Faculty of Engineering
FAHS-Faculty of Allied Health Sciences
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DR - Deputy Registrar

SAR -Senior Assistant Registrar
AR - Assistant Registrar

DB -Deputy Bursar

SAB -Senior Assistant Bursar
SAL -Senior Assistant Liberian
AL -Assistant Librarian

M/F - Male/Female
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The University consists of the following eight faculties.

1. Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences (FHSS)

2. Faculty of Applied Science (FAS)

3. Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce(FMSC)
Faculty of Medical Sciences (FMS)
Faculty of Graduate Studies (FGS)

A

Faculty of Technology (FT)
Faculty of Engineering (FE)
8. Faculty of Allied Health Science (FAHS)

The Faculty of Arts was established with the commencement of the Vidyodaya University on 1st January 1959 at
the Vidyodaya Pirivena at Malligakanda. Later the faculty was shifted to the present premises at Gangodawila.

By this time, the Faculty of Arts was re-constituted as the Faculty of Humanities & Social Sciences.

The Faculty of Humanities & Social Sciences is committed to the development of the community and the nation at
large through the dissemination and enhancement of knowledge enriched with the country's cultural heritage.

Around 900 students are admitted annually and academic activities are conducted in 25 subjects leading to B.A.
Degree and B.A. Honours Degrees. The faculty consists of fourteen academic departments .

Department Head of Department

1. Department of Sinhala and Mass Communication Dr. (Mrs.) Kusumalatha Lankamullage-
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(from 15.10.2019)
Rev.(Prof.) Madagampitiye Wijithadhamma (upto

14.10.2019)

2. Department of History and Archaeology Prof. K. M.Alexander

3. Department of Geography Prof. R.M.K. Rathnayake

4. Department of Sociology Senior Prof. M.T.Samarakoon

Department of d Anthropology Prof. (Mrs.) H.D.Y.D.Jayathilake
6. Department of Languages, Cultural studies Dr. W.B.A.Witharana
and Performing Arts }

7. Department of Economics Dr.(Mrs.) B.W.R.Damayanthi
(from 01.07.2019)
Prof. S.C.B. Heenkenda  (26.03.2019-30.06.2019)
Prof. K.G.G.Weerasinghe
(upto 25.03.2019)

8. Department of Social Statistics Mrs. D.P.K. Manel

9. Department of English Dr. (Mrs.) R.M.C.Jayathilake

10. Department of Pali and Buddhist studies Prof.M.D.D. I.Gunathilake ( from 01.06.2019)
Rev.(Prof.) Madagampitiye Wijithadhamma
(upto 31.05.2019)

11. Department of Philosophy & Phycology Senior Prof. W.A.G.Perera

12. Department of Political Science Mr. P.L.T.Purasinghe

13. Department of Criminology and Criminal Justice Dr. R.N.Sunil (From 10.06.2019)
Mrs. M.P.A.A.Buddhadasa (upto 09.06.2019)

14. Department of English Language Teaching Mr.P.B.S.L.Pushpakumara

Degrees 01.
02.
03.
04.
05.
06.
07.
08.

09.

B.A. Degree

B.A. Honours Degree in Archaeology

B.A. Honours Degree in History

B.A. Honours Degree in Buddhist Civilization

B.A. Honours Degree in Buddhist Philosophy

B.A. Honours Degree in Philosophy and Psychology
B.A. Honours Degree in Pali

B.A. Honours Degree in Hindi

B.A. Honours Degree in Sanskrit
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10. B.A. Honours Degree in Music & Cultural Studies

11. B.A. Honours Degree in Dance & Cultural Studies
12. B.A. Honours Degree in Economics

13. B.A. Honours Degree in Sociology

14. B.A. Honours Degree in Criminology

15. B.A. Honours Degree in Anthropology

16. B.A. Honours Degree in Sinhala

17. B.A. Honours Degree in Mass Communication

18. B.A. Honours Degree in Political Science

19. B.A. Honours Degree in English Language

20. B.A. Honours Degree in Social Statistics

21. B.A. Honours Degree in Business Statistics

22. B.A. Honours Degree in Geography

23. B.A. Honours Degree in Teaching English as a second language
24. Bachelor of Information Technology Honours Degree

25. B.Sc. Honours Degree in Information Technology

Postgraduate Diploma Courses

ol. Postgraduate Diploma in Writership and Communication
02. Postgraduate Diploma in Sociology.
03. Postgraduate Diploma in Criminology
04. Postgraduate Diploma in Drama & Theatre
Diploma Courses
o1. Diploma in Writership and Communication
02. Diploma in Criminology
03. Diploma in Rural Development
04. Diploma in Geographical Information System(GIS) & Remote Sensing
05. Diploma in Buddhist Studies
06. Diploma in International Relations

07. Diploma in English

08. Diploma in Sociology
09. Diploma in Development Policy Analysis
10. Diploma in History
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Certificate Courses:

01. Certificate Course in English

B.A (General) Normal
01 25 51 60 137
B.A (Special) Normal
58 405 151 53 667
B.A (General) Repeat
- - 02 08 10
B.A (Special) Repeat
01 02 01 06 10
BSc IT(Special)
- 05 04 02 11
B.A.(General/Special)+ BSc IT(Special) Total 60 437 209 129 835

Review of the results released Degree of the Faculty of Humanities & Social Sciences

B.A(Special
(Special) 61 58 410 405 144 151 63 53 678 667
B.A.(General)

02 02 37 25 56 51 27 60 122 137
B.A (General) o
Repeat - - - - - 02 09 0 09 10
B.A (Special)
Repeat - 01 01 02 o1 01 05 06 07 10
Total 63 61 448 437 201 209 104 129 816 835
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Sinhala and Mass
L. 65 31 51 15 06 02

communication
History and Archaeology 59 62 60 11 03 02
Geography 77 65 55 12 02 05
Sociology 57 36 52 03 02 02
Anthropology 37 12 54 06 03 03
Criminology 48 39 41 09 02 02
Language, Cultural 913 | 396
Studies and Performing 50 38 39 16 06 02
Arts
Economics 12 53 54 10 03 03
Social Statistics 51 42 42 10 03 02
Pali and Buddhist

. 65 108 89 12 06 02
Studies
Philosophy & Psychology 73 61 78 05 03 02
Political Science 55 65 38 08 01 02
English & Linguistics 13 28 20 08 01 02
English Teaching - - - 08 06 02
B.SCIT 08 20 23 - - 02
Total 670 660 696 133 47 32

General 913 178 218 147
Special Anthropology 37 12 54 24 26
<
Archaeology %en j; 25 22 27 34
Buddhist Civilization &5 13 59 64 35 51
Buddhist Philosophy j‘: 39 34 20 14 10
Business Statistics = 48 34 26 28 14
L w
Criminology 14 39 41 34 26
Dancing 12 09 13 14 15
Economics 77 53 54 52 50
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Geography 12 65 55 67 67
Hindi 38 08 08 08 8

History fZ 37 38 53 55
Mass Com. 09 13 17 35 25
Music 73 16 17 11 10
Pali 55 15 05 07 6

Philosophy & Psychology 14 61 78 114 129
Political Science 2? 65 38 42 31
Sanskrit 10 05 01 06 5

Sinhala 12 18 34 28 30
Sociology 08 36 52 49 54
English 03 08 16 8 11
Social Statistics 08 16 14 15
B.Sc. IT 20 23 11 22
Teaching English as a 2 % o7 13
second Language

Total 913 660 696 688 838

Sinhala & Mass Communication 1 1 1 8 3 ) 1 6 21 1
History & Archaeology -4 13 ) 2 1 3 14 N
Geography -1 1 4 2 1 3 2 14 -
Sociology 1 1 - 1 B, - . 2 05 1
Anthropology p I -4 - - - 3 09 -
Criminology ;éo - 1 1 4 1 - 2 2 11 -
Languages, Cultural Studies & g N 4 . 5 6 - 1
Performing Arts E

Economics C,S, 1 3 - 2 2 1 1 3 13 1
Social Statistics - - -4 2 1 3 3 13 -
English & Linguistics _ } } 7 1 } _ 1 09 _
English Language Teaching B - - B 3 2 3 6 14 B
Pali & Buddhist Studies 1 5 - 3 3 - - 6 18 1
Philosophy & Phychology 1 1 - 1 1 - 1 3 08 1
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Political Science

09

Total

20

05

48

28

08

18

47

180

Deans Office

01 02 09 05 17
Sinhala & Mass Communication ) B 01 01 02
History & Archaeology - 01 - 01 02
Geography - - 02 03 05
Sociology - - 01 01 02
Anthropology - - 01 02 03
Languages, Cultural Studies & Performing ) i o1 o1 02
Arts
Economics 01 - - 02 03
Social Statistics - - 01 01 02
English & Linguistics - - 01 01 02
Pali & Buddhist Studies - - 01 01 02
Philosophy & Psychology - - 01 01 01
Criminology - - 01 01 02
English Language Teaching - - 01 01 02
Political Science B B} o1 o1 02
Computer Labs : _ 01 03 04
Total 02 03 23 26 54

a. No of Researches 28 14
b.No of Innovations 1 1
c. No of Journals 42 2
d. No of Books 59 7
e. No of Articles 70 20
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f. Other (Abstracts, Conference

Proceedings, Poster 71 26
Presentation)
Total 271 70

a. No of Postgraduate Degree

Programme > 7
b. No of Postgraduate Diploma
Programme 2 '
c.  No of Degree Programme 124 7
d. No of Diploma Programme 97 4
e. No of Certificate Programme 5 1 1
Total 287 20 1

Local Awards

7 1
National Awards 3 3
International Awards
5 4
Other (Special Awards,
10 1 20
prizes and Gold medals)
Total
25 9 20
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of Applied Sciences
Sri Jayewardenepura
to excellence in
search and in enriching
s in many facets of life.

Faculty of Applied Sciences of the university which was established in 1962 is one of the oldest among the Faculties
of Science in Sri Lanka. Since inception it has grown much in intellectual capacity, teaching and research facilities,
span of curricula and student numbers. At present it houses 11 academic departments with nearly 150 academic
staff members, over 2300 undergraduate students and close to 200 postgraduate students.

The Faculty has been in the forefront of pursuing several challenging and pioneering developments in the science
education in Sri Lankan universities, including teaching in science in Sinhala, emphasizing applied aspects of
science such as fisheries biology, food science & technology, polymer science & technology, forestry and

environmental science, computer science , statistics and management in the B.Sc. curricula.

Faculty of Applied Sciences consists of eleven (11) Academic Departments as follows.

Dean - Senior Professor Sudantha Liyanage
Department Head of Department

1.  Department of Botany Prof.(Mrs.) P.K.N. Dassanayake

2. Department of Chemistry Prof. Nilwala Kottegoda

3.  Department of Computer Science Mr. D.D.A. Gamini

4.  Department of Food Science and Technology Prof. R.A.U.]. Marapana

5.  Department of Forestry and

Environmental Science Prof. S.M.C.U.P. Subasinghe

6.  Department of Mathematics Mr. KK.W.A.S. Kumara

7.  Department of Physics Prof. A.R. Kumarasinghe

8.  Department of Statistics Dr. W.N.N.K. Perera

9.  Department of Zoology Prof. (Mrs.) W.A.D. Mahaulpotha

10. Department of Sport Science Dr. N.M.S. Sirimuthu
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11. Department of Polymer Science Dr. (Mrs.) KM.T.D. Gunesekera

Degrees
ol. B.Sc. General Degree
02. B.Sc. General Degree in Information Communication & Technology
03. B.Sc. (Honors) Degree in Food Science and Technology
04. B.Sc. (Honors) Degree in Chemistry
05. B.Sc. (Honors) Degree in Polymer Chemistry
06. B.Sc. (Honors) Degree in Industrial Chemistry
07. B.Sc. (Honors) Degree in Biology
08. B.Sc. (Honors) Degree in Plant Biotechnology

09. B.Sc. (Honors) Degree in Plant Biology
10. B.Sc. (Honors) Degree in Microbiology

11. B.Sc. (Honors) Degree in Aquatic Resource Management

12. B.Sc. (Honors) Degree in Zoology

13. B.Sc. (Honors) Degree in Environmental Management & Forestry
14. B.Sc. (Honors) Degree in Mathematics

15. B.Sc. (Honors) Degree in Computer Science

16. B.Sc. (Honors) Degree in Physics

17. B.Sc. (Honors) Degree in Statistics

18. B.Sc. (Honors) Degree in Sport Science & Management

19. B.Sc. (Honors) Degree in Applied Science

Postgraduate Courses

1. M.Sc. in Polymer Science & Technology
2. PGD in Industrial Mathematics

3. M.Sc. in Industrial Mathematics

4. PGD in Applied Statistics

5. M.Sc. in Applied Statistics

6. PGD in Programme & Computer Science
7. M.Sc. in Programme & Computer Science
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8. PGD/ M.Sc. in Industrial Analytical Chemistry

9. M.Sc. in Fisheries and Aquatic Resource Management
10. M.Sc. in Food Science & Technology

11. M.Sc. in Forestry and Environmental Management
12.

M.Sc. in Science and Technology of Herbal Products

B.Sc. (Honors) Aquatic Science - 05 - - 05
B.Sc.(Honors) Chemistry 05 19 02 01 27
B.Sc.( Honors) Computer Science 01 07 03 - 11
B.Sc.( Honors) Food Science and Tech. 18 14 07 05 44
B.Sc.( Honors) Environmental Mgt. & Forestry 01 15 - - 16
B.Sc.( Honors) Mathematics 02 08 01 - 11
B.Sc.(Honors) Physics 02 11 01 - 14
B.Sc.( Honors) Statistics 03 07 01 - 11
B.Sc.(Honors) Zoology 01 06 - - 07
B.Sc.( Honors) Microbiology 02 05 - - 07
B.Sc.( Honors) Plant Biotechnology 02 02 - - 04
B.Sc. ( Honors) Sport Science and Management 03 18 11 11 43
B.Sc. (Honors) Degree in Polymer Chemistry - 07 01 - 08
B.Sc. (Honors) Degree in Industrial Chemistry 01 04 - - 05
B.Sc.(Honors) Degree in Applied Sciences 03 >0 2 02 97
Total - B.Sc.( Honors) 44 178 69 19 310
Total - B.Sc.(General) i 05 40 189 234
Total 44 183 109 208 544
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B.Sc. (Honors) Aquatic Science | 01 - 05 05 - - - - 06 05
B.Sc. (Honors) Biology - - - - - - - - - -
B.Sc. ((Honors) Chemistry 09 05 19 19 02 02 - 01 30 27
B.Sc. (Honors) Computer 03 01 04 07 _ 03 01 _ 08 11
Science
B.Sc. (Honors) Food Science
14 18 24 14 06 07 06 05 50 44
and Technology
B.Sc. (Honors) Environmental
01 01 10 15 01 - - - 12 16
Mgt. & Forestry
B.Sc. (Honors) Mathematics 05 02 06 08 - 01 - - 11 11
B.Sc. (Honors) Physics 01 02 08 11 02 01 01 - 12 14
B.Sc. (Honors) Plant
. 01 02 05 02 - - - - 06 04
Biotechnology
B.Sc. (Honors) Statistics 04 03 06 07 01 01 01 - 12 11
B.Sc. (Honors) Zoology 02 01 10 06 - - - - 12 07
B.Sc. (Honors) Microbiology 05 02 01 05 - - - - 06 07
B.Sc. (Honors) Plant Biology - - - - - - - - - -
B.Sc. (Honors) Sport Science
03 03 06 18 09 11 19 11 37 43
and Management
B.Sc. (H D i
Sc. (Honors) . egree in i _ i o7 ) o1 i i i 08
Polymer Chemistry
B.Sc. (Honors) Degree in o1 o4 05
Industrial Chemistry
B.Sc.(Honors) Degree in
N 01 03 57 50 46 42 05 02 109 @ 97
Applied Sciences
Total - B.Sc.( Honors) 50 44 161 178 67 69 33 19 | 311 310
B.Sc. (General) - - 08 05 37 40 234 189 | 279 @ 234
Total 50 44 169 183 104 109 . 267 208 590 544
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Biological Science 694 —
Physical Science 712
Food Science and Technology 185
Sport Science & Management 181 = —
149 99

Information Communication

147
Technology
Other special courses 259
B.Sc.(Honors) Degree 86
Total 2264 _ _
Biology (General) 290 283 269 142
Physical Science (General) 290 278 262 172
Food Science and Technology 60 54 47 44 40
Sport Science & Management - 60 55 42 42 42

2
Other special courses E; 136 123
m

Information Communication Technology 70 68 48 31
B.Sc.(Honors) Degree 36
Total 770 738 668 567 291
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Office of the ) } B o1 04 . - 02 02 04 - 13
Dean
Chemistry 03 |03 - 04 09 - 04 - - 18 01 42
Statistics - 01 - 03 05 02 - 01 - 04 - 16
Computer 02 0

- - 3 03 01 - 03 02 07 - 21
Science
Botany 03 01 - 01 05 01 01 - - 10 - 22
Physics = - 02 - 06 04 03 - - - 14 - 129

b

Zoology g 03 02 - 02 04 - 02 02 - 11 - 126
Mathematics - 01 - 05 04 02 02 - 02 16 - 32
Forestry and 02 04 - o1 04 01 01 01 @ - 06* - 20
Env. Sci.
Food Sci. & 01 04 - o1 04 - - 02 - 05 02 19
Technology
Sports Science ) ) ) ) 01 01 02 05 03 02 ) 14
& Management
Polymer - - - o1 02 - o1 - - 03 - o7
Science
Total 12 20 - 28 49 11 13 16 09 100 03 261
108 PhD Holder Academics in Faculty of Applied Science

* 1 temporary associate lecturer.

Faculty of Applied Science 06 05 35 53 99
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a. No of Researches 152 35
b. No of Innovations 13 03
c. No of Journals 120 01
Journal Article (Full Papers) 55

d. No of Books 11 -
e. No of Articles 28 -
f.  Other 71 16
Abstracts 130 18
Book Chapters 15 -
Research Papers 08 )
Workshops ot 03
Total 602 88

a. No of Postgraduate Degree 41 15 03
Programmes
b. No of Postgraduate Diploma 01 01 -
Programmes
c. No of Degree Programmes 03 04 02
d. No of Diploma Programmes - 01 -
e. No of Certificate programmes - 01 01
f.  other 25 09 -
Total 70 31 06

Local Awards 58 26 19
International Awards 09 07 19
Other (Special Awards, prizes and Gold 09 03 05
medals)

Total 76 36 43

No any new courses started in year 2019

University of Sri Jayewardenepura
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The Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce is the pioneering management faculty in Sri Lankan
university system which is regarded as the Centre of Excellence in Management Education in Sri Lanka.
Management education at University of Sri Jayewardenepura also has a history of more than 60 years.

The first programmes of study were commenced in 1959/60 with the introduction of two undergraduate
degree programmes in Business Administration and Public Administration under the Department of
Economics, Business and Public Administration of Faculty of Arts. In 1968 the Department was
reconstituted as the Department of Management Studies under Faculty of Arts. Under the reorganization
of the university system, the Department of Management Studies was elevated to Faculty status and the
Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce (FMSC) was established with two Departments, namely,
the Department of Management Studies and the Department of Commerce in 1972.

Having been strengthened by twelve academic departments at present the Faculty offers globally
competitive degree programmes in the broad areas of Management and Commerce. Indeed, for the last
four decades, the Faculty has been the most popular faculty, particularly among the students who have
excelled in Advanced Level in the Commerce Stream. Yet, the Faculty’s role in Sri Lankan higher
education sector is not restricted to the undergraduate education. The Faculty is also committed to
Continuous Professional Developments and Lifelong Learning of the leaders in the World of Work.
Therefore, it offers — in collaboration with the Faculty of Graduate Studies — a range of highly recognized
postgraduate programmes, including PhD, MBA, MPA and M.Sc. in Management. Further, by
recognizing the need of wider Sri Lankan society for the higher education, the Faculty conducts a number
of external/part-time degree, diploma and Certificate programmes in Management and Commerce.

Academic Departments in the Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce and the Heads of the
respective Departments during the year 2019 are as follows;
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Departments
1. Department of Business Administration

2. Department of Public Administration

3. Department of Commerce
. Department of Estate Management and Valuation

. Department of Accounting

(=2 NN O2 IR SN

. Department of Marketing Management

7. Department of Human Resource Management
8. Department of Finance

9. Department of Business Economics

10. Department of Information Technology

11. Department of Decision Sciences

12. Department of Entrepreneurship

Head of the Department

Dr. W.M. Kalyani (from 17/04/2019)
Dr. S.D.W. Jayawardena

Dr. (Mrs.) L.A.P. Maduwanthi
Senior Prof. E. Dayarathne
Dr.(Mrs.) N.C. Wickramarachchi
Dr. A.H.N. Kariyawasam

Prof. P.S.G.A. Jayaratne (from 18/04/2019)
Dr. K.P.L. Chandralal

Dr. (Mrs.) G.D.N. Perera

Dr. (Ms.) P.AN.S. Anuradha

Dr. D.R.J. Siriwardane

Dr. P.D.K. Amitha Kumara

Mrs. Dileepa Endegamage

Mr. M.V.S.S. Udayanga

DEGREES, DIPLOMAS AND CERTIFICATES AWARDED BY THE FACULTY

Internal Bachelors Degree Programmes

B.Sc. Business Administration (Special)
B.Sc. Management (Public) (Special)
B.Com (Special)

B.Sc. Estate Management and Valuation (Special)

B.Sc. Accounting (Special)
B.Sc. Marketing Management (Special)

B.Sc. Human Resource Management (Special)

B.Sc. Finance (Special)

B.Sc. Business Administration (Business Economics) (Special)

B.Sc. Business Information Systems (Special)
B.Sc. Operations & Technology Management (Special)

B.Sc. Entrepreneurship (Special)

External Bachelors Degree Programmes
B.Com (General)
B.Sc. Business Administration (General)

B.Sc. Management (Public) General

University of Sri Jayewardenepura [35]
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Advanced Diploma Programmes
Advanced Diploma in Computer Based Accounting
Advanced Diploma in Marketing Management

Advanced Diploma in Entrepreneurial Business Management

Diploma Programmes
Diploma in Public Management
Diploma in Computer Based Accounting
Diploma in Marketing Management

Diploma in Entrepreneurial Business Management

Certificate Courses
Certificate in Entrepreneurial Business Management

Certificate Course on Management Leading to fulfill the Third Efficiency Bar Examination for the Officers
in Grade 1 of Sri Lanka Technological Service

Training Programmes
Training Programme on Computer Based Data Analysis

Training Programme on Project Management for Tri-Forces

B.Sc. Business Administration (Special)

11 73 64 100

2438
B.Sc. Public Management (Special) 6 17 17 36
76
B.Com (Special)
6 22 17 69
114

B.Sc. Estate Management and Valuation
(Special) 65
B.Sc. Accounting (Special)

76 62 35 26

199
B.Sc. Marketing Management (Special) 5 26 2 40 o5
B.Sc. Human Resource Management (Special) 3 17 20 17 o
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B.Sc. Finance (Special)

B.Sc. Business Administration (Business
Economics) (Special) 75
B.Sc. Business Information Systems (Special)

B.Sc. Operations & Technology Management
(Special) 52
B.Sc. Entrepreneurship (Special)

Total

173 329 265 438 1205

B.Sc. Business

1 11 1 1 11 1
Administration (Special) > 4 3 64 > 4 73 64
B.Sc. .Pubhc Management 8 6 18 17 17 8 6 18 17 17
(Special)
B.Com (Special) 5 6 19 ” 27 5 6 19 ” 27
B.Sc. Estate Management
1 1 1 1 1 1
and Valuation (Special) > > 8 6 > > 8 6
B.Sc. fﬁccountlng 43 76 - 62 A1 43 76 - 62 Al
(Special)
B.Sc. Marketing
2 2 21 2 2 21
Management (Special) 6 > 4 6 6 > 4 6
B.Sc. Human Resource ; 8 1 17 25 ; 8 1 17 25
Management (Special)
B.Sc. Fi Special
c. Finance (Special) 35 39 46 48 | 31 35 | 39 46 48 31

B.Sc. Business
Administration (Business 11 8 19 21 13 11 8 19 21 13
Economics) (Special)
B.Sc. Business
Information Systems 5 2 8 11 10 5 2 8 11 10
(Special)

B.Sc. Operations &
Technology Management 4 5 25 22 8 4 5 25 22 8
(Special)

B.Sc. Entrepreneurship
(Special)

Total

141 173 308 329 273 141 173 308 329 273
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e 2018 Results (Effective date of Degree 14.10.2017)

e 2019 Results (Effective date of Degree 13.10.2018)

Management Common Programme 12 9 6 931
Business Administration 227 221 229 677
Public Administration 904 84 74 74 315
Commerce 83 126 123 128 502
Estate Management and Valuation 125 58 60 58 235
Accounting 5_9 205 204 201 610
Marketing Management - 93 93 100 286
Human Resource Management - 58 67 74 199
Finance : 157 158 159 474
Business Economics 46 82 82 67 231
Information Technology ) 49 49 48 192
Decision Sciences ) 56 52 56 164
Entrepreneurship 16 19 16 51
Grand Total 1217 | 1223 1211 1216 4867

Academic Academic Staff Administrative Academic Academic | Non-academic Non-academic
Staff (Temporary) Staff Support Support Staft Staff (Contract)
(Permanent) porary (Permanent) = (Temporary) = (Permanent)
181 32 04 12 10 74 02
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Business Administration 7 6 4 5 4
Public Administration 1 2 4 1 3 4
Commerce 1 1 4 3

Estate Management and Valuation 1 1 3 1 3 6
Accounting = 2 10 7 2 3
Marketing Management j:; 1 2 4 4 1

Human Resource Management ) 2 1 9 1

Finance FE 1 5 2 3 1 2 4
Business Economics E" 1 1 7 5 1 4 2
Information Technology = 1 7 4 4 3
Decision Sciences 1 10 1 4 4
Entrepreneurship 2 3 4 1

Business Communication 1 3 2

Legal Studies Unit 1 2 1 1 1

Total 11 11 0 65 46 10 38 32

d. No of Researches Papers 316 316
e. No of Conference Proceedings / Booklets 05 05
f.  No of Books 25 25
g.  Book Chapters 15 15
e. No of Journals/Magazines 06 06
f. No. of Student Research Conference 04 04
Proceedings
Total 371 371
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Faculty of Medical Sciences was established in 1993 as the fourth Faculty of the University of Sri Jayewardenepura.
By the year 2007, the faculty developed into a full-fledged Faculty consisting of 17 Departments. For the first time
in Sri Lanka, the Faculty commenced degree programmes to B.Sc. in Nursing, Bachelor of Pharmacy and B.Sc.
Medical Laboratory Science.

This is only Faculty in the University, which on its own handle registering of students, conducting examinations
and deal with financial matters. In 2013 a new Department of Allied Health Sciences was established.

Academic Departments in the Faculty of Medical Sciences and the Heads of the respective Departments during

the year 2019 are as follows.

N AR

© ®

10.

Departments

Department of Anatomy
Department of Physiology
Department of Biochemistry
Department of Parasitology
Department of Microbiology
Department of Pathology
Department of Pharmacology

Department of Community Medicine
Department of Forensic Medicine

Department of Medicine

University of Sri Jayewardenepura [40]

Heads of Department

Dr. P.H. Dissanayake

Dr. D.C. Hewage

Prof. P.P.R. Perera

Dr. Mrs. P.H.K.LS. Ranasinghe
Dr. Mrs. M.M. Weerasekera
Dr. Mrs. HW.C.K. Kulathilake
Prof. Mrs. C. Nirmala Wijekoon
Prof. P.A.P.G. Jayawardena
Prof. Mrs. S. Prathapan

Prof. M. Vidanapathirana

Dr. Dhammika Ariyaratne
Prof. J. Indrakumar
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11. Department of Obstetrics and Gynaecology ~ Dr. K.C.D.P. Silva

12. Department of Paediatrics Dr.Mrs. M.A.M.N. Gamage
13. Department of Surgery Dr. B.D. Gamage

14. Department of Psychiatry Dr. Jayamal de Silva

15. Department of Family Medicine Dr. Mrs. T.S.P. Samaranayake
16. Department of Medical Education Dr. R.B. Marasinghe

17. Department of Allied Health Sciences Dr. Mrs. M.B.S. Seneviratne

(upto 31.01.2019)

Degrees awarded by the Faculty

01

02.
03.
04.
05.

Diplomas

MBBS Degree

B. Pharm (Hons) Degree

B.Sc. Nursing (Hons) Degree

B.Sc. Human Biology (Hons) Degree

B.Sc. in M.L.S (Medical Laboratory Science) (Hons) Degree

Diploma in Counseling

Diploma in Forensic Medicine and Toxicology

Degree of Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of 9 43 62 56 170
Surgery

Degree of Bachelor of Pharmacy Honours - 3 15 4 22

Degree of Bachelor of Science Honours in 1 4 5 13 23
Nursing

Degree of Bachelor of Science Honours in 4 10 7 4 25

Medical Laboratory Sciences

Degree of B.Sc. Special Human Biology

Degree of B.Sc. General Human Biology

Total

14 60 89 77 240
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Biology

Degree of Bachelor of
Medicine and Bachelor of B, 9 B, 43 _ 62 06 56 06 170
Surgery
Degree of Bachelor of
Pharmacy Honours 01 - 03 3 13 15 22 4 39 22
Degree of Bachelor of Science
Honours in Nursing ) ! 13 4 09 5 19 13 4 23
Degree of Bachelor of Science
Honours in Medical - 4 10 10 03 7 08 4 21 25
Laboratory Sciences
Degree of B.Sc. Special Human
- - - - - - 03 - 03 -

Degree of B.Sc. General Human
Biology

Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery 1090

Bachelor of Pharmacy Honours 89

Bachelor of Science Honours in Nursing 91

Bachelor of Science Honours in Medical Laboratory Sciences 1383 114 148
105

Degree of B.Sc. Special Human Biology 8

Degree of B.Sc. General Human Biology -
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Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery 151
160 +
161 148 155 + 170
163
152
Bachelor of Science Honours in Nursing o 25 26 21 19 _ 23
»
b
B Bachelor of Pharmacy Honours 5 23 23 21 22 - 22
Bachelor of Science Honours in Medical
24 29 27 25 - 25
Laboratory Sciences
Degree of B.Sc. Special Human Biology _ - 4 4 i -
Degree of B.Sc. General Human Biology - - - - - -
Total 233 401 221 225 303 240

Anatomy 1 1 4 - - 9
Physiology - 2 4 1 - 10
Biochemistry 2 . 2 - . 10
Parasitology - - 2 - - 6
Microbiology 1 . 5 - - 9
Pathology - 1 6 - - 8
Pharmacology - - 3 1 - 9
Community Medicine 1 - 2 - 1 9
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Forensic Medicine 1 - 4 - - - - 5
Medicine 1 1 - 5 - - - - 7
Obstetrics and Gynaecology - 1 - 4 - - - - 5
Paediatrics - 2 - 3 1 - - 6
Surgery -5 - 1 - - 6
Psychiatry 1 . . 5 1 - . 7
Family Medicine - - - 2 1 2 . . 5
Medical Education - - - 1 - 1 - - 2
Resource Centre - - - 1 - - - 1
Total 7 24 4 52 6 20 - 1 114

a. No of Researches
b. No of Innovations 1 - B
e. No of Journals 5 _ _
f.  No of Books 9 1 1
g.  No of Articles 27 . 13
h. Other - - 2
Total 102 1 69
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a. No of Postgraduate Degree 10 7 6
Programme

b. No of Postgraduate Diploma 3 6 .
Programme

No of Degree Programme - - -

d. No of Diploma Programme 1 - B

e. No of Certificate programme 18 6 .

f.  other 12 3 2

Total 44 22 8

Faculty Medical Science

Local Awards 18 5 3
National Awards 8 3 B
International Awards 2 1 -
Other (Special Awards, prizes 9 6 2
and Gold medals)

Total 37 15 5

University of Sri Jayewardenepura
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The Faculty of Graduate Studies (FGS) was established in the University in January 1996 under Section 48A of the

Universities Act No 16 of 1978. According to the Act, the Faculty is the main administrative centre for promoting
research and providing courses of study leading to higher degrees and other academic distinctions. The vision of
the Faculty is “to firmly establish itself as a centre of excellence for advanced learning, research and scholarship both

within and outside the domain of the country”.

The FGS is under the oversight of a Dean who guides the academic and administrative functions of the Faculty. A

Deputy Registrar heads the operational division while an Assistant Bursar heads the finance division.

The academic programmes of the FGS are conducted through 9 Boards of Study, which are in close collaboration
with other faculties and academic departments in the university. These Boards of Study are Humanities, Social
Sciences, Life Sciences, Physical Sciences, Management Studies and Commerce, Medical Sciences, Multidisciplinary
Studies, Engineering and Technology. The programmes offered by the Faculty include Certificate Courses, Post
Graduate Diplomas, One year Masters Degrees, Masters Degrees by course work and research and Higher Degree
Programmes by research only. All the programs are aligned along the Sri Lanka Qualification Framework which

sets the benchmark of higher education in the country.

Following are the SLQF levels for the courses offered by the FGS and their eligibility criteria for registration.

SLQF Level  Qualification Awarded No of credits / Eligibility
Duration

7 Post Graduate Certificate 20 SLQF50r6
Post Graduate Diploma 25 SLQF 50r 6
Masters by Coursework (one year) 30 SLQF50r6

10 Masters by Course work and Research 60 SLQE 5 0r 6

11 Master Degree by Research (MAR) 2 years full time SLQF 5 0r 6

11 Master of Philosophy (M Phil) 2 years full time SLQEF 6 and above

12 Doctor of Philosophy (PhD) 3 years full time SLQF 6 and above
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All the courses offered by the FGS have been formulated to fit into the Sri Lanka Qualification Framework (SLQF -
2015). Four main domains of learning: Knowledge, Skills, Attitudes and Mind-set and Paradigm are being
characterized as the K-SAM model. All the courses have been formulated to achieve the pertaining learning
outcomes of a study program. The core areas and the categories of learning outcomes are shown below;

Subject / Theoretical Knowledge

Communication

Creativity and Problem Solving
Information Usage and Management
Adaptability and Flexibility

Vision for Life

Student Data
In 2019, the following courses were offered by the FGS.

Table: The total number of students registered in different Degree/Diploma/Certificate programs

. PG Certificate in Corporate Environmental Sustainability

- PG Certificate in Integrated Waste Management

PG Dip in Writership & Mass Communication 33
PG Dip in Drama & Theatre 0
PG Dip in Criminology & Criminal Justice 73
PG Dip in Marketing Management 59
PG Dip in Monitoring & Evaluation 22
PG Dip in Applied Finance 63

PG Dip in Industrial Mathematics

PG Dip in Real Estate Management & Valuation

PG Dip in Sociology 5
Sub Total 255
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Master of Entrepreneurship (MEntr) 150
MBA/MSc in Management 596
Master of Professional Accounting (MPAcc) 81
MSc in Polymer Science & Technology 119
MSc in Geographical Information System & Remote Sensing 148
MSc in Real Estate Management & Valuation 57
MSc in Food Science & Technology 28
PGD/MSc in Applied Finance 133
MSc in Forestry & Environmental Management 37
Msc in Fisheries and Aquatic Resoures Management 16
MSc in Industrial Mathematics 21
MSc in Computer Science 56
MSc in Industrial Analytical Chemistry 157
MAR in Sinhala 1
MAR in Cultural Studies 1
MAR in Psycology 4
MAR in Buddist Civilization 2
MAR in Buddist Philosophy 1
MAR in Philosophy 3
MAR in Economics 2
MAQ in Sociology 2
MAT in Criminology 38
Sub Total 1653
MPhil in Sinhala 6
MPhil in Buddhist Philosophy
MPhil in philosophy 13
MPhil in Buddist Civilization 1
MPhil in Pali 2
MPhil in Mass Communication 1
MPhil in Cultural studies 6
MPhil in Sanskrit 2
MPhil in Hindi 0
MPhil in English 2
MPhil in Geography 6
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MPhil in Criminology 3
MPhil in Sociology 2
MPhil in Archaeology 4
MPhil in Economics 0
MPhil in Political Science 0
MPhil in Anthropology 1
MPhil in Music 2
MPhil in Food Science 5
MPhil in Forestry 4
MPhil in Botany 6
MPhil in Zoology 11
MPhil in Microbiology 11
MPhil in Pharmacology 0
MPhil in Community Medicine 2
MPhil in Biochemistry 11
MPhil in Medical Laboratary Sciences 1
MPhil in Medical Education & Helth Science 7
MPhil in Anatomy 5
MPhil in Physiology 5
MPhil in Parasitology 3
MPhil in Chemistry 21
MPhil in Physics 10
MPhil in Mathematics
MPhil in Statistics
MPhil in Computer Science 5
MPhil in Multidisciplinary 10
Mphil in Polymer Science 0
Sub Total 175

PhD in Sinhala

PhD in Sanskrit

PhD in Pali
PhD in Mass Communication

PhD in Buddhist civilization

PhD in Buddhist Philosophy
PhD in English

PhD in Philosophy

PhD in Economics

C iIQ im IQ iIQC ik QO iQ ik
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PhD in Criminology

PhD in Archaeology

PhD in Anthropology

PhD in Sociology

PhD in Geography

PhD in Zoology
PhD in Botany
PhD in Food Sciences 14

W AW iI0 O i iIO

N

PhD in Forestry & Environmental Management

PhD in Computer Science
PhD in Physics 1
PhD in Statistics 1
PhD in Management 81
PhD in Chemistry

PhD in Microbiology

PhD in Biochemistry

PhD in Medical Education & Health Sciences

PhD in Forensic Medicine

PhD in Physiology

Wi 1IN i W

PhD in Multidisciplinary

[

PhD in Medical Laboratory Science

[

PhD in Community Medicine

PhD in Anatomy 1
Sub Total 150

THE GRADUATE FACULTY BOARD FOR THE EDITORIAL COMMITTEE OF FGS IN 2019

All Boards of Study had been instructed to prepare guidelines-Arrangements have also been taken to publish selected
suitable theses with reputed publishers in Sri Lanka in order to disseminate research finding to the general public.
The FGS has setup an Editorial Board to achieve this task

ETHICS REVIEW COMMITTEE OF THE FACULTY OF GRADUATE STUDIES

On the recommendation of the Faculty Board of Graduate Studies, at the 368" Senate which was held on
31%January 2019, respective senate members have accepted and recommended a proposal for the approval
of an Ethical Review Committee (ERC) for non-medical research at the FGS. The Ethics Review Committee
will be established in the FGS in 2020.
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RESEARCH METHODOLOGY & SCIENTIFIC WRITING COURSE

With the vision of producing quality postgraduates, FGS started a short course on “Research Methodology and
Scientific Writing”. As there is a high demand for this course, FGS has decided to offer the course twice in one
academic year. The program was initiated in 2017 and students who registered as postgraduate students for this
course, were exempted from the course fee.

PGD IN MONITORING & EVALUATION & CENTRE FOR EVALUATION

This course is offered in a hybrid mode. 25 students have registered for the program. students. Director, External
Consultant and two demonstrators have been appointed for sooth function of the centre.

INTERNATIONAL CONFERENCE ON MULTIDISCIPLINARY APPROACHES - 2019

The international Conference on Multidisciplinary Approaches (iCMA) in 2019 was held at Golden Rose Hotel,
Boralesgamuwa from 26th to 27th November 2019. The theme of the conference was “Sustainability, Ethics &
Governance through Multidisciplinary Research”. Senior Professor Sampath Amaratunge (Vice Chancellor of
University of Sri Jayewardenepura) was the chief guest and Dr. A. M. Mubarak, Chairman, National Science
Foundation was the Guest of Honour of the conference. Prof. Tom Buchanan of Mount Royal University, Canada
was invited as the Keynote speaker and Senior Professor M. M. Pathmalal, Dean of the Faculty of Graduate Studies
Chaired the 6" international Conference on Multidisciplinary Approaches (iCMA).

257 research abstracts were received for the 6" ICMA 2019 and screening was done by the conference academic
committee. The abstracts were reviewed by experts and 124 research papers (94 oral and 29 poster) were selected
for publication in the Elsevier SSRN database, for the first time in the university history. The accepted publications
were in line with the following six thematic research areas

1. Humanities & Social Sciences
Engineering, Technology & Physical Sciences
Health Sciences & Nutrition
Environmental Pollution & Natural Resources Management
Natural and Life Sciences

A

Management, Commerce & Industry Development

Following the inauguration of the conference, Plenary talk which was on the topic “Impactful Research” was given
by Prof. Neelika Malavige, Professor in The Department of Microbiology, Faculty of Medical Sciences & The
Director, Centre for Dengue Research, US]. Senior Prof. Pathmalal Manage, Prof. Charmali Nahallage, Senior Prof.
Samanthi Senarathne, Prof. Pradeepa Jaewardene, Dr. Renuka Nilmini, B+: Prof. S.D.M Chinthaka and Dr. Nishan
Dharmage participated as panelists.

INTERNATIONAL JOURNAL OF MULTIDISCIPLINARY STUDIES

IJMS is a platform for the researchers to present their multidisciplinary research work. This is a biannual journal
and two issues of Volume 6 were published in July and December 2019.

GUEST LECTURES CONDUCTED BY FGS

Guest lecture had been held on 06" of June 2019 at FGS. Title was ‘illumination of chemistry in living cells’. Dr.
Ajith Karunarathne, Assistant Professor, Department of Chemistry and Biochemistry, The University of Toledo.
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FEACU LTY»OF TECHNOLOGY

UNIVERSITY OF, JAYAWERDENEPURA

In order to cater to the GCE Advanced Level Technology Stream introduced by the Government of Sri Lanka in the
Year 2013, University of Sri Jayewardenepura was the first University to come forward in Establishing the Faculty
of Technology in the Government University System. The proposed Technology curricula were then recommended
to the University Council upon the approval of the University Senate on 23" September, 2015. Followed by the
recommendation of the University Council on 08" October 2015, University Grants Commission approved the
proposed Technology curricula for three degree programs including the 09 Subject Focus areas on 19" November,
2015. Fulfilling the immense efforts, dedication, and the vision of Prof. Sampath Amaratunge, Vice Chancellor,
University of Sri Jayewardenepura and his teams, Ministry of Higher Education and Highways of Sri Lanka officially
announced the establishment of the Faculty of Technology through the Gazette Extraordinary (No.1948/59 Order
under Section 27(1), THE UNIVERSITIES ACT, No. 16 of 1978) that was published on 08" of January, 2016.

Faculty of Technology consists of three major academic departments and the Heads of the respective Departments

during the year 2019 are as follows;

Department Head of Department
(1) Department of Engineering Technology Dr. (Mrs.) Nilmini Liyanage
(i) Department of Biosystems Technology Dr.(Mrs.)Randika Jayasinghe
(iii) Department of Information and Communication Dr.B.N.S.Lankasena Technology

These departments offer Honours Degrees in the fields which are highly demanded in Sri Lanka. These degree
programs are fulltime four years professional degree programs which are offered at Sri Lanka Qualification

Framework (SLQF) Level 6.

University of Sri Jayewardenepura [52] Annual Report 2019



01. Bachelor of Engineering Technology
02. Bachelor of Biosystems Technology

03. Bachelor of Information & Communication Technology

The Department of Engineering Technology will conduct the Bachelor of Engineering Technology Honours
Degree program. The development of this program is guided by the Institute of Engineers Sri Lanka (IESL)
accreditation manual for full time four years professional degree and based on the Sydney Accord. It is planned
that the Engineering Technology program will be producing skilled graduates in the six focus areas of Energy and
Environmental Technology, Mechatronics, Construction and Building Services, Archaeotechnology, Polymer
Processing Technology and Automobile Technology. This department will also facilitate common subjects for the

other degree programs.

The Department of Biosystems Technology will conduct the Bachelor of Biosystems Technology Honours Degree
programs. The development of this program is guided by the National Biotechnology Industry Association, Sri
Lanka (NBIA). It is planned that the Biosystems Technology programme will be producing skilled graduates in
the three focus areas of Food Processing Technology, Agriculture and Environment Technology and Industrial

Biosystems Technology.

The Department of Information and Communication Technology will conduct the Bachelor of Information and
Communication Technology Honours degree programme. The development of this programme is guided by the
Computer Society of Sri Lanka and it is planned that the Information and Communication Technology programme
will be producing skilled graduates in the three focus areas of Software Technology, Multimedia Technology and

Network Technology.
The orientation programme for the third intake of the Faculty of Technology, University of Sri Jayewardenepura

was commenced on the 24th February 2019 at the University of Sri Jayewardenepura with the participation of 321

students and parents.
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Bachelor of Bio Systems Technology

Bachelor of Engineering Technology

Bachelor of Information and
Communication Technology
Total - B.Sc. (Special)

Total - B.Sc. (General)

(Still students are not graduated at present)

Total

Bachelor of Biosystems Technology

Bachelor of Engineering Technology

480 25 09
Bachelor of Information and
C . 224 11 05
Communication Technology
Faculty Oftfice Not Applicable 16

Bachelor of Biosystems Technology

85 85 86 86

Bachelor of Engineering Technology fbgo 159 159 160 161
=]

Bachelor of Information and Communication M

75 75 75 74
Technology
Total 319 319 321 @ 321
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Office of the Dean o1 o1
Dept. of Biosystems
10 03 | o1 02 01 17

Technology =
Dept. i i i

pt. of Engineering 5 03 12 04 | 04 02 25
Technology .
Dept. of Information
and Communication 07 03 01 11
Technology
Total 01 03 29 07 08 03 03 54

15

32

h. No of Researches 11
i.  No of Innovations 04 02
e. No of Journals 25 01
f.  No of Books 04
g.  No of Articles 02 01 01
h. Other (Research Papers
38
/Conference papers)
Total 84 01 04
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g. Programme 06
h.  Workshops 11 05 04
Total 17 05 04

Local Awards 10 -
International Awards 01 -
Other ( Special Awards, prizes, and 01 -
Gold medals)

Total 12 -

Bachelor of Biosystems

Technology English
Bachelor of Engineering English
Technology
Bachelor of Information
and Communication English
Technology
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The Faculty of Engineering, University of Sri Jayewardenepura, is the latest addition to the Faculties of
Engineering in the state Universities coming under purview of the University Grants Commission. Established
in January 2016, It consists of five Department of study with a mandate to offer study programme in
Engineering leading to the award of the degree of the “Bachelor of the Science of Engineering”.

Faculty of Engineering consists of five (05) Academic Departments as follows.

Departments Head of Department
1.  Department of Civil Engineering Dr. G.N. Samarasekara
2. Department of Computer Engineering Dr. D.M.R. Dinalankara
3. Department of Electrical & Electronic Engineering Dr. C. de Alwis
4. Department of Interdisciplinary Studies Dr. D.M.R. Dinalankara
(Act.Head
5.  Department of Mechanical Engineering Dr. P.M.T. Bandara

Degrees Bachelor of the Science of Engineering

Bachelor of the Science of Engineering 478 | 45 ! 41

(From 01%
December
2019)
478 45 41
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Bachelor of the Science of Engineering 120 119 | 119

e

L2 (From 28"
L%D November
2019)

Office of the Dean - - - - R

Department of Civil Engineering 4 4 6 14

Department of Computer Engineering 3 2 - 5 10

Department of Electrical and Electronics 4 4 - 5 13

Department of Interdisciplinary Studies - 2 - - 2

Department of Mechanical Engineering 2 - 4 - 6

Total 13 12 4 16 45
14 PhD Holders in the Faculty of Engineering

Office of the Dean - 1 5 7 13
Department of Civil Engineering - - 3 3 6
Department of Computer Engineering - - 3 3 6
Department of Interdisciplinary Studies - - 1 1 2
Department of Electrical and Electronics - - 4 3 7
Department of Mechanical Engineering - - 3 4 7
Total - 1 19 21 41
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j. No of Researches - - -
k. No of Innovations 06 - 08
e. No of Journals - - -
f.  No of Books - - -
g.  No of Articles 08 - -
h. Other (Research Papers) 01 -
Total 15 - 08

Local Awards

03

Total
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Faculty of Allied Health Sciences was established in 2019 as the 8" Faculty of the University of Sri
Jayewardenepura. The degree programmes that were conducted by the Department of Allied Health
Sciences of the Faculty of Medical Sciences for nearly 15 years are now conducted by the Departments of
Nursing & Midwifery, Pharmacy & Pharmaceutical Sciences and Medical Laboratory Sciences of the
newly established Faculty. In the future the Faculty of Allied Health Sciences hope to increase the student
intakes to the currently conducted programmes and to commence new courses. BSc in Optometry is such

a study programme which will be the first BSc. degree in Optometry offered by a state University.

The current academic Departments in the Faculty of Allied Health Sciences and the Heads of the respective

Departments are as follows.

Departments Heads of Department
Department of Nursing & Midwifery Miss. S.M.K.S. Seneviratne
Department of Pharmacy & Pharmaceutical Sciences Dr. M.D.J. Wijayabandara
Department of Medical Laboratory Sciences Dr. (Mrs.) D.I. Uluwaduge
Department of Basic Sciences Pending recruitment of staff

Degrees

1. B.Sc. (Honours) in Nursing
2. Bachelor of Pharmacy (Honours)

3. B.Sc. (Honours) in Medical Laboratory Sciences
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B.Sc. (Honours) in Nursing

Bachelor of Pharmacy

- 0 1 ) 22
(Honours) 3 > 4
B.Sc. (Honours) in Medical
. 04 10 07 04 25
Laboratory Sciences
Total 05 17 27 21

Degree

B.Sc. (Honours) in
Nursing

Bachelor of
Pharmacy 01 - 03 03 13 03 22 09 39 15
(Honours)

B.Sc. (Honours) in
Medical
Laboratory
Sciences

Total 01 05 26 17 25 15 49 28 101 65

B.Sc. (Honours) in Nursing 88 11 04
Bachelor of Pharmacy (Honours) 95 12 07
B.Sc. (Honours) in Medical Laboratory

. 105 07 11
Sciences
Total 288 30 22
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B.Sc. (Honours) in Nursing

Bachelor of Pharmacy (Honours)

B.Sc. (Honours) in Medical Laboratory
Sciences

Total

English

25 23 21 19 22
23 23 26 23 15
24 29 27 25 28
72 75 74 67 65

b
2
- ]
2 & )
7] e} i
& S E &
Department e - ° 3 g =
S B H OB H OEE g
- @ Bt - = = g
g & 3 g 2 2 o =)
5. £l 2 5] 8 (8¢ E
hoA < o = = A 5
Department of Nursing & Midwifery - - - 04 01 06 - - 11
Department of Pharmacy &
. . - - - 08 - 02 - - 10
Pharmaceutical Sciences
Department of Medical Laboratory
: - - - 04 - 03 - - 07
Sciences
Total - - - 16 01 11 - - 28
....... PhD Holders in the Faculty of Allied Health Science
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03 03

05 _ 13 _ 24

1. No of Researches 78 . 63

m. No of Innovations 0 - 0

e. No of Journals 13 - 0

f.  No of Books 2 - 0

g.  No of Articles 83 - 14

h. Other (Research Papers) 0 - 0
Total 176 - 77

No of Postgraduate Degree 5 ) i
Programme
No of Certificate programme - 4 -
other (Seminar, Workshop and
16 0 -
conference)
Total 18 6 -

Local Awards 9 1 10
National Awards 3 1 4
International Awards 2 0 2
Other (Special Awards, prizes 0 0 0
and Gold medals)

Total 14 2 16
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Examination Division works with a Deputy Registrar and 12 Non Academic staff members and the major

duties carried out during year 2019 can be summarized as follows.

1. Complete several duties pertaining to semester examinations
2. Complete several duties pertaining to 45® Convocation

3. Issuing & Verification of Degree Certificates

The duties pertaining to semester examinations - 2019

The several duties pertaining to semester examinations of Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences
(January — March 2019 and August — October 2019), Faculty of Applied Sciences (June- July 2019 and
December 2019), Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce (March — April 2019 and October -
November 2019) and Faculty of Technology (January-March 2019 and August — September 2019) were

carried out by the Examination Division as follows.

e Typing, printing” packeting & sealing of question papers

e Handing over of Paper Packets to supervisors

e Handing over answer scripts to the examiners

e DPreparation of Passed Lists of the Faculty of Applied Sciences and sent for the approval of the
University Senate

e Works relevant to the examination payment vouchers of the Academic staff of the Faculty of

Applied Sciences & Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences

e Works relevant to the examination payment vouchers of the Non- academic staff of the Faculty

of Applied Sciences

The Examination Offences Investigation Committee & the Appeals Committee

The examination rules, regulations, irregularities and punishments are prescribed in the By-Law No 2 of
1986, which made under section 135(1) (h) of the University Act No 16 of 1978. The Examination

Offences Investigation Committee and the Appeals Committee are appointed by the University Senate.

Five Professors and two Senior Lecturers were appointed for the Examination Offences Investigation
Committee from each faculty and Deputy Registrar of the Examination division served as the secretary of

the committee for year 2019.
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Five Examination Offences Investigation Committee meetings & one Appeals Committee meeting was
conducted during year 2019. The recommendations of above committees were sent to the University
Senate and implemented relevant decisions with regard to the offences made by the students of the
Faculties of Humanities and Social Sciences, Management Studies and Commerce, Faculty of Applied

Sciences, Faculty of Technology & Diploma examinations of Sociology and Criminology.

The 45™ Convocation held on10th and 11" September 2019

Following duties were carried out by the Examination Division for the 45" Convocation

e Preparation of lists of Graduands of the Faculties of Humanities and Social Sciences, Applied
Sciences & Management Studies and Commerce and sent for the approval of the University Senate

e Facilitate the Graduands to download the convocation application form and payment vouchers
the university web site

e Published the advertisements for the 45" convocation held on 10" & 11" September 2019

e  Accepting of convocation applications from 2647 graduands from the above three Faculties"
writing of individual names (both in Sinhala & English) on original degree certificates and issuing
them at the convocation itself

Awarding Gold Medals at the 45™ Convocation

_All relevant work pertaining to the award of Gold Medals and scholarships together with relevant

certificates at the convocation was completely handled by the Examinations Division.

Issuing & Verification of Degree Certificates

Certificates and Transcripts of graduates of the Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences, Faculty of
Applied Sciences and the Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce to foreign and local universities
and relevant institutions on the request were issued by the Examinations Division. Verification of the
same for foreign and local institutions and submission of the information of graduates and examination
statistical data to the University Grants Commission and other relevant authorities when and where

necessary were carried out by the Examinations Division.
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University Medical Centre provides the students and staff with a number of facilities. They include medical
and dental treatments, investigations, vaccinations and counselling. Further the Centre is involved in
carrying out Anti Dengue Campaigns, spraying pesticides to control pests, food testing programs in
University Hostels and Canteens, testing water samples and organizing awareness programs for the
students on health and social issues.

During the year 2019 Dr. Shantha Hettiarachchi, the Chief Medical Officer resigned from Medical Centre
in April 2019. Dr.(Mrs.) S.De.Silva was appointed as Medical Officer Incharge by Vice Chancellor, Prof.
Sampath Amaratunge. Dr. (Mrs.) D.M.L.R.H.Perera served as a Medical Officer and Dr. D.P.D.Asalage
served as Dental Surgeon.

Dr.K.G.N.Senevirathne, Dr.K.A.M.Handakmbura and Dr.S.M.D.G.S.Perera served as Locum Medical
Officers and from August to December, Dr.S.M.D.G.S.Perera was replaced by Dr.S.Smarasinghe.

STATISTICS ON THE SERVICES OF THE HEALTH CENTRE IN 2019

1. Number of patients seen by Medical Doctors for physical illness; 28,428
2. Number of patients who took drugs from the Pharmacy; 25,215
3. Number of patients treated by the Nursing unit; 2,040
4. Number of interventions at the Dental clinic; 1,693
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INTRODUCTION

The formulation & implementation of sport activities for University students, training of sportsmen and
sports women for 39 sport events and the organization of sport events are the main functions of the
Physical education Division. Sri Lanka University Games, giving formal training for tournaments
organized by the National Sports Association or international, the administration and maintenance of
grounds for different games are the other activities of the Physical Education Department.

The present Director of Physical Education is Mrs. N.Nishanthi Vidanage. Mrs. Ramani Kulathilaka, Mr.
M.G.S.S.Keerthirathna, Mr. H.L.Lahiru Dilankara, Mr.B.N.M.Perera and L.A.D.Priyadarshana serve as permanent
sports instructors and B.M.C.N.Niroshana serve as temporary sports instructors.

OBJECTIVES OF THE PHYSICAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT

1. To give an understanding on the values of Physical Education to internal students of the
University and to give them a physical development through mental development.

2. To provide an opportunity for improvement of sports activities and skills.
To encourage sports participation by playing tournaments, with internal and external sports
bodies.

4. To develop discipline by encouraging sports activities among students.

A Sports Advisory Board consists of the members of the academic and administrative staff.

Sports council consists of sports captains and vice- captions of all the games. In each and every year, 02
co-presidents and the executive committee members are selected.

SPORTS ADVISORY BOARD

The Sports Advisory Board consists of the following members.

1. Sixteen permanent academic staff members who are interested in sports appointed by the Vice-
Chancellor
2. Director of Physical Education

Five members from the permanent physical education instructors (one should be an instructress)
Two Co-president of the Sports Council, Secretary and Vice-President and another representative
(One should be a sports women)

5. University Chief Medical Officer or his representative (Should be a medical officer of the
University)
6. Director, Student affairs
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The Senior Assistant Registrar (Student Welfare) or his or her representative

Bursar or his or her representative

Works Engineer or his representative

10. Assistant Registrar (Capital Works Division)

11. Project Engineer ( Capital Works Division)

SPORTS COUNCIL

The University Sports Council consists of Captains and Vice Captains of different sports teams. It consists

of two co-president, Vice-presidents in each faculty, Secretary, Assistant secretary, Junior Treasurer, two

editors and two committee members.

They will be selected at the first meeting of the academic year.

SPORTS ACTIVITIES AND TOURNAMENTS

The following Physical Education Instructors of the Physical Education Division of the University have

provided facilities and training for the following sports under their supervision:

Mrs. N. Nishanthi Vidanage
(Director of Physical

Education)

Mrs. ].M. Ramani Kulathilaka
(Physical Education Instructor)

Volleyball (female/male)
Chess (female/male)
Netball (female)

Yoga

Mr. M.G.S.S. Keerthirathna
(Physical Education
Instructor)

Football (male)
Swimming (female/male)
Rugby (male)

Mr. H.L.Lahiru Dilankara
(Physical Education Instructor)

Athletes (female/male)
Road race (female/male)
Carrom (male)

Mr. B.N.M.Perera
(Physical Education Instructor)

Wrestling (male)
Elle (female/male)

Mr. L.A.D.Priyadarshana
(Physical Education Instructor)

Badminton (female/male)
Table Tennis(female/male)
Tennis (female/male)

Basketball (female/male) Baseball (male)
Aeorobics
Zumba
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Mr. B.M.C.N.Niroshana
(Physical Education Instructor)

Taekwondo(female/male)
Hockey (female/male)
Cricket (male)

The Physical Education Department organizes the following tournaments.

1. Inter Faculty Novices/ Fresher’s Tournaments
2. Inter faculty meets

3. Invitational & Friendly tournaments

4.

Inter University Tournaments

In addition, we organize friendly matches with outside teams inter university championships and
Combined university Team games.

Also our students participate in the Combined University Sport Teams selected from all universities,
National Championship, World University Games and Championships.

The Inter University Sports Festival organized by a few universities is held every year and the Mini
Olympics is held every three years, organized by a single university.

Below are the events which we carried out in 2019.

0,

> “Vidudaya Rizbury Inter School Swimming Championship — 2019”
was held in March 2019 at university premises. Organized by the Sports Council and Physical Education

Department.

<> Out boundary training at Sri Lanka Army Special Forces training School -Maaduru oya in March

1st to 3 2019 organized by the Physical education Department to motivate and Develop Leadership

Qualities of the teams captains and vice captains to be ready for the inter university meet.

<> Sri Lanka University Games held from August to September 2019.
<> Results Of the Sri Lanka University Games- 2019
Sport Men Women
1 Badminton Champions Champions
2 Base Ball Champions -
3 Basket Ball Champions Champions
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4 Carom 4™ place 2" Runner up
5 Chess Runner up 4™ place
6 Cricket Champions -
7 Elle Champions Quarterfinalist
8 Football Quarterfinalist
9 Hockey Quarterfinalist Runner up
10 Karate 7" place 4th place
11 Net Ball - 2" Runner up
12 Road Race Runner up -
13 Rugby Quarterfinalist -
14 Swimming Runner up Champions
15 Table Tennis Quarterfinalist Runner up
16 Taekwondo Runner up 6" place
17 Tennis Runner up 2" Runner up
18 Track & Field 2" Runner up Runner up
19 Volleyball Quarterfinalist Quarterfinalist
20 Weightlifting 4" place -
21 Wrestling Champions -
<> Men Championship - Champions
<> Women Championship - 2" Place
<> Overall Championship - Champions
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CHAMPIONS PHOTOGRAPHS

CHAMPIONS ¢ , CHAMPIONS g
SLUG 2019 SLUG 2019

JPURA MEN'S BASKETBALL TEAM

CHAMPIONS %
SLUG 2019

Basketball Team (Men/Women)
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Baseball team Cricket team

University of Sri Jayewardenepura [71] Annual Report 2019



CHAMPIONS“ CHAMPIONS|
SLUG 2019: ~ SLUG 2019

Elle(men) team

J'PURA WRESTLING TEAM B >
CHAMPIONS : e ;,"CHA/M ONS

Wrestling team Men Overall Champion
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<« University of Sri Jayewardenepura also participated on this invitation and other Tournaments.

. 4™ SSC Open International rating Chess Championship - 2019

. Sri Lanka Open chess Championship - 2019

" 12" Colombo International Chess Championship -2019

" 9" Dhamso International Chess Champonship-2019

. Sri Lanka National B womens National B Chess Championship -2019

. HNDE Masters Trophy Annual Volleyball Tournament- 2019

n Mahesh Fernando Memorial Trophy - Runner up

. Inter Club doubles Tennis Tournament -2019Division 5 —~Runner up

= Invitational Kabaddi Tournament ( Peradeniya & Sabaragamuwa) —Runner up

. National Men Kabbadi Championship (University Catergory Runner up

= Invitational Table Tennis Tournament ~Organized by Moratuwa University

- UMISF (Badminton) Tournament — Boys ,Girls, Champions

. Lesli Hadunage memorial Invitation Boxing Championship- 2019

. Sri Lanka Novices Weightlifting Championship -2019

" Sri Lanka freshes Wrestling Champiopnship-2019

. National Youth Elle Championship,Anuradhapura- 2019

. Mora 9side Hockey Championship —2019 — Runner up

= Western province Division 3 cricket tournament -2019

. Pera sixes Hockey Championship 2019 - 3" place

. National Youth Taekwondo Championship- 2019

X2 University of Sri Jayewardenepura also participated on this International Event Participation
Tournaments.

e South Asian Games 2019- 8 Members are participated this event and won 3 gold
medals(T.P.Hendahewa,S.K.Ishadika, B.M.H.P.Balasooriya- Faculty of Applied Science), 5 silver
medals (T.P.Hendahewa,S.K.Ishadika- Faculty of Applied Science and H.C.Wijeratna , Charith
Perera — Faculty of Management Studies) -and 4 bronze medal (Erandi Warusawithana,Chameera
Ginige,Sumeda Ranasinghe -. Faculty of Applied Science)

e Asian Team Badminton Tournament - 2019- 2 Members are participated this event.-
T.P.Hendahewa,S.K.Ishadika - Faculty of Applied Science

e Football World cup Qualification Matches -2019 -1 Member is participated this event - jude Suban -
Faculty of Applied Science

e West Asia Baseball cup Championship -2019-1 Member is participated this event — Vimukthi
Senevirathna - Faculty of Applied Science
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e South Asian Throw Ball Championship-2019-2 Member is participated this event -
D.L.S.M.Jayasinghe, H.L.S.P.Samarakoon - Faculty of Applied Science

e Asian Individual Championship (Squash) -2019-1 Member is participated this event —Naduni
Gunawardene - Faculty of Management Studies

> World University Championships — 2019

. Participation to the World University games 2019. 13 Members are participated this event was
held at Italy.

W.K.M. Kumara -Faculty of Applied Sciences

O.I.L.A.Kumara —Faculty of Applied Sciences

[.G.I.Srimali —Faculty of Applied Sciences

A.LM.R.A.C.Maralanda —Faculty of Applied Sciences

B.S.Dulakshi —Faculty of Applied Sciences

S.H.S.V.Wickramarathna —Faculty of Applied Sciences

R.A.Kumarajeewa—Faculty of Applied Sciences

AW.Y K.Wimalaratna-Faculty of Applied Sciences

RN A A o

E.D.Warusawithana-Faculty of Applied Sciences
. B.M.H.Paboda-Faculty of Applied Sciences
. C.N.Wijewardena — Faculty of Management Studies
. P.K.K.D.Gimhan - Faculty of Management Studies

e e e
w N = O

. N.H. Ellawala - Faculty of Management Studies

COLOURS AWARD

At the end of each year. A Colours Award Ceremony will be organized by the Physical Education
Department and the Sports Council. Sportsmen and Sportswomen who reached the required standard
under the approved criteria will be awarded Colours with the approval of the Advisory Board. The criteria
for these awards and further details can be obtained from the Physical Education Department. In addition,
the sportsmen and women who perform well at the Inter University tournaments will be given the Merit
Award of Sri Lanka Universities Sports Association.

SPORTS FACILITIES

The Department of Physical Education, the governing body of sports, of the prestigious University of Sri
Jayewardenepura possesses unique sporting facilities.
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OUT-DOOR VOLLEYBALL COURTS

The University outdoor volleyball courts are located near the swimming pool have two clay based courts.
These are available for university students and staff members.

BASKETBALL COURT

The Outdoor basketball court is situated next to the volleyball courts and is mainly a hard court made of
tar. These are available for university students and staff members.
TENNIS COURTS

Tennis courts are clay surfaced and well maintained. These are available for university students, staff
members, and for outsiders as well.

SWIMMING POOL COMPLEX

The Swimming pool is a 50m standard size & has 10 lanes. Its shallow end is 1.5 m in depth and at the
deep end, the depth is 5.5 m. The swimming pool has an adjacent two storied- building which consists of
changing rooms and wash-rooms for swimmers. The pool is available for university students, staff
members, and for outsiders as well upon their request.

CRICKET GROUND

The University cricket pitch is mainly a grass surfaced 65m full length area. This well maintained ground
has one matting pitch & two clay pitches. The ground has an adjacent one storied- pavilion & changing
rooms with attached wash-rooms for players & referees. This ground is located in a very picturesque
environment. The pitch hosts Inter University matches, University intra-mural competitions, and as well
as other community club tournaments.

AIMS FULFILLED DURING THIS YEAR

e Renovation of the Physical Education Office
e DPreparation of the Cricket Net for the University Cricket Practices.

e Construction of a two story building in the upper sports ground with the aim of providing a more
wide service

e Providing opportunities to the external parties to hire the
basketball,tennis,volleyball,football,netball courts and cricket nets on 13.09.2018 prices as per the
decision taken by the finance committee according to 349.03.04(28) from the month of
September 2018 on words.
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e Construction of a new building for swimming pool with new control room and sanitary facilities
for swimmers.

OUR CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE UNIVERSITY DEVELOPMENT.

e Earning an income of nearly 9 million to the University by the hiring of Swimming Pool to the
external Parties.

e Earning an income of Rs.701000/- to the University by registration and providing hiring facilities
to the external Parties to use the sport sports courts.

Career Guidance Unit of University of Sri Jayewardenepura execute all the career guidance projects and events in
collaboration with Career Skills Development Society (CSDS) & Gavel Club. some of the main programmes are as
follows;

Glory Night

The CSDS Glory Night is the annual get together and facilitation ceremony of the Career Skills
Development Society. Piyumi Dissanayake and Chandana Priyashantha were the chief organizers
of the event 2019.During the event, the new board of officials were officially introduced to the
career advisors of the university. Further the outgoing board of officials were facilitated for their
outstanding commitment and dedication for the society

Shadow of Success (Phase 04)

The phase 04 of the shadow of success workshop series was held on 23rd of May 2019 with the
honorary participation of Mr. Publius Silva. Dileep Rajapakshe was the chief organizer of the event.
This workshop opened for all undergraduates in the university. Nearly 400 students were
participated for the event. During the workshop students were able to discuss with the resource
person and share his valuable life experiences

J’pura Employability Skills Awards 2019 (JESA 2019)
Japura Employability Skills Awards (JESA) 2019, is the annual awarding ceremony of the
university which access the employability skills of the undergraduates.

“Touch the Peak” - Workshop Series (FMSC Episode)

“Touch The Peak” - Japura Annual Job Fair & Entrepreneurial Ventures - Faculty of Management
Studies & Commerce Episode was a rare opportunity for the fresh undergraduates of the university
to be get recruited to a suitable job and find & plancareer path. The program was consisted of a
workshop series and a career fair. The event was coordinated by Ishan Sasanka & Praveena
Rajapakshe as chief organizers. Nearly 1000 students were participated for this event
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“Touch The Peak” - Workshop Series (FAS Episode)

“Touch The Peak” - Japura Annual Job Fair & Entrepreneurial Ventures - Faculty of Applied
Sciences Episode was a rare opportunity for the fresh undergraduates of the university to be get
recruited to a suitable position in the both government & private sector and to find & plan the
career path. The program was consisted of a workshop series and a career fair. The event was
coordinated by & as the chief organizers. The FAS episode of Touch the Peak — Annual Job Fair &
Entrepreneurial Ventures was successfully held with participation of more than 1000
undergraduates/graduates and more than 25 esteemed companies

Touch the Peak - Annual Job Fair and Entrepreneurial Ventures (FAHS episode)
“Touch The Peak” - Jpura Annual Job Fair & Entrepreneurial Ventures - Faculty of Humanities
& Social Sciences Episode was a rare opportunity for the fresh undergraduates of the university to
be get recruited to a suitable job and find & plan the career path. The program was consisted of a
workshop series and a career fair. The event was coordinated by Imal Madhawa & Thadya
Wicramasinghe as chief organizers. Nearly 1000 students were participated for this event.

Beach cleanup (Anavilundawa “muthu panthiya” Beach)

‘CSDS beach cleanup’ is another CSR project which is organized by career skills development
society. The project was mainly focused on coast conservation. The project was coordinated by
sanjaya M. Jayakodi as chief organizer. Extending the effort, we cleaned nearly two kilometers on
the beach Arachchikattuwa. Police station, coast conservation authority and villagers were helped
us for the success of this project.this held on 20th

Arunella

Arunella is one of the major CSR project which is in ongoing process by the Career Skills
Development Society which is focused on improving the amount of students which enter to state
universities. Extending the efforts this time the CSDS put a leap forwa rd by joining a
reconstructing programme along with it.

For the year 2019, Chamodi Gunathunga & Janaka Koggala were elected by the executive
committee as the Chief Organizers Kudarawaliya Secondary school was selected to implement the

project.
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General Administration and Services Division provides infrastructure facilities for academic and
non academic purposes such as transport, telecommunication, postal services, and housing
facilities for staff, supply news papers and fire extinguishers. General Administration and Services
Division function with 59 employees including Senior Assistant Registrar , 06 Management
Assistant , Receptionist, Telephone Operator, 41 drivers, 02 lorry cleaners, 08 works Aid.

Vehicle fleet of this University consists with 48 vehicles including 12 cars, 4 jeeps, 7 buses, 11
vans,5 cabs, 3 Ambulances, Tractor, Trailer , Hand Tractor, 2 Motor bikes and 01 Three-wheeler.
06 vehicles were added to vehicle fleet by Financial Leasing method and 05 vehicles were
purchased by University Development funds during last few years. Telecommunication facilities
provides intercom facilities, 9’dialling and direct line facilities with the cooperation of center for
IT Services. Free housing facilities are provided to specially selected official including Proctor,
Warden, Works Engineer, Chief Security Officer, Electrician, Plumber and selection is regulated
by Housing committee of the University. In addition few houses are provided to academic and
non academic staff with a monthly rental as a welfare facility.

Annual refilling and maintenance of fire Extinguishers are carried out with the cooperation of
Department of Fire. Currently the department of fire “ Municipal council ,Colombo has been
prepairing a report regarding the issues of existing fire extinguishers and new requirement of the
university.

Annual training programmes for Drivers and Cleaners are conducted in order to increase the
knowledge on road traffic rules, regulations and safe driving. Accordingly a training program was
conducted for drivers and cleaners at Club Farm Bay Hotel , Marawila for year 2019.

University of Sri Jayewardenepura [78] Annual Report 2019



The Staff Development Centre has conducted the following Programmes for Academic and Non
Academic Staff during the Year 2019. Head/Medical Education & Health Sciences, Senior Lecturer,

Dr.R.B.Marasinghe continued to be the Director/Staff Development Centre, on part time basis.

Workshops conducted during the Year -2019 under the Staff Development Centre are given below.

N
© Programme Date Title Target Group
07.01.2019 Non Academic Staff of the
14.01.2019 USJP Conducted by
) Training 21.01.2019 = Tamil Language Training Mr.P.M.Mohamed Firthous
programme 28.01.2019  Programme (Written) Resource Person
11.02.2019 Tamil Language Training
Programme
09.01.2019 Academic Staff and
) 6.01.2019 Administrative Staff of the
Tain ) '01'201 Tamil L Traing USJP Conducted By
) raining 3.01.2019 amil Language Training Me.P.M.Mohamed Firthous
programme 29.01.2019  Programme (Speech) Resource Person
06.02.201
20.02 2013 Tamil Language Training
o Programme
25.01.2019 Certificate Course in Teaching
01'02'2019 in Higher Education (CTHE) = For Probationary Assistant
3 06 Months o 8.02.2019 2018 batch Lecturers and Senior
Course T Lecturers
15.02.2019
Toastmasters Community
05.01.2019 | Club Meetings
09.01.2019
19.01.2019
23.01.2019 | Area Context
02.02.2019
13.02.201
Toast masters 3 o
. 16.02.2019
4 community 27.02.2019
Club o
02.03.2019
13.03.2019
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Programme

Date

16.03.2019
27.03.2019
30.03.2019
10.04.2019
08.05.2019
01.06.2019
12.06.2019
15.06.2019
26.06.2019
29.06.2019
10.07.2019
13.07.2019
24.07.2019
27.07.2019
07.08.2019
21.08.2019
24.08.2019
07.09.2019
16.10.2019
19.10.2019
23.10.2019
20.11.2019
23.11.2019
27.11.2019
18.12.2019

Title

Target Group

06 Months
5 Course

21.06.2019
28.06.2019
12.07.2019
26.07.2019
09.08.2019
23.08.2019
06.09.2019
25.10.2019
01.11.2019
08.11.2019
22.11.2019
29.11.2019
27.12.2019

Certificate Course in Teaching
in Higher Education (CTHE)

For Probationary Assistant
Lecturers and Senior
Lecturers
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Programme

Date

Title

Target Group

Clinical
Training

20.02.2019

Clinical Training Programme

For Extended Faculty
Members of Colombo South
Teaching Hospital, Sri
Jayewardenepura General
Hospital & Homagama Base
Hospital regarding the
Clinical Training Programme
for the FMS Medical Students

7 Workshop

29.07.2019

File Management and Office
Procedures and Financial
Regulations &Procedures

For Management Assistants
and Allied Grades of Faculty
of Applied Sciences,
Conducted by

1. Mr. K.G.Britto, Registrar,
USJP
2.Mrs.K.T.C.Priyangani
Bursar,USJP

8 Workshop

09.08.2019

File Management & Office
Procedures and Financial
Regulations & Procedures

For Management Assistants
and Allied Grades of Faculty
of Engineering

1. Mr. K.G.Britto, Registrar,
USJP
2.Mrs.K.T.C.Priyangani
Bursar,USJP

Counselling
Programme

06.08.2019
20.08.2019
03.09.2019

Counselling Programme

For the all Non Academic
Staff of The USJP

Conducted by Dr.Jayamal De
Silva ,Head Dept of
Psychiatry,USJP

Dr.Kasun MO/Psychiatry,
Colombo South Teaching
Hospital
Dr.D.L.U.Amarakoon.Lectur
er,Dept .of Psychiatry,USJP

10 = Workshop

03.09.2019

Fix Assets Register and
Inventory Management
System

For All Deans, Head of the
Departments ,All Executive
Staff and Inventory Clarks,
Resource Person

University of Sri Jayewardenepura
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Programme

Date

Title

Target Group

| Mrs. Hiripitiya

Deputy Bursar,
Finance Division

Professional
Development
Training
Programme

11

28.10.2019
29.10.2019

For the all Non Academic
Staff of The Maintenance
division USJP at Commando
Regiment Training School
Uva Kudaoya

Workshop/

12
Training

11.11.2019
12.11.2019

Professional Development
Training Programme

For the all Non Academic
Staff of The Welfare division
USJP at Laya Leisure ,
Kukuleganga

Resource person
Dr.Mrs.P.A.N.S.Anuradha,
Prof.Gamini Ranasinghe
Senior Prof.Hemantha
Kottawaththa,

Mrs.Thushari Malkanthi,

Workshop/

1
3 Training

11.11.2019
12.11.2019

Professional Development
Training Programme

For the Excecutive Officers
USJP at Gunners’ Club
Minneriya

Resource person
Mr.K.G.Britto Registrar USJP

Workshop/

1
4 Training

26.11.2019
27.11.2019

Professional Development
Training Programme

For the Non Academic Staff
of Applied Sciences USJP at
Club Hotel Dolphin ,Waikkal
Resourse Persons
Mr.K.G.S.R.Jayewardena,Car
eer Advisor,Career Guidance
Unit,USJPand Prof.Saman
Chadra
Ranasinghe,Department of
Languages and Cultural
Studies & Performing Arts
,USJP
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Programme

Date

Title

Target Group

15

Workshop/
Training

06.12.2019
07.12.2019

Professional Development
Training Programme

For the Non Academic Staff
of Administrative Building
and Physical Education
Division and Marshals of
USJP at Club Palm Bay
Hotel, Marawila

Resource person
Mr.K.G.Britto Registrar USJP

16

Workshop/
Training

08.12.2019
09.12.2019

Professional Development
Training Programme

For the Security Staff (Group
1) of USJP at Club Palm Bay
Hotel, Marawila
Resource Persons
1) Prof.Saman Chandra
Ranasinghe
Department of
Languages, Cultural
Studies & Performing
Arts
University of
Jayewardenepura.
2) Mr.Chamil
Jayasekara
Head of Training
Imperial Fire and
Safety
3) Mr.K.A.R.Sanjeewapi
ya ,Sub Inspector
Police Station
Mirihana

17

Workshop/
Training

12.12.2019
13.12.2019

Professional Development
Training Programme

For the Non Academic Staff
of The Faculty of Medical
Sciences and Allied Health
Sciences of USJP at Club
Palm Bay Hotel, Marawila
Mr.K.G.S.R.K.Jayawardane
Career Advisor/Career
Guidance Unit

University of Sri Jayewardenepura

[83]

Annual Report 2019




Programme

Date

Title

Target Group

University of Sri
Jayewardenepura

18

Workshop/
Training

13.12.2019
14.12.2019

Professional Development
Training Programme

For the Drivers of USJP at
Club Palm Bay Hotel,
Marawila Dr.A.P.N,de
S.Abhayasundara

Senior Lecturer

Dept of Sociology and
Anthropology
W.W.Jayarathna

Inspector of Police
Divisional Traffic OIC

Nugegoda

19

Workshop/
Training

14.12.2019
15.12.2019

Professional Development
Training Programme

For the Security Staff (Group
IT) of USJP at Club Palm Bay
Hotel,Marawila

Mr.Chamil Jayasekara

Head of Training

Imperial Fire and Safety
Mr.K.A.R.Sanjeewapiya

Sub Inspector

Police Station Mirihana

20

Workshop/
Training

14.12.2019
15.12.2019

Professional Development
Training Programme

For the Medical Staff and the

Non academic Staff of Health
Centre of USJP at Club Palm

Bay Hotel, Marawila

University of Sri Jayewardenepura
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' No |

21

Programme

Workshop/
Training

Date

16.12.2019
17.12.2019

Title

Professional Development
Training Programme

Target Group

For the Faculty of
Technology of USJP at Club
Palm Bay Hotel,Marawila
Mr.K.G.Britto

Registrar

University of Sri
Jayewardenepura.

22

Workshop/
Training

16.12.2019
17.12.2019

Professional Development
Training Programme

For the Faculty of
Humanities and Social
Sciences USJP at Laya
Leisure, Kukuleganga.
Mr.Ranga Pallewela

Resource Person

University of Sri Jayewardenepura
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The Centre for IT Services (CITS) is the core entity of the University which manages the Campus-wide IT
Infrastructure, Internet & Email facilities, Server Administration and maintains e-Services & Applications
while providing IT Technical Support and Solutions for university students and staff. Apart from these,
CITS develops and maintains the university websites and is also fortified with a fully equipped media team.

Mr. Harsha Munasinghe led the CITS as the Information Systems Manager and Mr. Vajira Premadasa &
Mr. Nethsiri Jayaweera served as Computer Instructors. Mr. Suresh Nanayakkara was the Assistant
Network Manager. Ms. Ashela Nilmini & Mr. Ranuka Edirisuriya served as Computer Programmers while
Mr. Upul Weeratunge, Ms. Dinithi Weerasinghe and Mr. S.K. Guruge served as Technical Officers. Ms.
H.M.M.S. Nisansala was the Management Assistant and Mr. Bandara Yapa contributed as Lab Attendant.
Works Aid Mr. Shantha Kumara and several temporary employees served at the CITS, Media Centre and
Web Team to accomplish the tasks throughout the year.

The core services provided by the Centre for IT Services are as follows.

e Managing the University E-Mail Service

e Managing and Providing the Internet Facility

e Server Administration and maintenance of e-Services & Applications

e Designing & Developing Management Information Systems

e Software Development and e-Solutions

e Maintain the Private Cloud System

e Development and Maintenance of the Fiber Optic Backbone

e Designing & Implementing Local Area Networks

e Development and Maintenance of the Wi-Fi Network

e Development and Maintenance of the University Web Sites

e Providing Digital Media Coverage and Media Productions

e Overseeing the Installation, Operation and Maintenance of the Intercom System
e Administrating the Installation, Operation and Maintenance of the VoIP System
e Troubleshooting and Maintenance of ICT Equipment

e Installation of Software and Providing Security Software

e Preparing Specifications and Technical Evaluations

e Conducting Special Training Programmes for University Staff

e  Assisting the University Staff for their ICT Requirements

e Providing Advisory Services and Technical Support for Students
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External Examinations Division of the University of Sri Jayewardenepura commenced in 1979 with the
commencement of the External Degree Programme in Bachelor of Commerce. Subsequently Bachelor of
Arts General External Degree Programme was commenced. In 1997 the General External Degree
programmes of B.Sc Business Administration and Public Administration were also introduced. The B.A
General External Degree and the B.Sc Business Administration General External Degree Programmes

have become very popular among the students.

According to the circular No 932 dated 15th October 2010 issued by the University Grants Commission,
the external examinations unit has been structurally changed as External Degrees & Extension Courses
Unit.

The Composition of the Management Committee of the External Degrees & Extension Courses Unit is as

follows.

[.  Vice Chancellor (Chairperson)

II.  Nominee from the UGC
III.  Two members appointed by the Council from among the UGC appointed members
IV.  Deans of Faculties (Deans of Faculties of Humanities & Social Sciences and Management Studies
& Commerce
V.  Members of Boards of Study
VI.  Registrar

VII.  Bursar
VIII.  Director of EDECU
IX. SAR/ EDECU
X. SAB/ EDECU

The External Degrees & Extension Courses Unit introduced following degree programmes under the new

syllabus from year 2014.

Faculty of Humanities & Social Sciences
e Bachelor of Humanities and Social Sciences (General) External Degree
e Bachelor of Arts in English (General) External Degree

e Bachelor of Social Sciences (General) External Degree in Environmental & Development
Studies

Faculty of Management Studies& Commerce
e B.Sc Business Administration (General) External Degree
e B.Sc Management (Public) General (External) Degree

e Bachelor of Commerce (General) External Degree
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Student enrollment of the year 2019 are as follows:

Bachelor of Arts (General) External Degree -1593
Bachelor of Arts in English (General) External Degree - 308
Bachelor of Social Sciences (General) External Degree in Environmental & - 105
Development Studies

B.Sc Management (Public) General (External) Degree - 804
Bachelor of Commerce (General) External Degree - 826

Number of students feedback Seminars and Examinations conducted for each degree program during the

year 2019 as follows.

Degree Program

Number of Seminars

Number of Examinations

Bachelor of Humanities and Social

Social Sciences (General) External

Degree

02
(2017 Batch- 2™ stage,
2018 Batch 1 stage,
2019 Batch - 1% stage)

03
(2014 Batch - part III -New
syllabus - March/April, 2019

2015 Batch - part II- New
syllabus - November/ December
2019,

2017 Batch - part I New syllabus
- July 2019)

Bachelor of Arts (General) External
Degree (Old syllabus)

03

(First Examination in Arts
External - June,2019

Part I — Old/ New syllabus -
February/March, 2019

Part IT - June 2019)

External Degree in Environmental

&Development Studies

(2015 Batch — Part III
2017 Batch — Part II

Bachelor of Arts in English (General) 03 02
ExternalDegree (2015 Batch — Part III (2015 Batch - Part IT — January/
2018 Batch - Part I February 2019
2019 Batch - Part I) 2017 Batch - Part I — February/
March 2019)
Bachelor of Social Sciences (General) 04 01

(2018 Batch - Part I - September
2019)

University of Sri Jayewardenepura
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2018 Batch — Part II
2019 Batch — Part )

B.Sc Management (Public) General
(External) Degree

03

(2018 Batch — Part I
2017 Batch - Part IT
2019 Batch - PartI)

03
(2014/2015 Batch - Part II
Repeat - January 2019
2015 Batch — Part ITI - Old/New
syllabus — January 2019
2019 Batch - Part I - Old/New
syllabus — November 2019)

Bachelor of Commerce (General)

External Degree

03

(2017 Batch — Part II
2018 Batch - Part I
2019 Batch - PartI)

03
2015 Batch - Part III - New
syllabus — February 2019
2018 Batch - Part I - New
syllabus — November 2019
PartI, PartII, Part III — Old New
syllabus- February 2019

B.Sc Business Administration (General)
External Degree

02
(2016 Batch — Part III
2017 Batch - Part II)

02
(2016 Batch — Part IT - June/July
2019

2017 Batch - Part I — February
2019)

Presently, the number of students who have registered in the EDECU is 98852 and the following staff

members are assigned to designated to service them.

Director
Senior Assistant Registrar
Senior Assistant Bursar

Administrative Coordinator

Staff Management Assistant
Management Assistant
Computer Programmer
Works Aid

10. Machine Operator

RN A o

University of Sri Jayewardenepura

Senior Staff Management Assistant — 04

-03
- 16
-01
-05
-01
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Under the direction of the Librarian Dr. (Mrs) Nayana Wijayasundara, 01 Deputy Librarian, 04 Senior
Assistant Librarians, 07 Assistant Librarians, 01 Assistant Network Manager and 54 non-academic staff
were carried out duties in the library.

During the year, 978 books were purchased at a cost of Rs. 13,195,286.65 from the annual allocation.
Forty Six foreign and local periodicals were purchased at a cost of Rs. 6,721,375.25. Three electronic
databases; JSTOR (at a cost of Rs. 1,152,226.25), Research4life (at a cost of Rs. 270,575.60) and SCOPUS
(at a cost of Rs. 3,383,617.95) were purchased. One thousand five hundred fifty-one books (valued at Rs.
5,942,698.54), 244 foreign and local periodicals (valued at Rs. 72,521.60) and 385 palm leaf manuscripts
were received as donations and 48 periodicals were received on exchange basis.

In addition, access to 03 other electronic databases; Emerald, Taylor & Francis, Oxford Journals including
Medical Handbooks Collection was provided to patrons through the UGC consortium, CONSAL. Also
Document Delivery process through British Library was provided through CONSAL for the readers.
During the year 2019, 1534 book titles and 2525 copies were processed by the Processing Division and
faculty libraries. The amount consisted of 337 to Ceylon Room (CR), 388 to Permanent Reference (PR),
316 to Scheduled Reference (SR) and 1484 to Lending (L) books. About 3941 readers were registered
including Academic Staff (77), Non-academic staff (60), Undergraduate students (3637) and Diploma and
Postgraduate students (167) during the year 2019. With that the total number of registered users was
18,117.

The rate of fulfillment of Inter-library loan requests was 88.8%. Laptop lending service was used by 944
users in 2019. We have 30 laptop computers allocated for this service.

Total number of entries in the Scholar Bank (Institutional repository) is 7764 and the database of

newspaper articles consists of 2235 selected newspaper articles by the end of 2019.

Thirteen workshops were conducted by the academic staff of the library; for the undergraduates in order
to enhance the awareness of information resources and information literacy skills.
During the year 2019, 02 PhD, 06 Masters degree, 06 degree and 07 diploma studies were carried out by

the library staff.
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STRUCTURE & FUNCTIONS OF THE INTERNAL AUDIT DIVISION.

Internal Audit Division is headed by the Deputy Internal Auditor. Audit program for the year is prepared
and submitted to the University Council for its approval with recommendation of the Audit Committee.

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The Audit committee appointed by and responsible to the Council Comprises of three Independent Non
Executive members of Council.

It was headed by the Chairman who was the Council member of the University in the Non-Executive
capacity and consisted of two other Council members in the Non-Executive capacity. In the year 2019
committee had met 4 (Four) times and discussed following important areas;

a) Reviewing the existing systems, procedures and any deviations. Submitted suggestions to the
Councils for its approval to improve the existing systems.

b) Reviewing the queries raised by the Auditor General and the answers given by the relevant head
of the Department. Matters were discussed with relevant head of the Dept. in order to ensure
correct implementation and avoid repetition of such errors.

c) Internal Audit reports are reviewed and discussed with management with view to further
strengthening the Internal Control environment within the university.

PRE AUDITING

Pre audit was carried out in the following areas in order to ensure the accuracy of payments.

. Release of Provident Fund

. Payment of Gratuity

. Application for the Payment of Pension
. Payment for Construction

. Accuracy of Calculation of Bond Value
° Payment on Contractual Agreements

INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS

Following internal audit reports had been issued to the Vice Chancellor with copy to the Auditor General
and submitted to the Audit Committee.

o The report of research grants.

. The report of payment vouchers of development funds in faculty of Humanities & Social Science.
. The report of Cleaning service contract payment

o The report of construction payments for the rewiring on Sumangala building.
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. The report of miscellaneous advance payment in 2018.

. The report on Updating of personal & leave files of Academic staff who was taken study leave
under the surety bond.
. The report of the subsidy for the canteen owners.
° The report of courses in Post graduate institute.
. The report of preparing bank reconciliation
. The report of the auction according to the Annual Board of Survey in 2017.
J The report of final account as at 31% December in 2018.
. The Internal audit report related to Post graduate Institute of Management affairs in 2019.

Construction Project List 2019

No Contract

1 Supply, Installation of Laboratory Furniture at the Dept. of Family Medicine, FMS

2 Renovation of Registrar’s Office new Floor Area — Part I

3 Air Conditioning of Administration Building Extension

4 Improvement to Examination Division

5 Air Conditioning of Government Audit Division

6 Renovation of Former Internal Audit Branch

7 Renovation of External Finance Division

8 Improvement of Registrar’s Office Main Entrance Door

9 Improvement to New Canteen at the Administration Building Extension

10 Construction of Concrete drain with ramp at the Gnaneswara Building

. Supply, Installation, Testing and Commissioning of Transformers for Faculty of
Technology, Pitipana

12 Refurbishment of Centre for Gender Equity and Equality

13 Improvement of Walking path to New Commerce Building Entrance,

14 Construction of Common Facilities Complex

15 Concrete Platform for Existing Iron Security Huts

16 Repair and Refurbishment of 3" and 4" Floors of the main Library Building, FAHS

17 Renovation of Physical Education Division Office

18 Improvement of Academic & Publication Division

19 Renovation of the Buildings at Botany Department

20 Construction of Retaining Wall in front of the Administration Building Extension

21 Replacing the Damaged tempered glass casing of the Observation Lift

22 Renovation and Improvement of Center for Gender Equity and Equality GEE Center

23 Proposed Roof Structure for Entrance Gates

24 Renovation and Improvement of two Numbers of Wash rooms at Administration
Building
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25 Construction of Building for Storage at FOE

26 Balance work for the Green Cafeteria

27 Disable access to the Administration Building

28 Construction of Concrete road near to the Boundary Wall at the administration
building

29 Supply and fixing of Exhaust fan to Driver's Wash room

30 Strengthen Existing Outdoor Fixed Glass Partition in top floor at Wijerama Building

31 Renovation and Improvement to Department of Criminology and Criminal Justice

32 Construction of 02 Nos Entrance Gates at Two Sub Wardens Quarters

33 Construction of Stores for Academic Establishment Division

34 Glass Partition for Staff area in side the green cafeteria

35 VRV type Air conditioning system for Anatomy Auditorium

36 Improvement of External Environment of the New Wimaladharma Hostel

37 Construction of 08 new Toilet set for the old Wimaladharma Hostel

38 Establishment of new entrance to the FOT

39 Partitioning of Rawatawatta Premises

40 Modifiying Outer face appearance refurbishment works of the Animal House

41 Renovation and Improvement of Green House

42 Supply and installation of Air Conditioners for Soratha Building
Supply & Laying Sand Blast Stickers for the existing aluminium glass partition of

43 NAE, Supplies Division, DIA,
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Senior Professor 20 10 30

Professor 48 33 81

Associate Professor 5 4 9

Senior Lecturer Gr.I 79 95 174

857 169
Senior Lecturer Gr.II 98 100 198 3 3 6
13 19 32 17 10 27
Lecturer
Lecturer (Probationary) 46 71 117
3 11 14

Temporary Lecturer

Temporary Asst. Lecturer/ 351 69 182 251 100
Tutor/Demonstrator/Instructor

Librarian ! 1 1

Deputy Librarian ! ! !

Senior Assistant Librarian 3 3
Grade I

Senior Assistant Librarian 12 ) ) )
Grade II

Assistant Librarian 3 4 7

Temporary Research

. porary 14 3 4 7 7
Assistant
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Registrar ! ! !
Bursar ! ! !
Deputy Registrar 3 3 6 1
Senior Assistant Registrar 20 ! 4 > ! 0
Assistant Registrar 4 7
Deputy Bursar 2 2
Senior Assistant Bursar 14 3 4 7 ! 0
Assistant Bursar 4 4
. 1 1 1
Deputy Internal Auditor
Senior Assistant ) . )
Registrar/Legal Affairs
Assistant Registrar/ Library ) .
Services
Administrative Staff sub total . 39 9 26 35 3 1
Other Executive Staff
IS Manager ! ! !
. . . 1 1 1
Director / Physical Education
Project Manager ! 0 !
Chief Marshal ! 0 !
Deputy Chief Marshal ! 0 !
. . 1 1 1
Chief Security Officer
Works Engineer ! ! !
Workshop Engineer 2 ! ! !
Curator 2 ! ! ! 0
Museum Curator 2 ! ! 2
Statistical Officer 2 2
1 1
Personal Secretary
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Senior Medical Officer / 6 ) 3
. Medical Officer
Dental Surgeon
Instructor (Computer 8
Technology) - Grade I
19 4
Instructor (Computer 5
Technology) - Grade II
. e s 1 1
Assistant Statistician - Grade I
Assistant Network Manager 6 3 ! 2
. . 1 1
Instructor in Social Work
Career Guidance Councellors 4 ! 2 0
Programmer cum Systems 3 ) )
Analyst - Grade IT
Senior Instructor in English !
Instructor in English 21 ! 18
Instructor in Physical
Education - Grade I ;
Instructor in Physical 4 )
Education - Grade IT
Instructor 3 2
. 2 2
Gymnasium Instructor
Computer Programmer 8 4 3
L . 4 1
Scientific Assistant Grade II
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1 | Marshal 7 7 7 0
Sub Warden ( Full
2 . 14 5 7 12 2
Time )
3 Graduate Translator 1 0 1
Deputy Chief Security
1 1
4 Officer 0
5  Supply Officer 1 1 1 0
6  Works Supirintendent 3 0 3
. Works Supirintendent 6 3 3 3
(Civil)
8 Works Supirintendent ) ) ) 0
(Electrical)
Works Supirintendent
9 1 1 1 0
(Landscape)
10 Audit Assistant 5 1 4 5 0
11 = Management Assistant 301 74 223 297 3 1
> Management Assistant 8 5 3 8 o
(Book Keeping)
13 Management Assistant 5 . . ’ 3
(Shroff)
14 Management Assistant 8 5 5 3
(Store Keeping)
Telephone Operator
15 L 2 2 2 0
cum Receptionist
Library Information
16 . 34 15 15 30 4
Assistant
17 | Security Inspector 5 4 4 1
18 Sw1mm.1ng Pool ) o .
Supervisor
19 Craft Demonstrator ) 0 )
(Mechanical)
Craft Demonstrator
20 . 1 0 1
(Fitting)
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21 Craft Demonstrator ) 0 )
(Electrical)

- Works Supervisor 5 5 5 0
(Civil)

2 Works Supervisor 3 ) ) .
(Electrical)

2 Works Supervisor ) . . o
(Landscape)

25 Audio Visual Technical 5 . . .
Officer

26  Dental Nursing Officer 1 1 1 0

27  Draughtsman 4 1 1 3

28 | Nursing Officer 10 1 5 6 1 1 3

29  Pharmacist 4 3 1 4 0

30 | Physiotherapist 1 0 1

31  Public Health Inspector 2 2 2 0

32  Technical Officer 121 56 51 107 14

33  Technical Officer (ICT) 21 0 21

35 Technical Officer 4 ) . 3
(Civil)

36 Technical Officer 3 3 3 0
(Electrical)

37 Technical Officer 4 ) . 3
(Mechanical)
Technical Officer (X-

38 1 0 1
Ray/Dexa Scan)

39 | Driver 41 39 39 2

40 | Book Binder 2 2 2 0

41 | Electrician 9 9 9 0

42 | Carpenter 8 7 7 1

43 | Fitter 1 0 1

44 | Machinist 1 0 1

45 | Mason 8 8 8 0
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46 i Mechanic 1 1 1 0

47  Plumber 8 8 8 0

48 | Aluminium Fabricator 1 0 1

49 | Tinker Instead Welder 1 0 1

50 @ Welder 2 1 1 1

51 | Tractor Operator 1 1 1 0
Two Wheel Tractor

52 1 1 1 0
Operator

54  Gas Plant Operator 1 0 1

55 | Lab Attendant 103 79 24 103 0
Attendant Health

57 . 2 1 1 1
Service

58  Gymnasium Attendant 2 0 2
Lathe Machine

59 1 0 1
Operator

60 | Painter 3 2 2 1

61 | Polisher 2 2 2 0

62 | Pump Operator 1 1 1 0
Engi P

63 ngine Cume Pump ) ) . 0
Operator

64  Specimen Collector 2 0 1 1

65  Care Taker 2 1 1 1

66 | Cycle Orderly 1 0 1

67 | Gardner 2 2 2 0

68 | Groundsman 1 1 1 0
Health Service

69 18 12 12 6
Labourer

70 | Works Aid 220 205 13 218 2 0

71 Post-mortem Labourer 2 1 1 1
Office Machi

- ice Machine 8 8 g 0
Operator
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73 | Library Attendant 24 9 2 11 2 4 6 7

74 | Lorry Cleaner 2 2 2 0
Lowan Mower
75 1 0 1
Operator
76  Security Guard 88 55 55 18 18 15
77 ¢ Storeman 2 1 1 1
78 Swimming Pool ) ) ) 0
Attendent
Total 1173 658 356 1014 23 8 31 128

INTRODUCTION

The Research Council of the University of Sri Jayewardenepura (RC-USJP) was established in the year
2016 with the broad view of facilitating conduct of high quality research, promoting dissemination of
knowledge generated nationally and internationally and contributing significantly for the national
development. The activities of the RC-USJP are aimed at encouraging the academics, executive officers
and students of the University to engage in high quality research. RC-USJP aims to achieve this through
facilitating development of infrastructure, making the funds available for research, facilitating
dissemination of knowledge and encouraging national and international collaboration which will induce
development of a research culture in the university. RC-USJP also aims at encouraging researchers
through recognizing and rewarding their work by research award system

MISSION

Foster research and development through widening the access to funds and infrastructure by facilitation
and creation of an enabling atmosphere to achieve excellence and successful research and development
based advancements to uplift the quality of the environmental, social, economic bases, while nurturing
sustainable partnerships with local and international stakeholder institutions by the research community
at USJP for the well-being of the present and future generations.

OBJECTIVES

L. Promote research that has national and international significance catering national and global
requirements

2. Cultivate a conducive research culture in the university
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Establish self-sustainable centres of excellence in research

Facilitate researchers to collaborate and perform quality research

Enhance the skills of the researchers

Smoothen the research process

Facilitate researchers in disseminating their knowledge nationally and internationally

Promote industry links and facilitate research consultancies

Promote high quality student research

Improve the effectiveness of research operations at RC-USJP member institutions

Establish and maintain liaison with other organizations concerned with research and its
administration

OFFICIALS

Executive Chairman Vice Chancellor

Co-Chairpersons : Snr. Prof. Pathmalal Manage
Prof. Pradeepa Jayawardane

General Secretary (Board of Management of Research Centres) : Dr. A R Ajward

Advisory Board (The Deans of the Faculties)

Prof. Shirantha Heenkenda - Dean, Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences

Snr. Prof. Lalin Karunanayake- Dean, Faculty of Applied Sciences

Dr. U Anura Kumara - Dean, Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce
Prof. Surangi Yasawardene - Dean, Faculty of Medical Sciences

Snr. Prof. M M Pathmalal - Dean, Faculty of Graduate Studies

Dr. Nilmini Liyanage - Dean (Acting), Faculty of Technology

Dr. KM C Konthasinghe - Dean, Faculty of Engineering

Prof. D M S Fernando - Dean (Acting), Faculty of Allied Health Sciences

Faculty Representatives

Prof. Shamini Prathapan - Representative, Faculty of Medical Sciences

Snr. Prof. RL S Fernando - Representative, Faculty of Management Studies & Commerce
Prof. Y K Weerakoonbanda - Representative, Faculty of Management Studies & Commerce
Prof. Charmalie Nahallage - Representative, Faculty of Humanities & Social Sciences

Dr. Sujeewa Hettiarachchi - Representative, Faculty of Humanities & Social Sciences

Dr. M G C Padumadasa - Representative, Faculty of Applied Sciences

Dr. AR Ajward - Representative, Faculty of Management Studies & Commerce
Dr. U K Wijenayake - Representative, Faculty of Engineering

Dr. Sujeewa Hettiarachchi - Representative, Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences
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Dr. S D Udayanga - Representative, Faculty of Technology

Dr. Asanka Weerasekara - Representative, Faculty of Technology
Dr. N R Samaranayake - Representative, Faculty of Allied Health Sciences
Prof. KR D de Silva - Director, World Class University Project
Dr. R B Marasinghe - Director, Staff Development

Snr. Prof. P P M Jayaweera - On Invitation

e Registrar - Mr. K.G. Britto
e Librarian - Dr. W A N D Wijesundara
e Bursar - Mrs. KT C Priyangani

University Research Grants

NUMBER OF THE UNIVERSITY RESEARCH GRANTS AWARDED (2015-2019)

Faculty 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Humanities & Social 05 10 08 12 09
Sciences
Applied Sciences 16 31 32 36 27
Management Studies & 13 04 10 07 08
Commerce
Medical Sciences 21 33 26 19 17
Allied Health Science - - - - 04
Technology - - 06 01 07
Engineering - - 01 - 01
Library - - - - 01
Total 55 78 84 75 74
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FUNDS ALLOCATED FOR UNIVERSITY RESEARCH GRANTS (2015-2019 RS. MILLION)

Faculty 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Humanities & Social 7.24 19.51 13.67 17.37 15.42
Sciences
Applied Sciences 28.07 63.22 78.29 85.13 60.69
Management Studies & 8.92 3.23 9.06 3.33 9.28
Commerce
Medical Sciences 24.95 45.53 40.63 47.03 35.21
Allied Health Science - - - - 7.41
Technology - - 19.21 1.49 19.18
Engineering - - 2.14 - 2.46
Library - - - - 0.53

Total 69.18 131.49 163 154.35 150.18

EXPECTED RESEARCH PAPER PUBLICATIONS FROM UNIVERSITY RESEARCH GRANTS

.. 2016 2017 2018 2019

Publicat 2015 Grant

ublication > Grants Grants Grants Grants Grants
Minimum of 1 Indexed Journal
Publicati

ublication (Full paper) and/ 4 12 17 - )1
or Patent
Minimum of 1 Any Indexed
Journal Publication (Full
paper) or 2 Publications (Full 17 32 19 24 23
Paper) Peer reviewed Journals
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Minimum of 1 Publication

(Full paper) in peer Reviewed

Journal or 2 Conference 34 34 48 29 30
Proceedings

Total 55 78 84 75 74
Published By 2018 By 2019 By 2020 By 2021 By 2022

OVERSEAS TRAVEL GRANTS (OTG) AWARDED - 2019

Faculty No. of Total Amount (Rs.) No. of
Grants Communications

Humanities & Social Sciences 1 250,000.00 1
Applied Sciences 2 500,000.00 3
Management Studies & Commerce 32 7,671,000.00 34
Medical Sciences 12 2,416,396.01 14
Technology 5 750,000.00 5
Engineering 1 250,000.00 1
Allied Health Science

5 1,063,329.00 6
Total 58 12,900,725.01 60
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SPECIAL OVERSEAS TRAVEL GRANTS AWARDED - (16TH ICBM -2019)

Faculty No. of Grants Total Amount (Rs.)
2 0,000.00
Humanities & Social Sciences 4
1 250,000.00
Applied Sciences >
26 ,300,000.00
Management Studies & Commerce >3
0,000.00
Medical Sciences 4 9>
Technology ) )
PAYMENT FOR OPEN ACCESS FEES (2016-2019) * (US$) 175.54
2016 2017 2018 2019
Faculty
No. of Total No. of Total No. of Total No. of Total
Grants = Amount | Grants | Amount | Grants = Amount .| Grants | Amount ($)
($) ($) ($)
Humanities &
Social Sciences . - - - 2 500.00 - .
Applied
Sciences 3 940.00 3 970.00 17 5,274.34 9 573,178.00
Management
Studies & 850.00 1 300.00 4 927.70 - -
Commerce 3
Medical 3 1,350.00 1 499.00 5 1862.99 4 349,500.00
Sciences
Technology 12 118,045.00
Total 9 3,140.00 5 1,769.00 28 8565.03 25 1,040,723.00
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Language Editing Fees (2016-2018) *(US$) 159.54

2016 2017 2018 2019
Faculty
No. of Total No. of No. of Total Total No. of Total
Grants = Amount | Grants @ Grants Amount Amount | Grants Amount
($) ($) ($) ()
Humanities & - - - - - - - -
Social Sciences
Applied Sciences 2 500.00 - 2 48219.37 - 2 48219.37
Management - - - 3 26786.00 - 3 26786.00
Studies &
Commerce
Medical Sciences - - - - - - - -
Total 2 500.00 - 5 75005.37 - 5 75005.37

RESEARCH CENTRES

Twenty two Research Centres currently operate under the Research Council. These centres have been

founded within the respective Faculties by committed and enthusiastic academics with strong research
backgrounds. With the establishment of the RC-USJP, all such centres have been brought under its

purview, creating a common research and development innovation platform for the convergence and

cooperation.

The Research Centres are as follows:

Research Centre

Director

1 Centre for Water Quality and Algae Research

Snr. Prof. M.M.Pathmalal

2 Centre for Kidney Research (CKD - Research)

Prof. ]. K.P. Wanigasuriya

3 Centre for Dengue Research (CDR)

Prof. G.N. Malavige

Interdisciplinary Centre for Innovation in
Biotechnology and Neuro Science

Prof. Ranil De Silva
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5 Centre for Multidisciplinary Research Dr.H.A.G.Sujeewa

p Centre for Management Studies and Prof Y K. Weerakoon Banda
Commerce

7 Centre for Cancer Research (CCR) Dr. M.B.S. Senevirathne
Centre for Advanced Materials Research

8 Dr. KM.T.D ki
(NANOTECHNOLOGY) g Gunasekara

9 Centre for Biotechnology Prof. B.G.D.N.K. De Silva

10  Center for Forestry and Environment Dr. S.M.C.U.P. Subasinghe

I Innovation centre for Robotics and Intelligent Dr. P. Ravindra S. de Silva
system

12 Apple Research and Development Centre Prof. R.G.N. Meegama

3 National Centre for Primary Care and Allergy Dr. J.M.K.C. Jeewandara
Research
Centre for Estate Management and Valuation,

14  Research and Professional development Dr. N.C. Wickramarachchi
Centre(EMVRPC)

15  Centre for Governance and Public Policy Snr. Prof. R.L.S. Fernando

% Plant Materials and Herbal Products Research Dr. M.G.C. Padumadasa
Centre

17 Centre for Ecosphere Resilience Research Dr. M.S. Vithanage
Non Communicable Diseases Research Centre

18 (NCDRC) Dr. B CV Senarathne

19 Centr'e for Mindfulness-based Research and Dr. Sanath Mahavithanage
Practices

20  Centre for Advanced Forensic Research Prof. Muditha Vidanapathirana

" ?élr\l/g; gor Marine Science and Technology Dr. RR M K P Ranatunga

Geophysics and Geodesy Research Centre
22 Dr. M. M. P. M. Fernando
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Research Awards 2018
List of Awards

Categories

Awards

1

An abstract published in local/foreign conference proceedings or symposium*

A full paper published in local/foreign conference proceedings *

A full paper published in an University Journal *

A full paper published in Refereed Journal (Non Index Journal)*

A full paper published in any index journal. (Any indexing service other than listed in
category 6 below)*

A full paper published in Indexed Journals. * Recognized Index Journals are listed at
http://www.isinet.com/journals under:

Science Citation Indexed Expanded (™) (Web of Science)
Social Sciences Citation Index® (Web of Science)

Arts and Humanities Citation Index (Web of Science)
Elsevier SCOPUS

Emerald Insight

o a0 o

Cabell’s International

Researchers having the highest citations for the year 2018

e To be considered for the category 7 awards the researcher should have an h index of 5 or

more
e Three awards per each faculty will be awarded

e 1 27 and 3" places will be awarded once in three years for the same candidate with
effect from 2016

Researchers having the highest h-index for the year 2018

e To be considered for the category 8 awards the researcher should have an h index of 5 or

more
e Three awards per each faculty will be awarded

e 1% 2™ and 3™ places will be awarded once in three years for the same candidate with
effect from 2016
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Researcher having Highest Citation Impact (based on the citations for 2018,2017 and 2016)

9
e One award per each Faculty
Departments having Highest Cumulative Citations for the year
10
e Three awards per each Faculty
Early Career Researcher award
e H-Index should be 5 or more than 5
e Senior Lecturer Grade II
e Researcher has to be less than 40 years by the deadline for Research Award Applications
11 e Corresponding author of the published article
e University of Sri Jayewardenepura should be the corresponding authors affiliation
e Award will be given to the candidate who has the highest cumulative impact factor for
the full papers published in Index Journals (SCI/SSCI/AHCI)
e University email address should be on the research article
Vice Chancellor’s award (Follow CVCD guidelines) Applicants has to be in permanent
12 service at University of Sri Jayewardenepura for last five years
e No faculty member may receive the award more than once every five years.
13 Journals published in the university
14  Conference proceedings published by University
15  Researchers who have obtained external research grants (Faculty vice)
16 Emeritus Professors (Researcher having h- index above 10 or more)
. Researchers having three or more publications along with an outcome of PhD. /MPhil.
7 (New)
18  Authors of top 5 research papers having the highest citation with US]JP affiliation (New)
19 Winners of Presidential Award
20  Researchers having published 5 or more than 5 full papers in recognized indexed journals

* All the Publications should have the name of the University of Sri Jayewardenepura as the author’s

Institutional Affiliation.
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The University of Sri Jayewardenepura being a public institution, has to exercise its responsibility to
maintain its quality and standards. Quality assurance is the means by which a university can guarantee
with confidence and certainty that standards of its awards and quality of its education provision and
knowledge generation are being maintained.

In this context, the Centre for Quality Assurance (CQA) of the University is responsible for carrying out
the quality assurance activities and coordinating these activities in line with the national quality assurance
framework laid down by the Quality Assurance Council (QAC) of the University Grans Commission
(UGC). Although, maintaining the expected standards of quality assurance in the University is a massive
task, the Director/ CQA of the University, Senior Professor Samanthi Senaratne, is working on part time
basis, to fulfill the academic and administrative tasks involved with the CQA.

The activities of CQA during the year 2019, are stated below.

1. Institutional Review:

The University received the Final Review Report of the Institutional Review (IR) submitted by the review
team on 02" October 2018, after a long delay. Upon receipt, the report was carefully scrutinized and found
that the review team had not given a fair hearing to most of the responses that USJP has made to the Draft
Review Report. Since, USJP did not agree with certain contents of the report, and was of the view that it
should not enter public domain until those disagreeing issues are sorted out. Therefore, a letter was sent
to the Chairman/UGC, by the Vice Chancellor on 26™ October, 2018, requesting to advice the QAC to
refrain from publishing this document.

A letter was received on 19" December, 2018 (which had been written on 11" December, 2018) from the
Chairman/UGC, requesting detailed response of USJP to the IR Final Review Report.

Accordingly, CQA prepared a detailed response to the ‘Final Institutional Review Report’ submitted by
the Review Team (RT). USJP response was presented in the form of a report consisting of 90 pages by
explaining the reasons for disagreement with the marks allocated by the RT for 54 standards under Criteria
1 to 10 of the Institutional Review. This report also elaborated the specific supporting evidences that were
placed for the scrutiny of the RT under each standard. This Report was submitted to the Director/QAC
through the Chairman/UGC on 12.02.2019.

2. Programme Review:

(i) Programme Review (PR) of Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce (FMSC):

Twelve PRs of the FMSC were conducted during the period of November, 2018 to January, 2019. The
scores received by each study programme of FMSC with the departments are given below in the order in
which these reviews were conducted.
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SN Degree Programme Department Score | Grade
1 B.Sc. Business Dept. of Business 81.0 A
Administration (Special) Administration
Degree
2 B.Sc. Management (Public) Dept. of Public 82.0 A
(Special) Degree Administration
3 | B.Sc. Estate Management and | Dept. of Estate 80.1 A
Valuation (Special) Degree Management and
Valuation
4 B.Sc. Finance (Special) Dept. of Finance 84.0 A
Degree
5 B.Sc. Business Dept. of Business 86.0 A
Administration (Business Economics
Economics) (Special) Degree
6 B.Sc. Marketing Management | Dept. of Marketing 90.3 A
(Special) Degree Management
7 B.Sc. Entrepreneurship Dept. of Entrepreneurship 85.0 A
(Special) Degree
8 B.Sc. Human Resource Dept. of Human Resources | 87.0 A
Management (Special) Management
Degree
9 B.Sc. in Business Information | Dept. of Information 81.22 A
Systems (Special) Degree Technology
10 | B.Com. (Special) Degree Dept. of Commerce 81.0 A
11 | B.Sc. Operations and Dept. of Decision Sciences 82.0 A
Technology Management
(Special) Degree
12 | B.Sc. Accounting (Special) Department of Accounting | 94.0 A
Degree
(i) Programme Review Faculty of Medical Sciences (FMS):
Self-Evaluation Report(SER):
FMS submitted their Self Evaluation Report (SER) for the PR on 30.04.2019.
Review Panel:
The following Review Panel was appointed by the QAC of US], for the PR of FMS.
SN | Name Discipline University
1 Prof. R.Pallegama Dental Science | University of Peradeniya
2 | Prof. S.S.Ranganathan Medicine University of Colombo
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3 Prof. M.L.M.C. Dissanayake Agricultural Sabaragamuwa University of
Science Sri Lanka
4 | Dr. U.Mampitiya Natural Science | Open University of Sri Lanka

(c) Review and the Score Obtained:

The PR of the FMS was conducted from 03rd to 06th September, 2019, and was awarded a ‘B’
Grade. The FMS prepared a response to the draft review report received in this respect and
submitted to the QAC of UGC on 06.11.2019. Director, CQA assisted the preparation of

responses to the draft Review Report. However, there was no change as to the B grade that was
awarded.

3. Policy Documents:
(i) Policy on Academic Accountability:

Policy Document on Academic Accountability prepared for the US] was submitted to the
University Senate and it was referred back for the comments of the faculties. As, only one Faculty

has sent their response, it could not be finalized. Hence, it was circulated again among all the
Faculties to obtain their observations.

Furthermore, to obtain the views of the faculties, a CQA meeting was convened, chaired by the Vice
Chancellor on 31.01.2019. The following points were highlighted in the document.

e Ethical Principles in academic work
e Ethical Principles in University Teaching
e Ethical Principles in Research
e Workload and Work Norms Model
e The Workload Formula
e Different types of workload
* Teaching Workload Weights
* Research and Development Workload Weights

* University and National Development Workload Weights

* Work Norms - Student Contact Hours according to Designations

It was discussed that whether there should be a fair distribution of teaching workload among the senior

academic staff members and the probationary lecturers. Then it was discussed whether to agree in
principle in a broad way.
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Finally, it was decided to include only the areas to be focused under each aspect dealt with the
documents on Ethics and Academic Accountability. These main areas were indicated in the
presentation done at the meeting. The Faculties were requested to decide the specific work norms.

(ii)) Policy on Gender Equity:

Policy on Gender Equity of the University was submitted to the 376" Meeting of the Senate held on
31.10.2019.

4. INQAAHE and APQN Conferences:

CQA was involved with the organization of INQAAHE and APQN Conferences held in Sri Lanka.

INQAAHE 15th Biennial Conference 2019 orgniased under the theme ‘Quality Assurance,
Qualifications, and Recognition: Fostering Trust in a Globalized World’ was hosted by UGC, Sri Lanka,
was held at the Bandaranaike Memorial International Conference Hall (BMICH) from the 25th to 28th
of March, 2019.

APQN (The Asia-Pacific Quality Network) Annual Academic Conference (AAC) 2019  organized
under the theme ‘Quality Assurance in the Asia-Pacific Region: Insight into the Future’ w as held at
the Bandaranaike Memorial International Conference Hall (BMICH), from 28 to 31% March, 2019.

5. Management Guide for USJP:

The initial meeting to prepare a Management Guide for US] was held on 21.03.2019 with the
participation of the Registrar, Bursar and other senior officials of US]. The Quality Assurance (QA)
Consultant Prof. Kalyani Perera and Director/CQA, Senior Professor Samanthi Senaratne guided the
preparation of the Management Guide. This was followed by a several rounds of discussions in this
respect.

It was discussed that the Management Guide needs to be developed through a participatory approach
under the leadership of the Registrar of the University. To be successful, the administrative officers
attached to different administrative Departments, Divisions, Faculties, Centres and Units should
assume the responsibility and leadership in documenting administrative procedures relevant to their
respective departments, divisions and units.

It was further decided to appoint committees in each section and division, headed by the sectional
head and compile all the documents related to that section and send the compiled documents to the
Registrar for preparation of the Management Guide.

6. Strategic Plan for Quality Assurance:

Strategic Plan for Quality Assurance has been prepared under the guidance of the QA Consultant,
Prof. Kalyani Perera and it was presented by the Director/CQA at the QA meeting held on 27.06.2019.
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This meeting was attended by the Vice Chancellor, Dean/Faculty of Applied Sciences, Dean/Faculty
of Management Studies and Commerce, Dean/Faculty of Graduate Studies, QA Consultant, Director/
CQA, Faculty Coordinator/IQAC-FMS,  Faculty = Coordinator/IQAC-FHSS,  Faculty
Coordinator/IQAC-FGS, Faculty Coordinator/IQAC-FT, Representative/IQAC-FAS,
Representative/IQAC-FAHS, Head/Dept. of Entrepreneurship, Secretary/IQAU and Research
Assistant/IQAU.

The QA Strategic Plan was discussed under the following goals of the University Strategic
Plan.

Strategic Goal 1 — Learning and Education
Strategic Goal 2 — Research and Development
Strategic Goal 3 — People

Strategic Goal 4 — Infrastructure

Strategic Goal 5 - finance

AL S O

Strategic Goal 6 — Lifelong Community, Social Responsibility, National Development
and Global/Regional Impact

Quality Assurance Strategic Plan 2019-2024:

1. Strategic Goal 1: Learning and Education

Strategic Objective | Possible Strategies Activities
1.1. Improving | 1.1.1.  Internalize systematic outcomes- 1.1.1.1. Coordinate and organize
the quality based education approach for awareness and training
of curriculum development/review programmes with IQAC
education ensuring compliance with 1.1.1.2. Obtain national and
provision national reference points (SLQF, international accreditation
SBS), policy devices and 1.1.1.3. Introduce a credit transfer
professional standards. system and fallback option
1.1.2.  Strengthen the systematic learner- | 1.1.2.1. Coordinate and organize
centered and innovative awareness and training
approaches in education programmes with IQAC
1.1.2.2. Expand open education

resources and opportunities
through relevant authority

1.1.2.3. Address the needs of
differently-abled students
and staff through relevant
authority

1.1.2.4. Improve gender equity and
equality

1.1.3.  Strengthen work integrated 1.1.3.1. Guide devising appropriate
learning mechanisms through
Faculty CRDC
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1.1.4.  Strengthen incorporation of
research findings into education

1.1.4.1.

Implement in combination
with 1.1.1.1and 1.1.2.1

1.1.5.  Improve assurance of learning
through modified assessment
strategies

1.1.5.1.

1.1.5.2.

1.1.5.3.

Promote assessment
blueprinting through
awareness and training
programmes with IQAC
Devise appropriate
mechanisms to secure
external examiners,
moderator reports and re-
scrutiny through IQAC
Formulate a mechanism of
follow up the progress of
students and feedback

1.1.6.  Expand learning opportunities

1.1.6.1.

1.1.6.2.

Ensure expansion of
distance learning
opportunities (local and
international) through
administration

Ensure expansion of
international student intake
through administration

1.1.7.  Formalize Monitoring and
evaluation

1.1.7.1.

1.1.7.2.

1.1.7.3.

Device a policy and
mechanism through Senate
subcommittee on
monitoring and evaluation
of study programmes
through Senate
subcommittee, CRDC and
IQAC

Strengthen and use student
feedback, peer evaluation,
tracer studies and
stakeholder consultation
through MIS

Monitoring and evaluation
of progress through IQAC
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2. Strategic Goal 2: Research and Development

Strategic Objective | Possible Strategies Activities
2.1. Strengthen | 2.1.1.  Improving the research capability | 2.1.1.1. Implement through
ing the of the staff University Research Council
research 2.1.1.2. Implement through Faculty
culture Research Centers
2.1.2.  Expand the national level research | 2.1.2.1. Implement through Faculty
Research Centers
2.1.3.  Strengthen the staff student 2.1.3.1. Implement through Faculty
collaboration in research Research Centers and
Committees
2.1.4. Improve industrial collaboration | 2.1.4.1. Implement through Faculty
in research Research Centers and
Innovation and Venture
Creation Council
2.1.5.  Facilitate innovation and 2.1.5.1. Implement through
commercialization of research Innovation and Venture
Creation Council
2.1.6.  Improve the dissemination of 2.1.6.1. Promote research
research findings conferences and publications
2.1.6.2. Prepare relevant guidelines
for publication and
authorship
2.1.7.  Expand funding sources for 2.1.7.1. Implement through
research University Research Council
3. Strategic Goal 3: People
Strategic Objective Possible Strategies Activities
3.1. Ensure the 3.1.1.  Formulate Human 3.1.1.1. Adoption of the UGC scheme of
availability Resource Development recruitment, promotion and
of (HRD) plan and procedures retirement to meet the USJP
appropriate requirement by the administrative
quality and authorities
strength of 3.1.1.2. Strengthen the existing
staff mechanism to attract qualified and
skilled individuals for staff
positions by the administrative
authorities
3.1.1.3. Refine and strengthen the existing
staff development scheme as per
the HRD plan by the SDC
3.1.2.  Establish work normsand | 3.1.2.1. Develop broad guidelines for work
Code of Conduct for all norms by the IQAU (Academic
categories of staff Accountability document of the
UGCQC)
3.1.2.2. Development of Management
Guide for all major functions
through the Registrar
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3.1.2.3. Develop Code of Conduct for all
categories of staff through
Registrar and Deans through
consultative process
3.1.2.4. Formally establish a grievance
handling mechanism for staff
through relevant authorities
through consultative process
3.1.3.  Strengthen the 3.1.3.1. Develop a multi-dimensional
performance appraisal and performance appraisal and
recognition system rewarding scheme through HR
department and Administrative
staff
4. Strategic Goal 4: Infrastructure
Strategic Objective Possible Strategies Activities
4.1. Ensure the 4.1.1. Promote green conceptin | 4.1.1.1. Coordinate awareness
availability infrastructure development programmes through
appropriate Registrar and other relevant
of officials
infrastructure | 4.1.2.  Improve the learning 4.1.2.1. Strengthen and streamline
facilities environment (lecture Planning and Development
theatres, labs, field stations, Committee through
clinical training facilities, administration
MIS) 4.1.2.2. Develop/ Update Master
Infrastructure Development
Plan through administration
4.1.2.3. Prepare Annual Procurement
plan and implement with the
approval of Administration
4.1.3.  Strengthen the existing 4.1.3.1. Annual assessment of
learner support system requirements by Librarians,
(library, CITS, ELTU, OIC- ICT, Faculty computer
CGU, SDC) Centers and procurement
through administration
4.1.3.2. Preparation/ updating of
Event Calendar (regular and
on-demand) and requirements
by Director/CGU and
Director/SDC and
implementation
(procurement) with the
approval of administration
4.1.3.  Strengthen the existing 4.1.3.1. Annual assessment of
welfare (residential) and requirements and fulfillment
recreational facilities by Director and DR student
(prevention of ragging) welfare
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.1.5.  Ensure health and .1.5.1. Establish a policy on health
occupational safety at work and occupational safety at

work

.1.5.2. Develop guidelines with
assistance of experts by
respective faculties and
divisions

.1.5.3. Organize awareness
programmes by administration

.1.5.4. Provision of protective gear

. Strategic Goal 5: Finance

Strategic Objective | Possible Strategies Activities

5.1. Ensure 5.1.1.  Improve the efficiency and 5.1.1.1. Ensure the preparation of
adequate timeliness of finance annual finance (action) plan for
finance for utilization mechanism finance activities of the
core university by Finance division
functions 5.1.1.2. Ensure the preparation of
of the procurement plan by the
University Finance division

5.1.1.3. Ensure the preparation of

quarterly progress reports by the
Finance division

5.1.2.  Proper utilization of 5.1.2.1. Ensure establishment of a
generated funds transparent mechanism for
utilization of generated funds.

6.  Strategic Goal 6: Lifelong Community, Social Responsibility, National
Development and Global/Regional Impact

Strategic Objective Possible Strategies Activities
6.1. Improve 6.1.1.  Expand the existing 6.1.1.1. Identify new areas for
community mechanism for community community engagement and
engagement engagement and outreach outreach
and outreach activities 6.1.1.2. Facilitate and coordinate
activities of community engagement and
both staff outreach activities
and students 6.1.1.3. Strengthen the linkages with
the Alumnae
6.1.1.4. Promote and facilitate extra-
curricular activities
6.1.2  Streamline and promote 6.2.1.1. Ensure development of
engagement in national guidelines by relevant
development activities authorities
6.2.2.2. Ensure formalizing
community engagement
activities by relevant
authorities.
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6.2. Improve 6.2.1. Improve attitudes towards | 6.2.1.1. Refine and improve Student
social social responsibility among Charter by IQAU
responsibility students 6.2.1.2. Conduct awareness
of students programmes by IQAU with

CGU
6.2.1.3. Ensure the conduct of social
harmony activities

It was decided to incorporate the CQA Strategic Plan into the next /Strategic Plan-1919-1924 of US]J.

7.  Action Plans to implement the recommendations of the Institutional Review:

Action Plan 2018-2022 for the implementation of the recommendations of the Final Report of the
Institutional Review (IR) of the University has been prepared by the Director/CQA with the guidance
of the QA Consultant, Prof. Kalyani Perera. The activities proposed in this Action Plan will be
incorporated into the University Strategic Plan 2021-2024.
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Action Plan for 2018 - 2022

Institutional Review — Action Plan for 2018-2022

University of Sri Jayewardenepura (USJ)

Introduction: The planned activities/strategies reflect the recommendations made in the Final Review Report of Institutional Review (IR)

Strategies and Activities

Criterion 1 - Governance and Management

N | Activity/Strategy Sub Activity Start End Annual Targets by Performance Indicators Responsible Progress
o. Date Date 2018 2019 2020 2021 = 2022 Officer
1 | Incorporate Monitoring the = 01.01.20 | 31.12.20 | This will be addressed by respective faculties in = VC, Deans
fundamental action plans of 20 22 their action plans developed in line with University
concepts of vision | faculties and Strategic Plans of 2017-2021 and 2021-2024.
and mission into divisions
programmes
conducted by all
faculties and
divisions
2 Ensure that Monitoring of | 01.01.20 | 31.12.20 ; This will be addressed in the monitoring the | VC, Deans,
implementation of | action plans of 20 22 implementation of University Strategic Plans of = Registrar
decisions taken at | faculties and 2017-2021 and 2021-2024.
the highest level divisions
are uniformly
applied across all
divisions and units
3 Inviteall internal 01.01.20 | 30.06.20 | This will be addressed when the University = Strategic
and external 20 20 Strategic Plan for 2021-2024 is prepared by the | Planning
stakeholders in Strategic Planning Committee. Committee
developing
strategic and
action plans
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Develop manuals
of procedures and
standard
operational
procedures for all
major functions of
the divisions/units

Develop
policies for the
University
(Refer
Annexure [ for
list of policies
developed)

01.05.20
18

31.12.20
20

19
Policies
(Approv

ed on
08/11/18
)

1
Policy
(Approv
ed on
29/08/19
)

2
Policies

Develop a
Management
Guide

21.03.20
19

31.12.20
20

Guide

Develop SOPs
on Finance and
Examination

01.01.20
20

31.12.20
21

SOP SOP

Registrar (for the
Management
Guide)

DR/
Examinations
(SOP on
Examination)
Bursar (SOP on
Finance)
Director/IQAU
(Overall
guidance)

20 different
policies have
been
developed
and
approved at
the
University
Senate and
the Council.
The date of
approval at
the Council
are denoted
in the
relevant
cages. The
Management
Guide is in
the process
of
development
and its first
draft is
expected to
develop by
31"
December
2019.
Preparation
of the SOPs
(Finance and
Examination
) will
commence
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in 2020 once
the

Management
Guide is
finalized.

Improve Monitoring of = 01.01.20 | 31.12.20 | This will be addressed by respective faculties and = VC, Deans

adherence to action plans of 20 21 divisions in the implementation of action plans

outcome-based faculties and developed in line with University Strategic Plan

approach in all divisions 2017-2021, which has already included outcome-

university based education approach to their respective

functions/program degree programmes.

mes

Fill in all Finalization of | 01.01.20 | 31.12.20 1 VC, Deans, Filling of

remaining cadre Academic 19 20 Docume Registrar academic

vacancies. Work Accountability nt staff

norms have to be Document vacancies is

developed and in progress.

workload of staff The

in all faculties development

needs to be of a broad

calculated guideline for
work norms
asan
amendment
to the
existing
document on
Academic
Accountabili
ty isin
progress.

Develop acode of = CoC for 01.01.20 | 31.12.20 1 CoC VC, Deans,

conduct (CoC) for = Academic Staff 20 21 DR/Academic

staff Establishment

(AE)
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CoC for Non- 1 CoC Registrar,

Academic Staff SAR/Non-
academic
Establishment
(NAE)

8  Develop an PA system for = 01.01.20 | 31.12.20 1PA DR/AE
appropriate academic staff 21 22 Syste
performance m
appraisal (PA) PA system for 1PA  SAR/NAE
system for each academic staff Syste
category of staff m
considering their
role and
responsibilities

9  Improveexisting | Promotionof  01.01.20 31.12.20 12 17 22 27 Office of

. . . No. of No. of No. of No. of .
mechanisms to University 19 22 students students students | students | International
enroll among foreign Students
international students (Refer
students Annexure II

for details)

Provision of 01.01.20 = 31.12.20 = Logistic support will be provided to students
logistic support 19 22 enrolled in each year.

(Refer

Annexure I1

for details)

10 | Develop policies Development 01.01.20 | 31.12.20 1 Registrar This will be
and guidelines on | of Policy on 20 20 Policy finalized and
occupational Occupational published by
health and safety at Health and beginning of
the workplace Safety 2020. In the

process of

preparing a

TOR for the

development

of the policy.
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11 | Improve the 01.01.20 | 31.12.20 = This will be addressed by Proctor’s Office with the | Proctor, Deans
existing system of 20 21 support of faculties of study in their action plans
monitoring and developed in line with University Strategic Plan
curbing ragging 2021-2024.
Criterion 2 - Curriculum and Programme Development
1 Establish a central | Establishing a 01.01.20 | 31.12.20 1 VC, Director/ Senate
level monitoring Senate 20 20 IQAU approval has
and evaluation of | subcommittee been
curriculum on curriculum obtained in
development development this respect.
mechanism to and review The TOR is
ensure that all the | (Senate CRDC) being
programmes are developed as
subjected to to the
periodic revision responsibiliti
and to monitor the es of Senate
progress of CRDC. It
initiatives already will be
taken to transform operationaliz
the existing ed from the
undergraduate beginning of
curricula of all the 2020.
study programmes = Monitoringby = 01.01.20 = 31.12.20 7 8 9 9 9 VC, Deans, Currently
to comply with Senate CRDC 20 22 Faculty = Faculty | (1Senate a (1 Chairperson, monitoring
SLQF standards and faculty CRDCs | CRDCs Cai?gc éilgtce zeélla)tg Senate CRDC, is done only
CRDC Faculty and 8 ands | Chairpersons of | by faculty
CRDC) Faculty | Faculty | Faculty CRDCs CRDCs.
CRDC) | CRDC) Once the
Senate
CRDC is
appointed, it
will be the
central body
to monitor
the
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development
, review and
revision of
degree
curricular.
Expand and Develop a 01.01.20 | 31.12.20 1-SP VC, Deans, IQAU SP has
strengthen the strategic plan 19 20 Director/IQAU, | already been
activities of the (SP) for IQAU 8- AP Coordinators/IQ | prepared. It
IQACs and IQAU | and action ACs has to be
to evaluate, plans (AP) for submitted
analyze, IQACs for Senate
recommend and approval.
monitor This will be
programmes/funct incorporated
ions of the into the USJ
university and Strategic
advise the Plan.
Dean/Faculty
Board as well as
the Vice-
Chancellor/Senate
and Council in all
the academic and
administrative
affairs, as relevant
Carry out Conductofan | 01.01.20 | 31.12.20 2-PR 1-IR | 1-PR | VC, Director/
periodical internal | internal quality 20 22 (FAS, (FHSS | IQAU (for IR
reviews by the assessment of FAHS) ) Internal Review)
IQAU for the next | the University
round of IRand by | for IR Deans,
IQAC:s for PRs Coordinator/
Conduct of IQAC:s (for PR
internal quality Internal Review)
reviews for PRs
of faculties
University of Sri Jayewardenepura [125] Annual Report 2019




Discuss the The progress of | 01.01.20 | 31.12.20 | 4Meetings = 2Meetings | 2 Meetings 2 2 IQAU
. . . Meeting | Meeting
recommendations | implementing 18 22 s s Management
of reviews at the recommendati Committee
departmentlevel,  onsofIRat
faculty level, and at | monthly IQAU
the Senate with the | meetings
support of IQAU | The progress of 2 2 2 2 2
and IQACs. impl ementing Meetings Meetings Meetings | Meetin | Meetin
. per faculty : perfaculty | perfaculty | gsper gs per

recommendati faculty | faculty

ons of PR at

monthly

faculty IQAC

meetings

Criterion 3 - Teaching and Learning
Extend the peer 01.01.20 = 31.12.20 = This will be addressed by respective faculties in = Deans, Heads of
review process to 20 22 their action plans developed in conformity with = Department
academic staff in the University Strategic Plans of 2017-2021 and
all faculties 2021-2024.
Develop a 01.01.20 | 31.12.20
mechanism for 20 22
recognizing and
awarding creative
and innovative
teaching
Encourage 01.01.20 | 31.12.20
uploading of all 20 22
course material to
the LMS and use of
LMS in assessment
process
Criterion 4 - Learning Resources, Student Support and Progression
Update university 01.01.20 | 31.12.20 @ Updating of the University website and web pages = Director/ Digital
website and faculty 18 22 of faculties and divisions are done continuously. Media and
sites giving high Communication
visibility to
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academic staff and Coordinator/

student activities CITS

2 Establish MIS 01.01.20 = 31.12.20 1 MIS VG,
without further 20 20 Coordinator/
delay CITS

3  Makeavailableall | Upload faculty = 01.01.20 | 31.12.20 5 7 8 8 8 Deans
course prospectus 18 22 Faculties Faculties Faculties | Facultie | Facultie
outlines/assessmen | with course ) ’
t criteria on the details into the
web (in addition to | University
having them on website
LMS)

4  Expand mentoring 01.01.20 = 31.12.20 = This will be addressed by respective faculties in = Deans, Heads of
programmes in all 20 22 their action plans developed in line with University = Department
faculties and Strategic Plans of 2017-2021 and 2021-2024.

introduce a proper
system to monitor
student
progression
throughout his/her
university life

5 Carry out regular 01.01.20 | 31.12.20 1 1 1 Director,

student 20 22 Survey  Survey . Survey | gAR/Student
satisfaction Welfare Division
surveys on student
welfare facilities in
addition to
teaching /learning
activities and use
them to improve

quality of such
facilities

6  Expand 01.01.20 | 31.12.20 ;| This hasalready been addressed in the Action Plan = Registrar, Deans,
infrastructure 20 22 for 2017-2021 under Goal 4: Infrastructure of USJ] | SAR/Capital
facilities including Strategic Plan 2017-2021. Works,
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the hostel facilities
for female students
and clinical
training facilities

Director/Student
Welfare,
DR/Student
Welfare Division

Criterion 5 - Student Assessment and Awards

1

Obtain reports
from examiners
who are involved
in moderating and
second marking

Appoint setters
/moderators/exam
iners for every
course unit
/module
individually in all
faculties, as much
as possible

01.01.20
20

31.12.20
22

This will be addressed by respective faculties in
their action plans developed in conformity with
the University Strategic Plans of 2017-2021 and
2021-2024.

Deans, Heads of
Departments

Deans, Heads of
Departments

Release
examination
results of the FHSS
without delay, at
least within the
stipulated time of
three months.

01.01.20
20

31.12.20
22

This will be addressed by FHSS in their Action Plan
to implement the PR recommendations in
conformity with the University Strategic Plans of
2017-2021 and 2021-2024.

Dean and Heads
of Departments
of FHSS

Revise assessment
methods regularly
for effective
achievement of
ILOs

01.01.20
20

31.12.20
22

This will be addressed by respective faculties in
their action plans in conformity with the
University Strategic Plans of 2017-2021 and 2021-
2024.

Dean and Heads
of Departments
of FHSS

Develop a
comprehensive
manual of
examination
procedures

Refer to No. 4 under Criterion 1 for details.

Registrar, DR/
Examination
Division
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Criterion 6 - Strength and Quality of Staff

1 | Enhancethe 01.01.20 © 31.12.20 = This will be addressed by respective faculties in | Deans, DR/AE
number of 20 22 their action plans developed to implement the PR
qualified academic recommendations in conformity with the
staff and their University Strategic Plans of 2017-2021 and 2021-
qualifications 2024.

2 Take urgent Deans, DR/AE
measures to fill all
vacancies to
address low staff to
student ratio in
FHSS, FAS and
FMSC

3 | Expandlecture 01.01.20 = 31.12.20 = This will be addressed by FMSC in their Action = Dean/FMSC
hall capacity of 20 22 Plans to implement the PR recommendations in
FMSC conformity with the University Strategic Plans of

2017-2021 and 2021-2024.

4 | Provide more Provision of 01.01.20 | 31.12.20 18 4 10 10 10 | Registrar,
career specific or training by 18 22 SAR/NE,
job-related SDC Director/SDC
training to non-
academic staff

Criterion 7 — Postgraduate Studies, Research, Innovation and Outreach

1 Developa Establishment | 02.04.20 | 31.12.20 1 1 Chairperson/ Both these
mechanism to of Innovation, 18 19 Council | Exhibiti Innovation, institutions
increase invention | Invention and on Invention and have been
and innovationas | Venture 1 Policy Venture Creation | established
well as patenting Creation Council and relevant
and Council activities are
commercialization | Establishment 1 Cell Director/UBL carried out.
of research of University Cell
findings Business

Linkage (UBL)
Cell
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Expand
infrastructure
facilities of FGS to
support teaching,
learning and
welfare of
postgraduate
students

01.01.20
20

31.12.20
22

This will be addressed when the University
Strategic Plan for 2021-2024 and Action Plan for
FGS is developed.

Dean/FGS

Strategic
Planning
Committee

Crit

erion 8 - Community Engagement, Consultancy and Outreach

Develop policies
on collaborative
provisions and
placement of work
based/industrial
placement

Policy on
Programme or
Curricular
Designing and
Policy on
Teaching and
Learning

01.05.20
18

08.11.20
18

2
Policies

VC,
Director/IQAU

Two policies
have been
developed in
this respect.
Refer No. 4
under
Criterion 1
for details.

Develop policy
and procedures for
professional
programmes/cours
es in order to offer
those more
effectively

Develop a
policy for
community
engagement
and outreach

01.01.20
20

31.12.20
20

VC,
Director/IQAU

Develop a
directory of
resources provided
for work-based
and industry
placement
assignments

01.01.20
20

31.12.20
22

This will be addressed by respective faculties in
their action plans developed in conformity with
the University Strategic Plans of 2017-2021 and
2021-2024.

Deans, Head of
Department

Facilitate the
participation of
external stake
holders in

01.01.20
20

31.12.20
22

This will be addressed in the USJ Strategic Plan
2021-2024 and the actions plans of faculties
prepared in conformity with University Strategic
Plan.

University
Strategic
Planning
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developing
strategic and
action places,
curriculum
development,
research,
establishing
incubation cells
and adding value
to the academic
programme and
awards

Committee &
Faculty CRDC

Criterion 9 — Distance Education

Develop a policy
and procedures for
the production of
learning materials

01.01.20
20

31.12.20
22

Policy

Director/EDECU

Establish an IQAC
for EDECU with
clear objectives,
functions and
composition in
order to maintain
quality education

01.01.20
20

30.06.20
20

IQAC

Director/EDECU

At present,
Director,
EDECU is a
member of
University,
IQAU.

Carry out
periodical internal
review of the
academic
programmes
through the IQAC

01.01.20
20

31.12.20
22

1
Intern
al
Revie
w

1
Intern
al
Revie
w

Director and
Coordinator,
IQAC/EDECU

Crit

erion 10 - Quality Assurance

1

Improve human
and physical
resources to

optimize the

Procurement
of Computer
Equipment,

16.07.20
17

31.12.20
19

28 items

VC, Deans and
Director/IQAU
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functions of IQAU . Furniture

and IQACs (Tables,
Chairs,
Cupboards)

2 Conduct regular Inclusion of 01.01.20 | 31.12.20 8 8 Coordinators of = Thisisa
meetings of IQACs | IQACasa 18 22 Faculty IQACs permanent
of all faculties regular agenda agenda item

item of Faculty inall 8
Board/Depart faculties.
ment Meetings

of all faculties

to ensure

regular

meetings are

held and

reported the

progress.

3 Directtheefforts ~ Creation ofa 01.01.20 | 30.06.20 1 Director/IQAU, | IQAU is
of IQAU to place in the 20 20 Coordinators/Fa = currently
internalize, IQAU webpage culty IQACs, working on
monitor and to to share the Director/Digital  this with
improve best best practices Media and Digital
practices at all of faculties and Communication = Media and
levels of the divisions Communicat
University ion Unit of

the

University.
Conducting 01.01.20 | 31.12.20 16 6 6 Director/IQAU, | The number
regular 18 22 Director/SDC of QA
workshops for Coordinators/Fa | workshops
academic and culty IQACs for staff in
non-academic 2018
staff includes PR

workshops.
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Address the Develop the 01.01.20 | 31.12.20 1 VC,
recommendations | University 20 20 Director/IQAU
of the previous IR Calendar

Establish MIS Refer to No. 2 under Criterion 4 for details.
Conduct regular Refer to No 3. 1-1IR 1- Director/IQAU,
review of under 1-PR PR Coordinators of
programmes and Criterion 2 for Faculty IQACs
functions of all details.
divisions, by staff | Include QA as 1 Registrar,
from other an agenda item Director/IQAU
divisions/units of academic

and

administrative

officers

meeting

Develop guidelines
and Standard
Operating
Procedures for all
major and
important process

Refer to No. 4
under
Criterion 1 for
details.

Registrar, Bursar,
Director/ IQAU

List of Abbreviations

AP
CITS
CoC
CRDC
EDECU
FAHS
FAS
FGS
FHSS
FMSC
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Centre for IT Services

Code of Conduct

Curriculum Review and Development Committee
External Degrees and Extension Course Unit
Faculty of Allied Health Sciences

Faculty of Applied Sciences

Faculty of Graduate Studies

Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences
Faculty of Management Studies
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ILO Intended Learning Outcome

IQAC Internal Quality Assurance Cell
IQAU Internal Quality Assurance Unit
IR Institutional Review

LMS Learning Management System
MIS Management Information System
NAE Non- academic Establishment

PA Performance Appraisal

PR Programme Review

QA Quality Assurance

SDC Staff Development Centre

SLQF Sri Lanka Qualification Framework
SOP Standard Operating Procedure

SP Strategic Plan

TOR Terms of Reference

UBL University Business Linkage

UsJ University of Sri Jayewardenepura
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Annexures

Annexure I: Schedule of Policies

Policy Effective and Policy Title Focus of the Policies
Number Revised Dates
01 08.11.2018 Academic Honesty and | Covers principles of ethical, intellectual conduct, honesty and integrity. Academic Integrity is important
Integrity as it ensures that students derive the basic tenets of discipline and integrity in their educational experience
and in their pursuit of knowledge.

02 08.11.2018 Administration Establishes the framework for efficient and effective governance and management of institutional affairs
in compliance with the University Act and the mission of US].

03 08.11.2018 Community Preserves, creates and disseminates knowledge, conserves and develops scientific, technological and

Services/Outreach and cultural heritage through quality, relevant teaching and research.
Industry
Linkage/Engagement
04 08.11.2018 Conducting and Guides the establishment of a conducive research environment
Supporting Research within which academic/administrative staff and postgraduate research students will conduct high quality
research leading to scholarly publications and innovations to foster prosperity and
wellbeing of the people of Sri Lanka and the globe.
05 08.11.2018 Encouraging and Inspires the university students to apply innovative approaches/ adapt new techniques/improve existing
Rewarding Student techniques, products and processes to address prevailing issues in their chosen fields of study and to take
Innovation part in innovation competitions.

06 08.11.2018 Examination Provides the principles for central/faculty level administered examinations that are conducted adhering to
the approved examination schedules.

07 08.11.2018 Finance Establishes a proper financial management system by way of rules, regulations, guidelines and criteria for
financial activities of the US] to ensure that the university’s financial resources are managed effectively and
in an efficient manner to achieve the university vision and mission.

08 08.11.2018 General Administration | Protects movable and immovable properties and lives of the University Community ensuring proper
security.

09 08.11.2018 Human Resources Provides a systematic and structured approach for providing

Development

new learning opportunities for university employees to enhance their work-related capabilities and
motivation enabling them to increase their current as well as future job performance at US].
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10 08.11.2018 Information Provides guidelines in the use of information for the interested
parties for their decision-making purposes in order to maintain the efficiency of the system.
11 08.11.2018 Information and Provides ICT facilities to every member in the university community without discrimination of ethnicity,
Communication caste, language, religion, gender, differently-abled persons, place of residence or on economic levels.
Technology
12 08.11.2018 Innovation, Invention Establishes a friendly environment for knowledge creators to encourage, protect and commercialize their
and Venture Creation creations in the interest of national benefit.
13 08.11.2018 Internationalization and | Achieves more institutional visibility nationally, regionally, and internationally by finding new sources of
Off- shore Academic funding and improving academic quality and student preparedness.
Programmes
14 08.11.2018 Programme/ Provides guidance on the process for implementation, monitoring, changes, and discontinuation of credit
Curriculum Approval, bearing courses or academic programs and outlines the roles of administrators and committees at the
Implementation, university level within this process.
Monitoring, Review and
Discontinuation
15 08.11.2018 Programme/Curricular | Covers protocol and other administrative matters related to the process of curriculum development in the
Designing University.
16 08.11.2018 Student Participation at = Recognizes the value of extracurricular activities in enriching the outlook of students, their university life
Regional and National and enhancing their development potential to become all-rounders.
Level Competitions
17 08.11.2018 Teaching and Learning | Governs the selection of appropriate teaching modes to ensure a high-quality learning experience for all
students of USJ.
18 08.11.2018 Web Content Ensures that the content that is published on websites of US]J, faculties and departments have been
Management reviewed and are highly accurate.
19 08.11.2018 Plagiarism Seeks to take necessary preventive and corrective actions to eradicate unethical practices, conduct and
intends to promote academic standards including “ethical writing” among students.
20 29.08.2019 Equality Seeks to ensure equality irrespective of gender, ethnicity, religion, disability, age, marital status, pregnancy

and maternity, language, union membership and political beliefs or any other grounds.
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Annexure II: Existing Mechanisms to Enroll International Students

Activities done:

Published a Prospectus for international students.

Appointed an academic member from each Faculty (altogether 07) to oversee and coordinate the
affairs related to international students.

Personally assisted the students in obtaining visa.

Coordinated with Ministry of Finance media unit to prepare a video on promoting the University of

Sri Jayewardenepura among international students.

5. Prepared a web page for international students.

Foreign students enrolled from 01 January 2019 to 30" June 2019:

Country Course No. of Undergraduate Students No. of Postgraduate

Students

Myanmar B.A (General) 07

P ’

Sri Lanka MBBS 03

Australia B.A (General) 01

Bangladesh 01 (PhD)

Total 12 01

Action Plans to implement the recommendations of the Programs Reviews:

Similarly, actions plans are being prepared for the implementation of the review comments of the
PRs conducted in the Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences (FHSS) and the FMSC. The five
PRs of FHSS were conducted in 2017 and the twelve Program Reviews of FMSC were conducted in
2018-2019. The action plan of the PRs of FHSS were submitted to the QAC.

Proposed Changes under Commission Circular 09/2019 on further strengthening

of Internal Quality Assurance Systems in universities and higher educational
institutions

The following changes proposed by the Commission Circular 09/2019 dated
07.10.2019 was submitted to the Senate and the council.
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The IQAU to be renamed as the Centre for Quality Assurance (CQA) in order to better
reflect its university wide remit. Administratively, CQA should function as part of an

academic division of the University.

The present Management Committee (MC) of the IQAU to be converted to a Standing
Committee of the Senate of the University in accordance with provisions stipulated in
Section 46(6)(vii) of the Universities Act No. 16 of 1978 (as amended). The composition of
this standing committee will remain same as of the MC.

The Director, CQU of the University to be placed at an appropriate place in the University
Organogram. The guidance in this respect is provided in the Annex 3 of this Circular.

10. Quality Assurance Awareness Programmes:

11.

The Director/CQA and the QA Consultant conducted the following Quality Assurance Programmes
during the year 2019.

1. 01.08.2019 - For the academic staff including the Dean of Faculty of Allied Health
Sciences, an awareness programme

2. 05.09.2019 - For the Heads of Departments and the Dean of Faculty of Humanities and
Social Sciences, an awareness programme

3. 06.09.2019 - For the participants of Certificate in Teaching in Higher Education(CTHE)
on Quality Assurance, an awareness programme

4. 05.11.2019 - For the academic staff of the Faculty of Allied Health Sciences, to review
their Vision & Mission Statements and Graduate Profile

5. 13.12.2019 - For the Academic Staff of the External Degrees and Extension Courses
Unit on the program review manual for external degrees to carry out a
self-evaluation of the external degree programmes

The Visit of Director, Quality Assurance Council to the University of Sri Jayewardenepura :
The Director/Quality Assurance Council (QAC), UGC, Prof. Nilanthi de Silva visited the University

on 06.11.2019 and held a discussion with the members of the Management Committee (MC) of
CQA as to the progress of quality assurance activities. This meeting was chaired by the Vice
Chancellor of the University, who is also the Chairperson of the MC of CQA. The members of the
MC, which comprise the Director- Postgraduate Institute of Management (PIM), Deans of all
faculties, Registrar, Librarian, Bursar, Co-chairperson of the Research Council, Director - External
Degrees and Extension Courses, Director- Staff Development, and faculty IQAC coordinators
participated in this meeting. At the beginning of this meeting, the Vice Chancellor made a
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presentation about the present activities of the University and its future directions. This was followed
by a presentation of the Director/CQA as to the present status of internal quality assurance activities
of the University, status of external reviews conducted, and the action plan prepared to implement
the recommendations of the Final Review Report of IR. This was followed by a discussion between
the Director, QAC and the members of the MC. The QA, Consultant and the members of the
Corporate Planning Committee of the University were also participated in this meeting on the

invitation of the Vice Chancellor.

On conclusion of this meeting, Prof. Nilanthi de Silva had a discussion with the Dean, Heads and
members of QA Cell of FHSS as to the Action Plans prepared to implement the review
recommendations of the PRs conducted. Both Director/CQA and QA Consultant of the University
participated at this meeting.

Prof. Nilanthi de Silva visited the FMSC on 22.11.2019 to discuss the preparation of Action plans to
implement the review recommendations of the PRs conducted.

12. Evaluation of Proposals:

CQA evaluated the proposals of the following study programs, before submitting for the
approval of the QAC of UGC.

(i) 01.04.2019 - Proposal Master of Arts in Teaching English as a second language (SLQF Level 10)

(ii) 07.06.2019 - Proposal re-launching Postgraduate Diploma in Business Statistics and Social Statistics (SLQF Level
08)

(iii) 19.08.2019 - Proposal Master of Philosophy in Business (SLQF Level 10)

(iv) 27.08.2019 - Proposed Postgraduate Diploma in Forestry and environmental Science (SLQF Level 08)

(v)  09.09.2019 - Proposed Postgraduate Degree in D ience and Artificial  Intelligen LQF L

(vi) 2019 - Pr Masters Degree in Com r Science (IV Intak LQF Level 1

(vii) 21.11.2019 - Proposed Diploma in History (SLQF Level 03)

(viii) 27.11.2019 - Proposed Bachelor of Science Honours in Optometry (SLQF Level 06)
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OTS Office - USJP

Accelerating Higher Education Expansion and Development (AHEAD) focuses on expanding,
diversifying, and developing the higher education sector in Sri Lanka to drive economic growth through
knowledge-based industrial and service sector activity and on producing graduates of global quality.

AHEAD has three Results Areas:
Results Area 1: Increasing Enrollment in Priority Disciplines for Economic Development

Results Area 2: Improving the Quality of Higher Education

Results Area 3: Promoting Research, Development and Innovation
1. Allocations for Result Area One

The objective of this result area is to increase enrollments in higher education programs of strategic
importance for economic development. The GoSL will promote the expansion of enrollment in state
universities and ATIs, with a focus on STEM degree programs through a combination of demand- and supply-side
initiatives.

Under this result area WB funds will be released to improve the Faculties of Medical Sciences and Technology.

Faculty of Medical Sciences

Year Funds Actual % Grant Procurement Progress Date of
Received Expenses Utilization Category Completion
million million

2018 30 n 29.9 100% Goods All items purchased March 2019

October

2019 156 - 0% Civil Work = On going

May

Total 186 29.9 16%
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Using the grant received to purchase goods, many medical equipment were purchased during the years 2018 and
2019. Total expenses incurred was Rs. 29.9 million. Some of the higher value items such as Oil immersion binocular
light microscope, Real time PCR machine, Gel imaging system, ELISA reader, 80 °C deep freezer, Manikin only for

advanced life support, Manikin for ALS (child),

Interactive Whiteboard and Autoclave were purchased using the funds. Procurement activities were completed in

March 2019.

In May 2019 Rs. 156 million was awarded for the extension of Anatomy Building for the Department of Pathology.

Currently biding documents are in progress.

Faculty of Technology

Year Funds Actual % Grant Procurement Date of Completion
Received Expenses Utilization Category Progress
million million

2018 40 39.8 100% Goods All items = March 2019

October purchased

2019 350 n 339.4 97% Civil Work = Partly /partial

May Payment
100 80. 81% Goods Payments are due for Few items

Total 490 459.8 94%

Faculty of Technology purchased many high technologically advanced equipment using the Rs.120.4 million for the
teaching and research purposes during the years 2018 and 2019. Almost all the money allocated under the grant
category Goods was utilized and there are payments to be made for few more items during the year 2020. Some of
the items purchased under this grant were Gas Chromatography-Mass Spectrometry Machine, High Performance
Liquid Chromatography Machine, Video Camera and Vision mixer, Air Compressor - oil free air compressor,

Bioreactor, Distillation, Dryer, Extruder, Fermentation Wot, Grinder, Mixer and Roster.

Faculty also received Rs.350 million under the civil work cost component to construct an Academic Building

Complex at Pitipana.
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World Bank will provide full funding for the administration building of the Technology Faculty and during the year
part payment of Rs. 339.4 million was paid. By the end of 2019, 90% of the civil work have been completed. This

project is expected to complete by March 2020.
2. Allocations for Result Area Two

The objective of this result area is to improve the quality of higher education, especially in the HEMS streams of
undergraduate programs. Under this result area universities are eligible to receive grants on competitive basis for

three sub areas namely:

e ELTA-ELSE Faculty Level Grants,
e ELTA-ELSE Department Level Grants
e PhD Scholarships for PhD studies.
Our university was able to secure three faculty grants each worth of Rs. 120 million. Three grants winners are Faculty

of Humanities and Social Sciences, Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce and Faculty of Applied Sciences.

Under the Department level competition our university was able to win 5 department level grants. The winning
departments will receive Rs.18 million each. Department of Anthropology, Department of Geography, Department
of Decision Sciences, Department of Marketing Management and the Department of Sport Science won the round

one allocation.

Under the PhD scholarship programour university staff members were awarded 40 PhD each worth of Rs.9 million.
Due to the various reasons only 17 were able to start their PhD studies during the years 2018 and 2019. Due to non-

compliance of the OMST guidelines other scholarships were canceled.
Current Financial Progress of each grant type as at 31% December 2019 is given bellow:

ELTA - ELSE Grant

Faculty/ Department Agreement Sign Total Actual % Utilization | Remarks
Date Allocation expenses
million 15
million
FHSS 6" May 120 4.1 3% On going
EMSC 6" May 120 4.1 3% On going
FAS 26" September | 120 0.6 1% On going
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Decision Science FMSC | 19" August 18 0.7 4% On going
Anthropology FHSS 30™ August 18 0.6 3% On going
Geography FHSS 2™ September 18 0.2 1% On going
Marketing Management | 29" October 18 0.1 1% On going
FMSC
Sport Science FAS 27" November 18 On going
Total 450 10.6 2%

PhD Scholarship Programme
Faculty Number of Awards | Number Started Number to be Start Number Canceled
Management 18 10 - 08
Humanities 16 05 - 11
Applied Science 04 02 - 02
Medical Science 02 01 01

Total Payment made till 31 December 2019 for PhD - 38 million

3. Allocations for Result Area Three

The objective of this result area is to promote Research, Development and Innovation culture within the universities.

Under this result area universities are eligible to receive three types of grants. Under the Research and Innovation

Commercialization (RIC) grant, Faculty of Applied Sciences won a grant of Rs.45 million, and under Development

Oriented Research (DOR) grant Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce won a grant of Rs.10 million and
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Faculty of Medical Science won a grant of Rs. 35 million in the competitive category and under the Innovation

Commercialization Enhancement (ICE) grant Faculty of Applied Science won Rs.40 million worth grant.

Grant Contract Sign | Allocation Actual expenses . % Utilization Remarks
Date million million

RIC (FAS) 12" Nov. 2018 45 33.9 75% On going
DOR (Acc) 10" Dec. 2018 10 2.8 28% On going
DOR (Med) 21% May 2019 35 8.8 25% On going
ICE (FAS) 29" Sep 2018 40 10.4 26% On going
UBL 17" July 2018 15 3.4 23% On going
Total 145 59.3 41%

Overall status of grants approved, received and utilized as at 31" December 2019 is presented in the table given

bellow.
Faculty/Grant Allocation Rs. Utilized as at 31% %
December 2019 Utiliza
tion
Result Area 1
Faculty of Medical Sciences (STEM) 187,000,000 29,880,101.58 | 16%
Faculty of Technology (STEM) 490,000,000 459,839,117.38 = 94%
Result Area 2
ELTA-ELSE Grant -FHSS 120,000,000 4,122,995.88 03%
ELTA-ELSE Grant -FAS 120,000,000 631,285.10 01%
ELTA-ELSE Grant -FMSC 120,000,000 4,196,084.92 03%
ELTA-ELSE Department of Anthropology 18,000,000 622,357.88 03%
ELTA-ELSE Department of Geography 18,000,000 215,144.10 01%
ELTA-ELSE Department of Decision Sciences 18,000,000 679,815.10 | 04%
ELTA-ELSE Department of Marketing 18,000,000 148,915.78 i 01%
ELTA-ELSE Department of Sport science 18,000,000 Just Started
PhD Scholarships 243.581,000 38,014,195.09 16%
Result Area 3
RIC Grant - Science Faculty 45,000,000 33,923,025.79 . 75%
ICE Grant - Science Faculty 40,000,000 10,439,024.82 26%
DOR Grant - Management Faculty 10,000,000 2,836,856.50 28%
DOR Grant - Medical Faculty 35,000,000 8,794,507.67 . 25%
UBL Cell 15,000,000 3,375,874.05  23%
Total Grants 1,515,581,000 597,719,301.64 | 40%
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Future Prospective Report on Sustainable
Development

University of Sri Jayewardenepura
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FUTURE PROSPECTS ON SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 2019

University of Sri Jayewardenepura

OUR VISION

Prosper Lives through Education

OUR MISSION

Develop globally competent citizens through our education for a sustainable future drawing inspirations from our cultural
heritage and wisdom

Our strategic education approach in the coming decade for a sustainable future is based on our unique 4-H Model
to ® THINK Critically ® FEEL Morally @ ACT Competently ® BEING Well and 3-P Model to seriously contemplate

® People ® Planet ® Prosperity

A
SUSTAINABLE
FUTURE

EDUCATION

PEOPLE

Education for a Sustainable Future
3-P Model - ® People ® Planet and ® Prosperity:
Our education approach in the coming decade for a sustainable future

There is Number universally agreed definition on what sustainability means. There are many different views on
what it is and how it can be achieved. The idea of sustainability stems from the concept of sustainable development,
which became common language at the World's first Earth Summit in Rio in 1992. Sustainable development is the
“Development that meets the needs of the present without compromising the ability of future generations to meet
their own needs" as given in Bruntland Report for the World Commission on Environment and Development
(1992).
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We accept and honour the 17 Sustainable Development Goals introduced by “Transforming our world: the 2030
UN Agenda for Sustainable Development” in 2015. This Agenda is an action plan for people, planet and prosperity
(Figure 6).

1) People -Social issues (enhancing the well-being of all people)
2) Planet - Environmental issues (protecting and restoring ecological systems)
3) Prosperity - Economic issues (Improving economic efficiency)

¥

PLANET PROSPERITY

A Ay

PEOPLE

3-Ps - People, Planet and Prosperity
Transition to a sustainable university
For an effective transition to a sustainable or green university, USJP considers the following five key aspects to be

necessary; the top management commitment, educational input, university research endeavours, the local

community assistance and a central coordination center .

WSIP o

e
veco™
S\.\s\d\“a\‘:’\e

uawer SN

USJP to become a Sustainable University
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1. Top Management Commitment - Administrative Influence

The university’s top management commitment towards sustainability has a significant impact at the very outset
and in the process of implementation. The major decisions they make include new building design, repair and
renovation projects, building operations and maintenance, energy management procurement practices,
landscaping, recycling at various levels, waste management, transportation, food service and dining operations

and hostel operations.

2. Educational Input - Role of Faculty & Students (Academic Departments)

The educational aspect is also significant and it could be in different ways. This is the investment for future
sustainability. Education on sustainability through the curricular and extra-curricular engagements, the
students on the subjects could obtain long-term benefits and some short-term benefits. They will eventually
become leaders in their community and bring with them the important applications of sustainability. Various
teaching methods allow students to learn required curricular while applying what they learn to address real
world problems. This learning model is very well suited to the university environment and is a way to integrate
knowledge base with local requirements and applications. This can have an immediate benefit depending on
the nature. Further educational opportunities exist with developing courses on sustainable development,

workshops and training, as well as distance or e-learning.

As United Nations (http://www.un.org/sustainabledevelopment/takeaction/) compiled for us just a few of the
many things we can do to make an impact, there are some quite very easy things we can adopt into our routines,

that, if we all do it, will make a big difference. In our attempts, we will seriously consider;

= Things we can do from our couch
= Things we can do at home
= Things we can do outside our house

3. Research Endeavours

The Research Council of the university has a significant role in terms of its near and long term impacts. There
are already on-going research projects with ecological habitats and other environmental issues, social issues
and economic issues. Areas for research could also include large scale composting, manufacturing methods,

alternative energy sources and building design, construction, operations and maintenance practices etc.
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4. Local Community Assistance

The local community of the university can also provide various levels of resources and involvement to assist
the sustainability endeavours and it includes alumni, the business community, utility suppliers, vendors, other

service providers, community organizations, and professional associations.

5. Central Coordination

The entire sustainability efforts shall be centrally organized through the Centre for Sustainability. This
dedicated centre is to coordinate all planning initiatives, projects, networking, and monitoring of the
programme's progress in achieving its goals. This is essential in the beginning in order to share information,
understand the issues and concepts, and develop plans for future initiatives. Nearly, each faculty, department,

centre and unit has some significant role to play.

4-H Promise:
Since the university requires everyone’s commitment, following 4-H promise will be made.

“I Promise to be concerned on the following during my stay at USJP and even thereafter;

My HEAD to Think Critically,

My HEART to FEEL Morally,

My HANDS to ACT Competently,

My HEALTH to BEING Well (better living),

For myself, my university, my society, my country and my world.”

Core Values

Shared values are the commitments made by the USJP community regarding how work will be conducted. Our
values at USJP are:

% Academic Excellence and Performance

** Universal loving kindness and compassion

** Modesty and Integrity

#* Preserving Socio-cultural and Natural Heritage
** Freedom of Intellectual thought and Creativity

** Accountability and Social responsibility
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Vision, mission and core values of the US] are clearly aligned with the broad scope of the sustainability through
development of the human capital. This relevance has discussed in the Corporate Plan 2017-20121 in detail.

Goals

With that broad approach of the US] for contribution towards sustainability, objectives and strategies have been
crafted under seven broad goals namely;

1. Learning & Education: Considering THINK Critically, FEEL Morally and ACT Competently towards
Sustainability

2. Research & Development: Research, Publication, Public Engagement, Creativity and Innovation

3. People: Academic Faculty and Staff
Infrastructure: Organizational Structures, Resource Administration & Development (Image Building and
Promotion too)

5. Finance

6. Outstanding Student Experience: Being Well

7. Lifelong Community, Social Responsibility, National Development and Global/Regional Impact

AREAS ON STRATEGIC GOALS

1. Learning & Education: Considering THINK Critically, FEEL Morally and ACT
Competently towards Sustainability

2. Research & Development: Research, Publication, Public Engagement, Creativity and
Innovation

3. People: Academic Faculty and Staff

4. Infrastructure: Organizational Structures, Resource Administration & Development
(Image Building and Promotion too)

5. Finance
6. Outstanding Student Experience: Being Well

7. Lifelong Community, Social Responsibility, National Development and
Global/Regional Impact (Results)
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Sustainable Development Goals

The table below presents the way seven Sustainable Development Goals addressed by US] in its corporate plan
published for the period of 2017 to 2021

SDG Covered by corporate plan of USJ 2017-2021
Remarks Goal(s) Objective (s) Strategies
1. NoPoverty | Theseare Goal 1 1.3 1.2.4
addressed by the 2.1 1.3.2
vision, mission 2.1.3
and values 2.4.1
2. Zero clearly Goal 1 1.3 1.2.4
Hunger 2.1 1.3.2
2.1.3
2.4.1
3. Good Reflects by the Goal 1 1.1 1.1.4
Healthand @ Vision 2.1 2.1.3
Well-being 2.4 2.4.1
6.5 6.5.1
6.5.2
4.  Quality Reflects by the Goals 1 All the objectives of = All the strategies of Goal 01 All
Education  Vision, mission | and 2 Goal 01 the objectives of Goal 01
and values 2.2 2.2.1
5. Gender Aligned with Goals 2 2.1 2.1.1
Equality values and 3 2.4 2.1.3
3.1 2.4.1
3.1.4
6. Clean Mission and Goals 2 2.1 2.1.1
Waterand  values and 2.4 2.1.3
Sanitation 7 7.3 2.4.1
7.3.3
7.3.5
7. Affordable = Mission and Goals 2 2.1 2.1.1
and Clean  values and 7 2.4 2.1.3
Energy 7.3 2.4.1
7.3.3
8. Decent Mission, values | Goals1,2 | 1.3 13.2
Work and and 7 2.1 2.1.1
Economic 2.4 2.1.3
Growth 7.4 2.4.1
3.1.1
7.4.1
9. Industry, Goals 1,2 2.3 2.3.3
Innovation, and 7 2.4 2.3.4
and 2.6 2.4.1
Infrastructu 2.4.2
re 2.4.3
2.6.1
2.6.2
2.6.3
2.6.5
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10. Reducing Values Goals 1,2 1.2 12.2
Inequality and 7 2.1 2.1.3
2.4 2.4.3
3.1 3.1.1
3.2 3.1.4
3.3 3.2.1
All objectives in goal = All strategies in goal 7
7
11. Sustainable | Vision, mission : Goals1,2, | 2.1 2.1.3
Cities and and values 6and 7 2.4 2.4.1
Communiti 6.3 6.3.1
€s 7.3 7.3.1
7.5 7.3.2
7.3.3
7.5.2
12. Responsible | Goals 1,2 and 7 Goals 1, 2 1.8 1.8.1
Consumpti and 7 2.1 1.8.2
on and 2.2 2.1.3
Production 2.4 2.2.1
3.2 2.2.2
3.3 2.2.3
4.1 3.2.1
4.2 3.3.1
5.1 All strategies in goal 4
5.2 5.1.1
5.4 5.1.2
7.3 5.1.3
5.2.1
5.4.1
7.3.3
13. Climate Values Goals 1, 2 1.1 114
Action and 7 2.1 2.1.3
2.4 7.3.1
7.3 7.3.3
14. Life Below  Vision Goals 1 1.1 11.4
Water and 2 2.1.3
2.1
2.4
15. Life On Vision and Goals 1 1.1 111
Land mission and 2 2.1 2.1.3
2.4
16. Peace, Vision, Mission Goals 1 1.1 111
Justice, and = and values and 2 1.2 122
Strong 1.3 131
Institutions 1.8 132
2.1 181
2.2 1.6.1
3.1 1.62
3.2 181
3.3 1.82
5.3 2.1.1
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5.5 2.1.3
3.1.1
3.1.2
3.14
3.2.1
3.3.2
3.3.3
5.3.2
5.5.1
5.5.2

17. Partnership @ Mission and Goal 1.3 125
s for the values 2.3 1.3.1
Goals 2.4 2.1.3

6.2 233

6.6 234

24.1

242

243

26.1

262

263

264

265

6.2.1

6.6.1

Strategic Goal #1: Learning & Education

To inspire students to develop as competent global citizens with a pioneering, innovative, and
independent personalities

This goal lays emphasis on the extensiveness, timeless quality and the relevance of education of our students at all
levels.

This Goal is associated with:

e Outstanding student experience
e  Social responsibility
e National development

e  Global impact
Key Objectives:

To meet Goal #1, we will:

1.1 Facilitate, guide and support our students through our unique undergraduate, postgraduate degrees
and other degree programmes so that they obtain the required knowledge and apply it in their real-

life.
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1.2 Develop each student’s capacity to learn through enquiry and active learning approaches.

1.3 Update our curricular on a regular basis incorporating graduate attributes and employability skills to
strengthen our students to be globally competitive.

1.4  Facilitate and encourage extended and extra-curricular activities and create a conducive collegiate
learning environment.

1.5  Develop the students’ personality and soft skills, i.e., communication competencies, entrepreneurship
and ICT skills.

1.6 To maintain an effective assurance of learning (AoL) system together with timely and comprehensive
assessment feedback.

1.7 Ensure quality in all aspects of education and obtain world-class accreditation.

1.8 Ensure ethical conduct and apply globally accepted best practices.

Strategies:

We will achieve our objectives by:

111

113

114

122

124

125

131

Making our curricula flexible by introducing different entry and exit points.

Motivating our students to obtain foreign exposure as part of their degree programmes, through field

work, volunteering, vocation, and national or international training and learning.

Encouraging research-lead teaching and learning based on our research competencies and findings.
Introducing multidisciplinary and inter-discplinary courses and programmes.

Expanding and enhancing our open and distance learning range and facilities.

Introducing ‘Consulting Tutor” approach to guide each student’s academic plan and educational
progress, supporting them to take ownership of their learning and development and to plan for their

future careers.
Enabling our students to learn by research activities and exchanging knowledge.

Working closely with professional bodies, industry, alumni,and other stakeholders to ensure our degree

programmes are responsive to current needs.
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132 Accommodating curricular to produce graduates with economically and socially valuable attributes,

expertise and practices.
161  Upgrading and modifying the exiting assessment system.
162  Ensuring effective and transparent assessment methodologies.

181 Incorporating correct attitudes, values, professionalism, and vision for life into our programmes to

develop adaptable and flexible individuals.

182 Introducing codes of conduct and best practices for teaching and learning.

Strategic Goal #2: Research & Development: Research, Publications, Public Engagement, Creativity and Innovation

To foster a vibrant, successful, and interactive research culture that creates, discovers, and disseminates new fields
of knowledge and artefacts in different disciplines for the sustainable development of Sri Lanka, Asia and thereby
the Global communities

This goal encompasses the breadth and quality of our research, and it includes both undergraduate and postgraduate
research. Our deep-rooted knowledge arising from research and the skills that help us excel in our work.

This Goal is associated with:
e Learning and education
e  Global impact

e Lifelong community
Key Objectives:
To meet Goal #2, we will:

2.1  Formulate a sound research agenda by exploring new and emerging areas of research beyond

traditional boundaries.

2.2 Enhance the research capabilities and competencies of the researchers to establish a quality research

culture.
2.3 Publish, popularize, commercialize, and apply generated knowledge through research and innovation.
2.4  Publish and deliver research excellence with their impact.

2.6 Establish effective collaborations with industry, national and international entities for research

activities and finding grants.
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Strategies

We will achieve our objectives by:

2.1.1

2.1.3

2.2.1

2.2.2.

2.2.3

2.3.3

2.3.4

2.4.1

2.4.2

2.4.3

2.6.1

2.6.2

2.6.3

2.6.4

2.6.5

Preparing a USJP research agenda and prioritizing important research areas.
Providing leadership for solving burning local, regional and global issues.
Realizing the full potential of the breadth, quality, and volume of our research strengths.

Enhancing our stock of research competencies through national and international training opportunities

and collaborations.
Energizing people for sustainable and efficient use of equipment and software.
Ascertaining the best means of turning ideas from the staft and students into commercial realities.

Identifying and capitalizing intellectual property by embedding knowledge and exchanging
professionals in academic areas and by extending pre-incubation, incubation and science park

facilities’ social impact.

Linking and transferring our research excellence with noticeable economic, environmental, health,

wealth and ultimately the overall social impact.

Motivating to enhance high-impact knowledge exchange, public engagement and

consultancy.

Developing long-term, sustainable relationships of value with the small to medium-sized

enterprises (SMEs), through a focused and proactive engagement.
Formulating and securing strategic partnerships with research funders.

Nurturing new approaches to multi-disciplinary research, including encouragement of

outstanding regional and global research collaborations.
Fostering links with the business and financial community to support innovation.

Positioning ourselves to compete successfully for funding and professionalizing our approach to

securing overseas funding.

Using our reputation as a partner of choice for partnership and as a significant supporter in new

company, project, product development and creation.
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Facilitators:

Strategic Goal #3: People

To value, support, develop, and utilize the full potential of the staff to make the university a facilitating and a

stimulating place to work

Our success inachieving our strategic goals entirely depends on the outstanding performance and contribution of
all of our faculty and staff.

This Facilitator is associated with:

e Equality

¢ Lifelong Community,

e  Social Responsibility

e National Development
Key Objectives:

To meet Goal #3, we will:

3.1 Attract, reward and retain the best people, accessing talents from around the world.
3.2 Enhance the knowledge, capabilities, and skills of our whole staff to enhance new quality of establish
and research.
3.3 Create a supportive and collegial environment, which is underpinned by dignity, respect, diversity,
health and wellbeing.
Strategies

We willachieve our objectives by:

3.1.1

3.1.2

3.14

3.2.1

3.3.1

Promoting the attractiveness of USJP as a regionally and globally significant institution, and

supporting new staff members to become more effective.
Rewarding excellence and success in a variety of ways.
Maintain a sustainable staffing profile which meets our evolving challenging needs.

Investingstrategically in our staffin order to inspire and equip them to deploy a range of skills to shape,

influence,and lead through supporting professionalism, career development and advancement.

Promoting balanced work-life through flexible, interdisciplinary, team work and harmonious

approaches.
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3.3.2  Providing safe, accessible and pleasant working environments.

3.3.3  Fostering our sprit of culture of collegiality, tolerance, compassion, and strong ethics through effective

employee engagement and empowerment, transparency, and effective communication.

Strategic Goal #4: Infrastructure

To provide a modern, state-of-the-art, efficient, and stimulating learning and working environment to sustain
world class academic and support activities

High-quality infrastructure is a key to enabling us to achieve our strategic goals.
This Facilitator is associated with:

e Learning and Education

e People

e Social responsibility
Key Objectives:
To meet Goal #4, we will:

4.1 Pursue consistency and continuity in quality and experience across all elements of our physical,

library, information technology and other infrastructure considering the green concept.

4.2 Assess the scale and sustainability of our location whilst managing existing space and building
new important facilities, including iconic buildings, which form a key part of our heritage.
Strategies
We will achieve our objectives by:
4.1.1  Planning and developing our infrastructure to meet the changing needs of our diverse population

of staff, students, and the wider community.

4.1.2  Putting in place information and communication technology with the power and resilience to

optimize resource utilization.
4.1.3  Developing and maintaining rich and varied resources in the university.

4.1.4  Achieving greater integration of information technology infrastructure and major equipment
procurement within our overall infrastructure planning process (identifying future technological

development and positioning ourselves to rapidly and flexibly respond to these).
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4.1.5  Ensuring real-time and online information systems to support learning, teaching, research, and
effective decision-making (taking a systematic approach to acquiring, creating, capturing, storing,

presenting, and managing our resources).
4.2.1  Demonstrating agility in our approach in planning and delivering of projects.
4.2.2  Pursuing consolidation and reconfiguration of opportunities where required.
4.2.3  Acquire new space for future demands and optimize the use of existing space.

4.2.4  Makingstrides to improve our use of space and delivering increased value for money (this is via the
delivery of the long-term aims of our timetabling policy, the reduction of the extent of our dispersal
across small buildings, and the effective communication of the importance of good space
management among the faculties).

Strategic Goal #5: Finance

To maintain and enhance the overall financial strength to build a sustainable competitive position

Delivery of all the strategic goalsand objectives of the university is dependent on our overall financial soundness.
Key Objectives:

To meet Goal #5, we will:

5.1 Secure long-term financial viability
5.3 Ensure high standards of accountability, transparency, integrity and financial control
5.4 Deliver best value in all our activities efficienting and effecting on time
5.5 Ensure good university governance
Strategies

We will achieve our objectives by:

5.1.1  Prioritizing and aligningour resources with our strategic priorities by actively monitoring the economic
and funding environment and objectively appraising the long-term financial implications of all major

decisions.
5.1.2  Regularly updating our long-term financial forecasts and using these to guide decision making.

5.1.3  Securing and managing our funds to support investment in our infrastructure and develop new

sustainable activities.
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5.2.1  Periodically reviewing and updating our financial strategy and undertaking an annual assessment of

our financial sustainability.

5.4.1  Growing and diversifying our income from a wide range of financially sustainable academic and

commercial activities which generate surpluses for re-investment.

5.5.1  Ensuring that our investment and treasury strategies optimize the financial return to the university and

provide maximum financial support to endowed activities.
5.5.2  Enhancing our university governance framework to enhance decision makingand accountability.

Strategic Concerns:
Strategic Goal #6: Outstanding Student Experience

To create opportunities for the students to have an exceptional, distinctive and quality experience to prepare
themselves for life beyond their studies

This Facilitator is associated with:
e Learning and education
e Research and Development
e Lifelong Community

e  Social Responsibility

Key Objectives:
To meet Goal #6, we will:

6.2  Revitalize our academic and pastoral support framework.

6.3  Foster in our students and alumni a real sense of belonging to a community of learners.
6.5 Promote student mental and physical health, well-being, and safety.

6.6  Promote regional and global exposure.

Strategies
We will achieve our objectives by:

6.2.1  Working in partnership with our links to facilitate student experiments.
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6.3.1

6.5.1

6.5.2

6.6.1

Creating lifelong links with alumni for mutual benefits and improving our student experiences.

Strengthening the University Medical Centre to deal with all kinds of mental and physical health,

wellbeing, and safety matters.
Enhance the student welfare facilities ensuring the wellbeing and safety of students.

Facilitating our graduates with the expertise and attributes they need to achieve their full potential

within the regional and global community.

Goal # 7: Lifelong Community, Social Responsibility, National Development & Global/Regional Impact

To contribute to national, regional, and global development through uplifting lifelong community and mutually

beneficial relations with the stakeholders

This Strategic Concern has associations with:

e Learning and education
e Research and Development Infrastructure
Key Objectives:

To meet Goal #7, we will:

7.1  Make our resources and expertise widely available and be a responsible and influential adviser, neighbor,
and employer.

7.2 Build an informed, engaged, and supportive national and international community of alumni and
associate networks through a lifetime of contact.

7.3 Maintain quality standards and create the conditions to facilitate our community and inspire to
contribute towards social responsibility and sustainability across the University and beyond.

7.4 Enhance our engagement in national development with our work, strong collaboration with policy-
makers, and national bodies and bring about change.

7.5  Move global in our aspirations and impact to the benefit of the University and society as a whole.

Strategies

We will achieve our objectives by:

7.3.3

Demonstrating our main social, environmental, and economic impacts.
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7.3.5 Promoting the green concepts to reuse, reduce waste, maximize recycling, use renewable energy (Bio-

gas/ Solar) and foresting in and outside the university.

7.4.1 Demonstrating our view that public engagement is a key element of our purpose, linked to research

impact, by promoting, recognizing and celebrating success in this area.
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Subject 2019
Personnel Emoluments 3,875,309
Traveling 30,504
Supplies 142,706
Maintenance Expenditure 28,070
Contractual Services 652,018
Other 548,739
Capital Grant - Recurrent nature expenditure 414,833
Total 5,692,179
Recurrent Expenditure
414,833
B Personnel
W 548,739 Emoluments
M Traveling
B 652,
m 280 Supplies
m 142,
® 305 m Maintenance
Expenditure
B Contractual Services
m Other
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. Total No of Cost Per
Faculty Total Expenditure (Rs) Students 2019 Student (Rs)
a. Applied Science 1,097,647,886 2334 470,286
b. Humanities & Social Sciences 1,114,268,151 3473 320,837
C. Medical Sciences 838,009,168 941 890,552
D. Management Studies & Commerce 1,468,014,997 4793 306,283
E. Faculty of Engineering 241,425,659 351 687,822
E. Faculty of Technology 359,982,338 947 380,129
G. Faculty of Allied Health Science 116,057,395 296 392,086
5,235,405,595 13,135

Subject 2016 2017 2018 2019
a.Acquisition of Assets
239,151 542,137 724,950 300,926
b.Acquisition of Building & Structures
d & 658,309 269,169 1,395,075 787,141
c.Library Books
13,962 33,337 30,914 21,304
d.Knowledge Enhancement Grant
e.Human Capital Development Project
121,084 1,650 9,253 12,937
f. St hening R h
rengthening Researc 137,341 146,417 369,062 168,857
e.Other(Rehabilitation)
126,343 142,472 127,597 234,210
Total 1,296,190 1,135,182 2,656,851 1,525,375

Subject Formula Expenditure Per
Student
a.Recurrent Expenditure per Student (RE) RE/ No of Students 433
b.Capital Expenditure per Student (CE) CE/ No of Students 116
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Subject 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

1. Personnel Emoluments 1,938,192 2,181,660 2,384,967 2,989,044 3,875,309
2. Traveling 27,594 46,122 32,170 41,015 30,504
3. Supplies 95,291 105,859 117,133 126,643 142,706
4. Maintenance 96,239 129,262 35,884 74,378 28,070
Expenditure

5. Contractual Services 280,647 350,182 496,041 577,564 652,018
6. Other 319,590 313,821 385,306 377,922 547,760
7. Research & development 44,341 945 293 1,682 979
8. University Township 62,115 114,359 259,834 391,920 414,833
Project & Other

Total 2,864,009 3,242,210 3,711,628 4,580,168 5,692,179

Subject 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Capital Grant 875,000 1,297,200 1,139,312 2,653,700 1,510,156
Recurrent Grant 2,360,000 2,537,702 2,907,750 3,590,000 4,589,000
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Subject 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Capital Expenditure 887,793 1,296,190 1,135,182 2,656,851 1,525,375
Recurrent Expenditure 2,864,009 3,242,210 3,711,628 4,580,168 5,692,179
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31" DECEMBER 2019

ASSETS
NON - CURRENT ASSETS

Property Plant & Equipment
Library Books & Cloaks
Capital Work in Progress
Intangible Assets

Financial Assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Sundry Debtors & Receivables
Current Financial Asset
Advances to Staff

Advances & Pre Payments

Cash and Cash Equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

University of Sri Jayewardenepura

Note

10

11

12

13

14

15

As at 31st December
2019

As at 31st December
2018

Rs.

9,910,769,599

57,276,878

2,614,067,646

23,643,797

2,048,104,499

Rs.

9,342,136,008

51,025,615

1,393,602,358

19,543,268

1,612,763,872

14,653,862,420 12,419,071,121
56,664,388 40,058,196
130,435,842 138,010,552
745,468 970,758
235,390,373 490,537,100
93,513,344 70,432,850
516,749,415 740,009,456
15,170,611,835 13,159,080,574
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UNIVERSITY OF SRI JAYEWARDENEPURA

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY Note
Capital Grants 16 6,337,961,992 5,804,452,314
Other Capital Grants 17 966,321,412 430,580,383
Gifts & Donations 18 490,212,514 30,075,835
Revaluation Surplus 5,245,641,447 5,123,774,169
Retained Earnings (1,421,832,744) (488,764,645)
11,618,304,621 10,900,118,057
RESERVES & RESTRICTED FUNDS
Internally Restricted Funds 19 722,059,096 583,279,328
Capital Reserves 20 1,574,237 1,574,237
Endowment Funds 21 31,969,905 29,932,386
Outside Research Grants 22 140,089,224 110,712,440
Deferred Income - Extension Programmes 23 590,026,671 445,860,667
1,485,719,132 1,171,359,059
NON- CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provision for defined benefit obligation 24 1,312,962,990 506,796,798
1,312,962,990 506,796,798
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deposits Refundable 25 32,728,127 20,225,125
Accrued Expenses & Other Payables 26 720,896,961 560,581,535
753,625,088 580,806,660
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 15,170,611,835 13,159,080,574

K.T.C Priyangani
Bursar

K.G. Britto
Registrar

The Members of the Council are responsible for the preparation & presentation of these Financial Statements.

Signed for and on behalf of the Council

AR

: IZ=,

Senyéo\ ~S.S.L.W. Liyanage . Sujdewa Rajapaksé
cil Member

Acting Vice - Chancellor
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31" DECEMBER 2019

REVENUE

Government Grants - Recurrent
Government Grants - Capital - Recurrent Nature

Internal Income
Amortization of Government Grants & Donations
Grants- Mahapola

Grants - Bursary

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENSES

Personnel Emoluments

Travelling Expenses

Supplies

Maintenance Expenditure

Contractual Services

Other Recurrent Expenses

Defined benefit obligation

Actuarial gain/ loss on defined benefit obligation
Add: Interest Cost on defined benefit obligation
Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Capital Grant - Recurrent Expenditure
Depreciation

Amortization of Intangible Assets

Expenses- Mahapola

Expenses- Bursary

2019

2018

Rs.

4,589,000,000

Rs.

3,590,000,000

394,188,677 387,926,049

817,429,736 606,609,357

708,820,644 545,661,575
72,373,750 453,492,500
53,482,100 65,561,600
6,635,294,907 5,649,251,082

3,875,309,550
30,504,296
142,706,205
28,070,295
652,018,404
548,738,657
85,776,849
714,907,070
55,747,648
269,444
414,832,945
826,318,757
5,559,806
72,373,750
53,482,100

2,989,043,825
41,014,803
126,642,848
74,378,113
577,563,951
379,604,040
33,225,295
8,963,789

540,359
391,919,826
660,576,278

6,693,709
453,492,500
65,561,600

TOTAL EXPENSES 7,506,615,777 5,809,220,936
SURPLUS /(DEFICT) FOR THE YEAR (871,320,870) (159,969,855)
| Annual Report 2019
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 315" DECEMBER 2019

As at 31/12/2019

As at 31/12/2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Surplus / (deficit) from Operating activities
Adjustments

Depreciation

Impairment loss on Loans

Interest from Investments

Provision for Gratuity

Interest Cost on defined benefit obligation
Acturial gain/ loss on defined benefit obligation
Amortization of Government Grants & Donations
Profit / loss on Disposals of Assets

Transfer to rehabilitation expenses

Amortization of Intangible Assets

Government Grant - Rehabilitation Maintenance and
Knowledge Enhancement Activities

Rs.

(871,320,870)

826,318,757

(179,656,131)
85,776,849
55,747,648

714,907,070

(708,820,644)

Rs.

(159,969,855)

660,576,278
222,895
(114,879,276)

33,225,295

8,963,789

(545,661,575)

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities before Working
Capital Changes

(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories

(Increase) / Decrease in Sundry Debtors & Receivables
(Increase) / Decrease in Loan & Advances to the Staff
(Increase) / Decrease in Advances & Prepayments
Increase / (Decrease) in Accrued & other Payable Expenses

Increase / (Decrease) in Deposits Refundable

Increase / (Decrease) in Deffered Income Extension
Programmes

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities after Working
Capital Changes

269,444 540,359
- 2,336,090
5,559,806 6,693,709
(394,188,677) (387,926,049)
(465,406,747) (495,878,340)
(16,606,192) 812,710
16,706,678 (26,815,476)
225,290 (429,350)
255,146,727 (166,149,726)
160,315,425 160,564,237
12,503,002 6,914,290
144,166,003 179,871,509
107,050,187 (341,110,145)

Gratuity Payment

(50,265,375)

(34,243,329)

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities

56,784,812

(375,353,474)
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CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment

Sale proceeds on Property, Plant and Equipment
Interest from Investments

Capital Work in Progress

Funds invested in fixed deposits

Withdrawal of fixed deposits

Staff Loan Payment

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Government Grant - Capital

Utilization of Endowment Fund

Utilization of External Funds

Internally Restricted Funds

Research Grants

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the year

University of Sri Jayewardenepura
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Asat 31/12/2019

Rs.

(100,722,642)
1,945,753
170,524,163
(1,288,713,884)
(519,215,725)
75,645,063
8,230,034

(1,652,307,238)

1,510,156,076
2,037,519
(61,747,229)
138,779,768
29,376,784
1,618,602,919
23,080,492
70,432,850

93,513,344

As at 31/12/2018

Rs.

(793,851,739)
1,723,097
102,524,210
(1,381,053,340)
(459,222,948)
89,614,478
2,279,476

(2,437,986,766)

2,653,700,000
1,372,844
(22,178,370)
186,520,485
15,918,471
2,835,333,430
21,993,190
48,439,662

70,432,850
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31* DECEMBER 2019

_ - . . Capital Grants Capital Grants Donations &
Description Retained Earnings Revaluation Surplus w v Total
Spent Unspent Other Grants
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Balance as at 01* January 2019 (488,764,645) 5,123,774,169 5,802,154,894 2,297,420 460,656,220 10,900,118,057
Impact of cheque cancellation (13,000,000) 13,000,000 -
Capital Grants Spent during the year - - 1,525,375,820 (1,525,375,820) - -
Funds Received during the year - - - 1,480,460,000 - 1,480,460,000
Fund received from AHEAD Project 29,696,076 29,696,076
Revaluation Surplus on Motor Vehicle 121,867,278 - - - 121,867,278
Contribution to Capital Grants from Generated Funds - - - - 14,459,696 14,459,696
Capital Grants Rehabilitation Maintenance & Knowledge
L - - (394,188,677) - - (394,188,677)
Enhancement Activities
Donations received during the year - - - - 1,107,780,933 1,107,780,933
Amortization - Grants & Donations - - (582,457,723) - (126,362,921) (708,820,644)
Fund - Breach of Contracts (24,964,785) - - - - (24,964,785)
Surplus / ( Deficit ) for the period (871,320,870) - - - - (871,320,870)
Interest Income credited to development fund (36,782,444) - - - - (36,782,444)
Balance as at 31* December 2019 (1,421,832,744) 5,245,641,447 6,337,884,314 77,678 1,456,533,927 11,618,304,621
Annual Report 2019

University of Sri Jayewardenepura [ 174




SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNT POLICIES TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - 2019

1. Reporting Entity

University of Sri Jayewardenepura University has been incorporated under the Universities
Act No.16 of 1978, and located at Gangodawila, Nugegoda Sri Lanka. University is
functioned under the Ministry of Higher Education, Technology and Innovation.

1.1. Date of authorization for issue

The Financial Statements of the University of Sri Jayewardenepura were authorized for issue
by the Council dated on 26.02.2020.

1.2. Reporting period

The financial period of the University represent from 01% January 2019 to 31* December
2019.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Statement of compliance

The Financial Statements of the University have been prepared and presented in accordance
with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards (SLPSAS’s). However Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards also have been used in the areas where no Public Sector
Accounting Standards are available. These Financial Statements comprise the statement
of Financial Position, Statement of Financial Performance, Statement of Cash flows,
Changes in equity and Notes to the Financial Statements.

2.2 Basis of measurement

The Financial Statements of the University of Sri Jayewardenepura have been prepared on
the historical cost basis and apply consistently. No adjustments have been made for
inflation factors affecting to the financial statements except for the property, plant and
equipment measured at fair value.

2.3 Comparative information

All accounting policies adopted by the University are applied consistently with those of the
previous year, where necessary comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to
the changes, in presentation of current year figures.

2.4 Materiality and aggregation
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Each material class of similar items have presented separately in the financial statements.
Items of dissimilar nature or function have presented separately unless they are
immaterial.

2.5 Offsetting

Assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses have not been offset unless required or permitted
by SLPSAS.

2.6 Going concern

The University has assessed the ability to continue as a going concern. The council of
University has a reasonable expectation that the University has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. University does not foresee
a need for liquidation or cessation of operations, taking into account all available
information about future. Accordingly the University continues to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

2.7 Events after the reporting period

All material events after the reporting date have been considered and where appropriate
adjustments or disclosures wherever necessary have been made in the Financial
Statements.

2.8 Functional & presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the University are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the University operates (the functional
currency). These financial statements are prepared and presented in ‘Sri Lankan
Rupees’ (Rs.), which is the University’s functional and presentation currency.

2.9 Transaction of foreign currencies and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where item are re measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities

denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the income statement.

2.10 Rounding
The amounts in financial statements have been rounded-off to the nearest rupee, except
otherwise indicated as permitted by the Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards.
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2.11 Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE)

The University’s Property Plant & Equipment (PPE) includes Land, Buildings, Laboratory
and Teaching Equipment, Office Equipment, Furniture& Fittings, Library Books and
Periodicals, Motor Vehicles, Cloaks, Sport Goods and Other Assets.

a.  Basis of recognition

Property, Plant and Equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits
associate with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be reliably
measured.

i)  Initial recognition

Property, Plant & Equipment are initially recognized at cost including the cost of purchase
with any incidental expenses incurred in bringing the assets to its working conditions,
for its intend use, Subsequent to initial Recognition and PPE are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

ii) Subsequent expenditure on existing Property, Plant & Equipment

Expenditure incurred on tangible PPE is charged to the Statement of Financial Performance
in the period it is incurred, unless it meets one of the following criteria, in which case it
is capitalized and depreciated over the relevant useful life time.

e Increase in the capacity of the asset.
e  Substantial improvement in the quality of output or reduction in operating cost.

e  Significant extension of the life of the asset beyond that confirmed by repair and
maintenance.

e  Market value of PPE has subsequently increased.

*  Expenditure incurred on repairs or maintenance of property, plant and equipment in
order to restore or maintain the future economic benefits expected from originally

assessed standard of performance, is recognized as an expense when incurred.

iii) Measurement after recognition

Cost model

After recognition all the PPE except the classes of Land, Buildings, Motor Vehicles,
Laboratory and Teaching Equipment, Sports Goods, Other Equipment and Furniture &
Fittings are carried at its cost less accumulated Depreciation.

Revaluation model

After initial recognition below classes of PPE whose fair value can be measured reliably has
been carried at revalued amounts, which is fair value at the date of revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Land & Buildings,
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Motor Vehicles,

Office equipment,

Lab & Teaching Equipment,
Furniture &Fittings,
Computer &Accessories,
Sports goods & Other Assets,

Carrying value of PPE and intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment if any such indications exist, then the
assets recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in
the statement of financial performances.

iv) Library Books & Cloaks

Cost of Library books and Cloaks are depreciated on the straight line basis over a period of 5
years.

V) Intangible assets

Computer softwares and online journals have been recognized as intangible assets when it is
probable that future economic benefits that are attributable to the assets will flow the
enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets acquired
are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
These costs are amortized over their estimated useful lives.

b) Depreciation

Depreciation is recognized in the statement of Financial Performance on the straight line
basis on each component of an item of PPE other than freehold land.

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use and ceases at the earlier of the date
that the asset is classified as held for sale and the date that the asset is de-recognized.

The estimated useful life periods are as follows.

Assets Category Estimated useful life
Buildings 20 years
Furniture & Fittings 10 years
Laboratory and Teaching Equipment 05 years

Office Equipment 05 years
Motor Vehicles 2-5 years
Computer & Accessories 05 years
Sports Goods 05 years

Other Assets (Including Water, Telephone & Electricity Scheme) 10 years
Partitions and interior works 05 years
Land Scape 05 years

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period, assets carrying amount is written down immediately to its
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recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and gain / (Loss) is recognized in the statements of comprehensive income.

¢) De-recognition

The carrying amount of PPE is derecognized at the disposal or when no future economic
benefits or service potential is expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising
from the derecognition shall be included in surplus or deficit when the item is
derecognized.

2.12 Financial Assets

Investment

Investments represent investment in fixed deposits and savings accounts. These investments
have been accounted in compliance with SLERS 09. The investments in fixed deposits
and savings accounts have been classified at amortized cost as per SLFRS 09. They are
initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at fair value less amortized
cost by using effective interest rate as required by SLFRS 09

Staff Loan

The staff loan includes distress loan, computer loan, publication loan, vehicle loan and other
staff loans. The staff loans have been classified as financial assets at amortized cost as per
SLFRS 09. Impairment losses in any staff loan have been recognized on expected lost
method as stipulated in SLFRS 09.

2.13 Capital work-in-progress

Capital expenses incurred on PPE which are not completed as at the reporting date are shown
as Capital Work-in-Progress and cost incurred on Capital Work-in-progress is
transferred to PPE when it is available for use.

2.14 Current assets

Current Assets classified in Statement of Financial Position are those which are expected to
be realized in, or consumption in, in the university’s normal operating cycle, expected
to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date or cash or a cash equivalent.

2.15 Inventories

Inventories which are for consumption and not for resale are stated at cost and determined
on First in First out (FIFO) basis.

2.16 Advances to staff and receivables

Advances to staff and receivable comprise, festival advance and book allowances.
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2.17 Cash & cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash in hand, demand deposits and short term
highly liquid investments readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to
insignificant risk of change in value. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash & cash
equivalent includes cash in hand and deposits in banks. Investments with short term
maturity of six months or less from the date of acquisition are also treated as cash
equivalents. The cash flow statement is prepared based on the indirect method.

2.18 Accounting for government grants for capital expenditure

2.18.1 Recurrent grant

Recurrent grants are recognized in the Statement of Financial Performance on cash basis.
Cost of rehabilitation of PPE and capital grants for construction and new work are
recognized either as work in progress or Capital Assets where necessary.

2.18.2 Contribution to capital outlay from outside grants

The value of PPE purchased out of generated funds & various project funds were shown as
“Contribution to Capital Outlay from outside Grants”.

2.18.3 Capital grants

Government Grants and Donations received by the way of treasury and other lending
agencies have presented in the Financial Statements in accordance with the SLPSAS (11)
Revenue from non-exchange transaction and LKAS 20 Government Grants, has been
recognized as deferred income in the statement of financial position and amortized over
the useful life of the asset.

2.18.4 Internally restricted funds

Internally restricted funds include funds committed for specific purpose. Faculty
Development Funds represent the cumulative position of Faculties/Departments Funds
with net unspent balances at the year end.

2.18.5 Endowment fund

Endowment funds include restricted donations received by the University and investment
returns generated from endowment funds are used in accordance with the various
purpose established by the donors.

2.19 Employee benefits

Defined contribution plans
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Employees are eligible for University Provident Fund (UPF) Contributions, Employees’
Trust Fund (ETF), University Pension Fund, Contributions is in line with the respective
statutes and regulations. The University pays fixed contributions on basic emoluments
plus Cost of Living allowances, academic allowances and monthly compensation
allowances of employees to the University Provident Fund and Employees’ Trust Fund,
University Pension Fund and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. This obligation falls within the scope of the defined contribution plan SLPSA
19 on employment benefit. Obligation for contribution to define contribution plan are
recognized in the Statement of Financial Performances as the related service is provided.

Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans are post-employment plans other than defined contribution plans.The
University is liable to pay gratuity in terms of the Payment of Gratuity Act No. 12 of
1983.

2.20 Liabilities and provisions

Current liabilities
Current Liabilities are stated at their book value.
Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the University has present obligations (legal and
constructive) as a result of a past event, where it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

2.20.1 Define benefit obligations

In accordance with the Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, a liability arises for a defined benefit
obligation to employees. Such defined benefit obligation is a post-employment benefit
obligation falling within the scope of Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting SLPSA 19
Employee Benefit. The liability recognized in the Statement of Financial Position is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date. The calculation is
performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method
(PUC). Remeasurement of the defined benefit liability, which comprises actuarial gains
and losses are recognized immediately in the statement of financial performances. The
University recognizes the increase in defined benefit liability attribute to the services
provided by employees during the year (current service cost) in profit or loss together
with interest expenses. The discount rate has been derived considering the yield of
government bonds.

Accounting Estimate
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The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of
return on assets, future salary increase and mortality rates, due to the long term nature
of the obligation, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainly.

2.20.2 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Contingent assets and liabilities have been accounted in accordance with SLPSASS.
Accordingly a contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
whose existence will be continued by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events beyond the control of the program or a present obligation that
is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation.

A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot
be measured reliably. The uncertainty does not recognize a contingent liability but
disclose its existence in the financial statement.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the University. The University does not recognize contingent
asset but discloses its existence where inflow of economic benefits are probable but not
virtually certain.

2.21 Revenue recognition

2.21.1 Income from fee levying courses

Income from fee levying courses and other activities are recognized on accrual basis over the
period of the course and degrees.

2.21.2 Finance income

Interest income is recognized on accruing basis using effective interest rate method according
to SLFRS 09 due to the absence of SLPSAS.

2.21.3 Expenditure recognition

Expenses incurred in carrying out all activities of the University are recognized on an accrual
basis and charged to the statement of Financial Performance.

2.22 Statement of cash flows

The cash flow statement has been prepared by using The Indirect Method in accordance with
the SLPSAS 2 whereby gross cash receipts and gross cash payments of operating
activities, finance activities and investing activities have been recognized. Cash and cash
equivalents comprise short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of the University of Sri
Jayewardenepura and its affairs for the year ended 31 December 2019 in terms of 154(6) of the

constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka.

1.1 Qualified Opinion

The audit of the financial statements of the University of Sri Jayawardenapura for the year ended 31
December 2019 comprising the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019 and the statement of
financial performance, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, was carried out
under my direction in pursuance of provisions in Article 154 (1) of the Constitution of the Democratic
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka read in conjunction with the provisions in section 108 and sub-section
107 (5) of the Universities Act No. 16 of 1978 and National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018. My comments

and observations which I consider should be reported to Parliament appear in this report.

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in Paragraph 1.5 of this report, the
financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the University as at 31
December 2019 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with

Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards.

1.2 Basis for Qualified Opinion

My opinion is qualified based on the matters described in paragraph 1.5 of this report.

I'conducted my audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAuSs). My responsibilities,
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of my report. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified opinion.

1.3 Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the University’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intend to liquidate the University or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the University’s financial reporting process.

As per Section 16(1) of the National Audit Act No. 19 of 2018, the University is required to maintain
proper books and records of all its income, expenditure, assets and liabilities, to enable annual and periodic

financial statements to be prepared of the University.

1.4  Auditors Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards, | exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. [ also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness

of the University’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures made by the management.
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¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the University’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However,

future events or conditions may cause the University to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.

The scope of the audit also extended to examine as far as possible, and as far as necessary the following;

®  Whether the organization, systems, procedures, books, records and other documents have been properly
and adequately designed from the point of view of the presentation of information to enable a continuous
evaluation of the activities of the University and whether such systems, procedures, books, records and

other documents are in effective operation;

e Whether the University has complied with applicable written law, or other general or special directions

issued by the governing body of the University;
®  Whether the University has performed according to its powers, functions and duties; and

®  Whether the resources of the University had been procured and utilized economically, efficiently and

effectively within the time frames and in compliance with the applicable laws.

1.5 Financial Statements

I.5.1 Internal Control over the preparation of financial statements.

Entities are required to “devise and maintain™ a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide
reasonable assurance that , transactions are executed in accordance with management’s general or specific
authorization, transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
conformity with the applicable reporting standards , and to maintain accountability for assets, access to
assets is permitted only in accordance with management’s general or specific authorization, and the
recorded accountability for assets is compared with the existing assets at reasonable intervals and

appropriate action is taken with respect to any differences.
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1.5.2 Non-Compliance to the Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Statements

Non-compliance with reference to

the Particular Standard

Management Comment

Even though, In accordance with
paragraph 76 (c) of the Sri Lanka
Public Sector Accounting Standard
01, assets expected to be realize
within 12 months after the date of
reporting date should be classified as
current assets, 42 short term deposits
total amounting to Rs. 298,416,940
and total 9  savings accounts total
amounting to Rs. 12,650,598 had
been non-current

shown under

assets.

1.5.3  Accounting Policies

Audit Observation

Due to the annual renewal fee paid
for a library database amounting to

Rs. 3,142,905

debited to the library book account,

was  erroneous

the value of the library books by

| University of Sri Jayewardenepura
2019

According to the Sri Lanka
Public Sector  Accounting
Standards 02, Cash Flow

Statements, cash includes cash in
hand
Accordingly,

and demand deposits.

the interest rate
paid by the bank for the money
invested in investment purposes
by fixed

deposits, is into

the university in

also taken
account. Even though invested in
short-term (03 months) fixed
deposits, those are maintained as
investments until the balance is

utilized for the relevant purposes

subject to renewal of those
deposits. Therefore, these
balances are  shown  as
investments and not as cash
equivalents.

Management Comment

Corrections will be made in 2020.

[187]

Recommendation

Should be complied with Sri
Lanka Public

Accounting Standards.

Sector

Recommendation

Should be act in accordance
with the depreciation policy of

the University.
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that amount and the depreciation for
the year by Rs. 70,608 were over

stated.

1.5.4  Accounting Deficiencies

Audit Observation

Fixed assets Procured for
research projects total valued for
Rs. 2,236,807 had

capitalized.

not been

1.6 Accounts Payable and Receivable

1.6.1 Accounts Receivables

Audit Observation

(a) Due to the contractor had
abandoned the works of
repairing the chemical

laboratory building and the
new art gallery, the contract
was terminated on 25 April
2012. However, out of the
advance paid to the contractor
amounted to Rs. 2,268,483 a
sum of Rs. 1,764,013
receivable for the uncovered
works had not been recovered
even during the year under

review.
(b) 42 lecturers who had gone
abroad for postgraduate

degrees had not reported for
duty and due to breach of
bond agreements a bond
value of Rs. 113,714,235
had to be recovered as on 30
June 2020.

| University of Sri Jayewardenepura
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Management Comment Recommendation

All fixed assets procured for
research projects should be

capitalized
Management Comment Recommendation
Legal action had been taken. Action should be taken to

recover the dues immediately.

A sum of Rs. 24,964,784.54 had All bond balances should be

been recovered in the year 2019.  recovered within a specified
time frame and the terms of the
agreements should be
strengthened to prevent bond
breaches in the future.
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(c)

1.6.2

disaster
as

Out of the loan
balance due 31
December 2019, the balance
for the period ranged from 2 to
3 years was Rs. 241,980 and
balance ranged for the period
of 3 years and above total was
Rs. 1,145,505.

on

Accounts Payable

Audit Observation

The total retention money since the
year 2013 in respect of 92 contract

works was Rs.

116,737,289 and

action had not been settled or taken
in to the income.

1.7

A sum of Rs. 217,680 had been
recovered during the year 2020, A
case is pending in the Labor
Court for two and the remaining
loan balance amount will be
recovered in the payment of the
provident fund.

Management Comment

Some of the contracts in here
have been completed and action
will be taken to release the
retention money in the
termination of those contracts.
Action will be taken get other in
to the income

H8o Bosa mbamee
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A systematic plan should be
formulated and implemented to
recover the dues.

Recommendation

Should be complied with the
Financial Regulations.

Non-compliance with Laws, Rules, Regulations and Management Decisions etc.

Reference to Laws,
Rules

Regulations etc.

L ——

(a) Establishments Code of
the Democratic
Socialist Republic of

Sri Lanka
As per Section 3.18 of
the Chapter XXIV

| University of Sri Jayewardenepura
2019

Non-compliance Management Recommendation
Comment
Without recovering or The loan amount of Provisions of the
making any satisfactory one of the three Establishments
recovery arrangements mentioned in the Code should be
of total distress loan audit query is being complied.
balance amounting to recovered from
RS. 366,648 from 03 June 2019 and the
officers, no pay leave other two have
had been granted. resigned from the
University.  Their
balance will be
recovered from the
provident fund.
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(b)

(1)

(i) Financial

Financial ~ Regulations

of the Democratic

Socialist Republic of

Sri Lanka

Financial ~ Regulation
371 (2). (5) and Public
Finance Circular No.
03/2015 dated 14 July
2015.

Regulation
396

University of Sri Jayewardenepura

(i)Even though the ad-
hoc imprest taken by
an officer should be
settled soon after the
intended work is
completed or within
10 days, settlement of
84 advances total
amounting to Rs.
4,232,885 were
delayed ranged
period from 21 days
to 164 days.

(ii)Even though ad-hoc
imprest can be given
to a maximum limit
of Rs. 100,000,
exceeding that limit,
advances had been
given to 07 officers
ranged from Rs.
102,240 to  Rs.
277,800 in 15
instances

Action had not been

taken in terms of

Regulation

with regards to the 161

Financial

cancelled cheques
valued for Rs.
1,303,000 relevant to

the period from 23
January 2014 to 29 May
2019.

[190]

NAOSL

Settlement of

Advances had been
delayed due to the
employees  strike
but those advances
have already been
settled. Also, some
advances have been
settled on time after
completion of the
relevant work.

Advances had been
with  the
permission of the
Vice Chancellor

given

Action is  being
taken to get in to
the income on the
recommendation of
the

committee.

finance

$Ho Bodn mbames
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Financial
Regulations
circulars should be
followed.

and

Financial
Regulations
circulars should be
followed

and

Should be act in
accordance with the
Financial
Regulations.
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(¢c) Establishment Code of

University Grants
Commission and Higher

Education

Section 3.1 of Chapter
XX and Section 1.6.1 of
Chapter 10

(d) University Grants

Commission  Circular
No. 13/2015 dated 18
September 2015

Public

and

Administration
No. 172015

dated 25 May 2015.

Circular

| University of Sri Jayewardenepura
2019

Records of attendance,
departure and leave of
academic staff had not
been maintained and
had not been complied
with the instructions
given at the Committee
on Public Enterprises
(COPE) to establish a
mechanism to verify in
and out and leave of
academic staff.

In addition to the

approved monthly fuel
liter in terms of circular
provisions,  additional
fuel liters 6,797 valued
Rs. 856,569 had

been issued to the 06

for
Deans in the University

during the year under

review.

[191]

o~

NAOSL

The University
Grants Commission
should advise on
how to take a
decision and act in
this regard.

In terms of the

circulars, the
Governing Council
had

additional

approved
fuel as
the
Also,

per
requirement.
as the vehicles
belonging to the

university are very

old and, even
though  approval
was  sought to

dispose and buy
new vehicles, the
approval has not

granted.
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Follow the
recommendations
of the Committee
on Public
Enterprises.

Should be act in
accordance with the
circular provisions.
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(e)

Procurement Guidelines

of the Democratic
Socialist Republic of
Sri Lanka

(i) As per the Government
Procurement  Manual
2.8.4

(i) Section 8.13.3 and
8.13.4 of the

Procurement Guidelines

| University of Sri Jayewardenepura

2019

Even though at least
one member of the
Technical  Evaluation
Committees for
Departmental

Procurement

Committees, for

contracts over Rs. 100
million, should be from
the line ministry or
outside from the
procurement entity
having knowledge of
the relevant subject, but
it was observed that all
the three members of

the Technical
Evaluation Committee
of the contract for the
expansion of  the
University
Administration
Building, which cost

Rs. 41.5 million, were
University officials.

When the
contingency provision
is exceeded 10% from
the estimated contract
value, the contract
variation order should
be submitted for
approval  to  the
appropriate level of
authority. But the
appropriate approval
had not been taken for
the variation
exceeded 25% valued
for Rs. 10,557,915 in
the contract of the

[192]

NAOSL

The Technical
Evaluation

Committee has
been duly
appointed on the
basis of the

contract value.

- &80 Basw mbmes
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Procurement
guidelines
be followed.

should

As per the Procurement
decisions taken at guidelines should
the progress review be followed.
meetings, the
Governing  Body
approval has been
obtained for
additional  works
and variable items
that do not exceed
the total value of
the contract.
Page | 9
Annual Report



1.8 Financial Management

2.1

Audit Observation

A sum of Rs. 3,763,349 had been
fraudulent by a clerk in the Faculty
of Humanities by changing the
computerized  information  of
lecturer allowances and
action had been taken to recover
Rs. 3,355,624 in 03 installments
without preceding any legal action.
The remaining balance of Rs.
407,725 and the related financial
costs have not yet been recovered
and no action had been taken
against the parties responsible for
the authorization, recommendation
and approval of the payment of
external lecturer allowances.

external

Financial Review

Financial Result

expansion of the
administrative
building.

Management Comment

Her consent has been obtained
to recover the balance from the
University Provident Fund as
per the recommendations of
the formal inquiry. The
amount receivable from her is
shown in the financial
statements as a balance
according to the accounting
standards. The relevant clerk
has paid Rs. 3,355,624 to the
university.

H60 Bosn mbEee
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Recommendation

Efforts should be made to prevent
fraud and errors and to detect such
practices, and to introduce, maintain
and update an adequate
appropriate new accounting and
internal control system.

and

The operations for the year under review had been a deficit of Rs. 871,320,870 as compared with the

corresponding deficit of Rs. 159,969,855 for the preceding year, thus indicating an deterioration of

Rs.711,351,015 in the financial result. Increase in the personal emoluments and gratuity expenditure had

been the main reasons for the said deterioration.

University of Sri Jayewardenepura

2019

[193]
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3. Operational Review

3.1 Operational Inefficiencies

Audit Observation

Even though the university should
introduce new courses for new
ideas, innovations and
technological advancements and
for the new job the
University of Sri Jayewardenepura
had introduced only 01 and 04
in 2011/2012 and
2015/2016 academic years only in
the last 10 years period.

market,

new courses

3.2 Under -utilization of Funds

Audit Observation

Out of total sum of Rs. 32
million available in 101 Prize
and Scholarship Funds, had
been utilized only Rs. 5 million
or about 15.6 less percentage
for the intended purpose at the
end of the year under review
and a sum of Rs. 20,385,955
remained in 30 inactive funds
had not been utilized for the
relevant purpose. Also, as on 31
December of the year under
review, a sum of Rs. 40,074,900
available in 36 research fund
accounts had not been utilized
for more than 04 years and total
sum of Rs. 4,699,502 available
in 08 research fund accounts
and a total sum of Rs.
73,067,553 available in 15
special funds had not been
utilized during the year under
review,

| University of Sri Jayewardenepura
2019
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Recommendation

been
the
the

New  courses have

introduced according to
resources available at
University annual

allocation.

and the

Management Comment

Scholarship and prize funds
were established for a specific
purpose or objective and will
only be utilized if the relevant
objective and criteria are
achieved

[194]

In line with the increase in the
annual financial allocation, new
courses should be introduced
targeting the new job market.

Recommendation

Funds should be utilized for the
relevant purposes.
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3.3 Delays in Projects or Capital Work

(a)

(b)

Audit Observation

In accordance with the decision
taken by the Cabinet of
Ministers on 29 June 1994 for
the acquisition of 5 acres of
land from the Meth Sevana land
for the Medical Faculty, a total
sum of Rs. 74 million had been
paid to the Western Provincial
Council such as a sum of Rs.
Rs. 24 million in 03 occasions
from 1998 to 2010 and a sum of
Rs. 50 million in the year under
review but the acquisition of the
land was not done until end of
the year under review.

On the occasion of the 50th
Anniversary of the University
of Sri Jayewardenepura,
approval of the Cabinet of
Ministers was granted on 13
February 2014 to carry out a
project worth Rs. 618 million
under the Urban Development
Project for the construction of
an international level
conference hall, gymnasium
and sports complex with a
swimming pool. Even though a
sum of Rs. 5,794,676 had been
spent on 22 June 2016 for
consultancy fees and
preparation of plans for the
auditorium relevant to this
project, the contracts had not
been awarded till the date of the
report by completion of the
initial procurement work.

| University of Sri Jayewardenepura
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Management Comment

-----

So far, payments have been
made for the acquired parts
only. Meetings are held
regularly to obtain the
remaining parts of land and
it is the intention of the
University to obtain the
same as soon as possible.

The reason for this delay is
not due to lack of land but

financial allocations by the
relevant Ministries.

[ 195 )
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Recommendation

Acquisition
expedited.

works  should be

Arrangements should be made to
complete the relevant tasks without
due to the not release of delay.
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3.4 Procurement Management

Management Comment Recommendation

Arrangements been
made to award the contract
by slicing according to the
allocations received by the
University in each year.

Audit Observation

A ———

As per the decision of the Cabinet of
Ministers in March 2016, a VAT free
cost estimate amounted to Rs. 49.14
million had been approved to expand
the administrative building of the
University and the entire construction
work was to be completed within 10
months. Due to the removal of several
items from the initial cost estimate
and prepare a separate estimate, the
estimate was increased to Rs. 150.4
million. Accordingly, the approved
initial cost estimate for the project
was increased by Rs. 91,619,877 or
by 186 percent and the project could
not be completed even by 30 June
2020.

Should be with the

procurement guidelines.

have complied

3.5 Human Resources Management

Audit Observation

Recommendation

The faculties of Engineering and Action should be taken to fill

Management Comment

As of end of the year under review,

the university had 1236 approved Technology are the newly created the vacancies.

recruilments are in

been

academic cadre, 1173 non-academic faculties and

cadre, and 142 administration and progress. Recruitment has

academic support service cadre and delayed due to non-availability of

2019

the actual cadre was 959, 1045, and applications from the qualified
142 respectively. As such, there were lecturers in certain specialized
277 posts in academic staff, 128 subject  areas.  Administrative
posts in non-academic and 37 posts officers are appointed by the

in academic support service cadre

were remained vacant.

University of Sri Jayewardenepura

University Grants Commission not

by the university.
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4.

4.1

Accountability and Good Governance

Annual Action Plan

Audit Observation

Management Comment

The Annual Action Plan and related No reply was made.

progress reports had not

submitted for audit.

4.2 Sustainable Development Goals

Audit Observation

All government agencies are
required to comply with the
United Nations Agenda for
Sustainable Development 2030,
but the University of Sri
Jayewardenepura did not have a
sufficient understanding of how
it should operate within its
scope of the year under review.
Accordingly, in accordance with
the United Nations Agenda for
2030, the University had not
identified  the  Sustainable
Development Goals, objectives
and milestones to be achieved
and the indicators to be achieved

on targets.

University of Sri Jayewardenepura

been

Management Comment

This been taken into

consideration in the preparation of

has

the plans of the University and it

is planned to include the
indicators relevant to the next five

year plan.
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Recommendation

The information required
for the audit should be
provided.

Recommendation

The Universities” goals should be
identified in relation to the United
Nations 2030 goals on sustainable

development
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Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements and Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

of the University of Sri Jayawardanapura for the year ended 31 December 2019 in terms of Section 12 of the
National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018.

1.2 Basis for Qualified Opinion

Replies

(@)

In terms of paragraph 76 (C) of the Sri Lanka Public
Sector Accounting Standard 01, the assets which are
expected to be realized within 12 months after the
reporting date should be classified as current assets.
Nevertheless, 42 short-term  deposits totalling
Rs.298,416,940 and nine savings accounts totalling
Rs.12,650,598 had been stated under the noncurrent

assets.

According to the cash flow statement in
Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting
Standard 02, cash comprises cash on
hand and demand deposits. Accordingly,
cash equivalents are short-term highly
liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to insignificant
risk of changes in value. Accordingly,
the University has invested money in the
fixed deposits with investment objectives
and in the investments, more
consideration was paid on the interest
rate given by the bank for the period of
investments than the maturity time.
Although money has been invested in
short-term (03 months) fix deposits
subject to the renewal of those deposits,
balance are maintained as an investment
until they utilized for the relevant
purposes.

Similarly when encashing the fixed
deposit prior to their maturity, a less
interest rate is paid thus resulting in a
loss. Therefore, these balances have been
stated under the investments without

stating under the cash and cash

equivalents.

(b)

Fixed assets worth Rs.2,236,807 purchased for 4

research projects had not be capitalized.

Action will be taken to correct this error
in the year 2020.

University of Sri Jayewardenepura
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(©)

Rs.70,608.

depreciation for the year had been

A sum of Rs.3,142,905 paid as annual renewal charges
for a library data system had been erroneously credited
to the Library Account and as such, the library book

value had been overstated by that amount and the

overstated by

Action will be taken to correct this error
in the year 2020

2. Report of the Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Reference to Laws, Rules/ = Description
Directives
(@) | Establishments
Code of the
Democratic Socialist
Republic  of  Sri
Lanka
Section 3.18 of | Without being taken measures Loan amount due from one of three
Chapter XXIV to recover the loans or made = persons referred to in the audit query has
satisfactory arrangements for been recovering since June 2019 and
recovery of loans, 03 officers . other two employees have resigned from
who had obtained distress loan = the university service. Action has been
totalling Rs.366,648 had been  taken to recover their dues from their
given no pay leave. provident fund.
(b)  Financial

Regulations of the
Democratic Socialist
Republic  of  Sri

Lanka

(i) | Financial Regulation
371 (2) and (5) and
Public
Circular No.03/2015
dated 14 July 2015.

Finance

(i) | Although the

issued should be settled

imprests

before 31st December of
the financial year in
which the imprests are
issued as per the relevant
regulation, 7 advances of
Rs. 388,850 issued by the
Finance

Division and

sundry advances

The settlement of advances was delayed
due to the staff strike staged in
September and October last year and
steps have already been taken to settle the

relevant advances.

University of Sri Jayewardenepura
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amounting to
Rs.4,653,014 issued by
Funds
during the year under

Faculties and

review had not been
settled even as at 31st
December 2019.

(i)

Although an officer who
obtained ad hoc imprests
should

advances

settle  those
immediately
after or within 10 days
from the completion of
the

relevant  purpose,

delays for a period
ranging from 21 days to
164 days had been caused
for the settlement of 84
advancers

Rs.4,232,885

totaling

The settlement of advances had been
delayed due to the strike staged by the
staff and steps have already been taken to
settle them. Further, steps have been
taken to settle some advances within the
due period after the completion of the

relevant purpose.

(iii)

Even though ad hoc sub-
imprests can be granted
up to the maximum limit
of Rs.100,000, advances
ranging from Rs.102,240
to Rs.277,880 had been
issued in excess of the
above limit to 7 officers

on 15 occasions.

Advances had been granted on the
approval of the Vice-Chancellor taking
into consideration the special events such
as sport activities involving a large
number of students, research activities,
filled tours and for the instances where it
is not possible to request advances from

time to time.

(i)

Financial Regulation
396

Action in terms of Financial
Regulations had not been taken
in connection with 161 cheques
valued at Rs.1,303,000 that had

been cancelled during the period

Action is being taken to credit it to the
revenue as per the recommendation of

the financial committee.

University of Sri Jayewardenepura
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from 23 January 2014 to 29 May
2019.

(iii) - Financial regulation . Action in terms of the Financial | Relevant cheques have been cancelled
396 (d) Regulations had not been taken = and credited to the revenue.
in respect of 25 cheques that had
not been presented for the
payment despite lapse of 06
months since their issuance
relating to 3 current accounts of
the University.
(c) | Establishments code
of the University
Grants Commission
And Higher
Education
Institutions.
Section 3.1 of Records had not been As this matter is applicable to entire
Chapter XX and | maintained on arrival, departure . University system, the University Grant
Section 1.6.1 of and leave of the staff and Commission should take a decision in
Chapter 10. instruction  given at the  thisregard and give instruction as to how
Committee on Public universities should act in this connection.
Enterprises to put in place a
method to confirm the arrival | This matter was also taken up for the
and departure of the staff had discussion at the previous years’
not been adhered to. Committee on Public Enterprises.
(d) | Public In excess of the approval fuel The payments for the additional fuel

Administration

Circular No.1/2015
dated 25 May 2015
and University
Grants Commission

Circular No.13/

limit stipulated in the Circular,
6,797 additional full liters worth
Rs.856,569 had been issued for
the 06 Deans of the University.

have been approved by the Council,

University Grants Commission
according to the circular. Further, the
vehicles owned by the University being
very old, request were made to remove

and replace them with new wvehicles.

University of Sri Jayewardenepura
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2015 dated 18 Nevertheless, approval thereon has not
September 2015. been granted.

(e) | Section 06.05.01 of A copy of the draft annual report | The annual report pertaining to the year
the Public had not been submitted to the 2017 has been handed over to Parliament
Enterprises Circular = Auditor General together with = and the annual report pertaining to the
No.PED/12 dated 02 the annual financial statements @ year 2018 has been handed over to the
June 2003. and steps had not been taken to  Ministry.

table the annual reports
pertaining to the years 2017 and
2018 in Parliament.

(f) | Procurement
Guidelines of the
Democratic Socialist
Republic  of  Sri
Lanka

(i) | Section 2.8.4 of the Although the Technical = The Technical Evaluation Committee
Government Evaluation Committee related = has been properly appointed in
Procurement to the departmental = accordance with the contract value.
Manual procurement committee on the

contract worth up to Rs,100
million should consist of at least
one member from line ministry
or a person external to procuring
entity who is conversant with
the relevant subject, it was
observed that all three members
of the Technical Evaluation
committee of the contract for
the expansion of  the
administrative building of the
University worth Rs. 415
million were the officials of the
University.

(i) | Guidelines  8.13.3  When the contingency = According to the decisions taken at the
and 8.13.4 of the | provision is exceeded 10 per progress reviewing meetings, the

cent of the estimated contract = approval of the Council has been
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Procurement amount, the contract variation
Guidelines. order should be submitted for
approval to the appropriate level
of authority. Nevertheless, no
formal approval had been
obtained for the variation
amount into R.10,557,915
which exceeded 25 per cent of
the contract of the expansion of
Administrative building.

obtained for the additional work done so
as not to exceed total value of the

contract and for the variation items.

To state that the resources of the University had not
been procured and utilized economically, efficiently
and effectively within the time frames and in
compliance with the applicable laws as per the
requirement of section 12 (h) of the National Audit Act,

except for the following observations.

(a)

According to the cabinet decision, an estimate of Rs.
49.14 million without VAT had been approved in
March 2016 for the expansion of Administrative
building of the University and entire constructions
should have been completed within 10 months. As
separate estimates had been prepared by eliminating
several items included in the original estimate, the
estimate had increased up to Rs.150.4 million.
Accordingly, the original estimate approved for the
project had been increased by Rs.91,619,877 or 186 per
cent and it had not been possible to complete this
protect even by 30th June 2020.

Action has been taken to a award the
contract by dividing it into several
sections according to the provisions

received by the University each year.

(b)

In order to implement a project with an estimate of
Rs.618 million under the Urban Development Plan for
the construction of an International level auditorium,
gymnasium and a sport complex with a swimming pool
to mark the 50th anniversary of the Sri
Jayawardenapura University, the relevant cabinet
approval has been granted on 13th February 2014.
Although Rs.5,794,676 had been spent on 22 June 2016

This delay had been caused due to not

providing necessary provision.
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for consultation and planning charges relevant to the
auditorium of this project, the contract cannot been
awarded by completing the preliminary procurement

activities even up to the date of this report.

()

The contract of renovation of Chemistry Laboratory
Building and the New Art Theatre had been cancelled
on 25th April 2012 as it had been abandoned by the
contractor. However, a sum of Rs.1,764,013 to be
recovered for undone work from the advances of
Rs.2,268,483 paid to the contractor had not been
recovered from the Performance Bond and it had not
been possible to recover that amount from the

contractor in the year and review as well.

Legal action has been taken.

Other Audit Observations

(a)

Although the University should introduce new courses
for new ideas and technological advancements and new
job markets, the University of Sri Jayewardenepura had
introduced only one and four new courses during the
last 10 years in the academic years 2011/2012 and
2015/2016 respectively.

New courses have been introduced
according to the resources and annual

provision available in the University.

(b) = Since 42 lecturers of the university had not returned to = Action has been taken to recover
work after proceeding aboard for their postgraduate Rs.24,964,784.54 in the year 2019.
studies, a bond value of Rs.113,714,235 was due on 30
June 2020 on breach of agreements.

(¢) | According to the World University Rankings, the = According to the Webometric system, it
University of Sri Jayewardenepura was ranked 2758t | appears that the University has achieved
position in 2012 but dropped to 2960th in the year under = a progress in world ranking.
review, after seven years. This was mainly due to the = Year (In the World Sri Lankan
fact that the research progress of the university had not Month of July) | Ranking Ranking

2015 4282 5
been improved although 60 per cent of the marks are 5616 30uE 6
given for research and abstracts in the university 2017 3365 6
rankings 2018 3071 6
2019 2960 6
2020 2362 5

(d) | The University had an approved academic staff of 1236, = Since the Faculties of Engineering and

anon - academic staff of 1173, an academic support and = Technology are newly established
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administrative staff of 142, and an actual cadre of 959,
1045and 142, respectively by the end of the year under

review. Accordingly, 277 posts of academic staff, 128

posts of non-academic staff and 37posts of academic

support staff remained vacant.

faculties, recruitments for their posts are
in progress at present. Recruitments for
certain specific subjects have been

delayed due to non-receipt of
applications from qualified lecturers for
such specific subjects. The appointment
of administrative officers is not made by
the University and is made by the

University Grants Commission.

(€)

No action had been taken to settle or credit to the
revenue the withholding amount of Rs.116,737, 289
continued to exist from the year 2013 in respect of 92

contract works.

Some of these contracts have been
completed and action will be taken to
release the withheld money upon their
termination. Measures will be taken to

credit the balance to the revenue.

()

Out of the distress loan balance due as at 31st December
2019, the total amount due for the period from 2 years
to 3 years was Rs. 241, 980 and the total amount due for
the period of 3 years and more was Rs. 1,1455,505.

A sum of Rs. 217, 680has been
recovered in the year 2020. In addition, a
case is pending in the Labor Court for
two persons and action will be taken to
recover the dues after the completion of
the relevant court proceeding. The
remaining loan amount will be recovered

in the payment of provident fund.

(9)

For taking over of a block of land containing 05 acres
in extent from the Methsevana land for the Faculty of
Medicine, although a sum of Rs.74 million comprising
Rs.24 million in 03 instances from the year 1998 to the
year 2010 and Rs.50 million in the year under review
had been paid to the Western Provincial Council
according to the Cabinet Decision taken on 29 June
1994, The acquisition of the relevant land had not been

completed by the end of the year under review.

So far payments have been made only for
the acquired portion of land. Meetings
are held regularly to obtain the remaining
portion of land and it is the intention of
the University to obtain the same to the

university as expeditiously as possible.

(h)

Out of rupees 32 million existed and 101 Rewards and
Scholarship Funds as at the end of the year under

review, the amount utilized for the relevant purposes

Scholarships and Rewards Funds have
been established with specific goal or

objective. They are utilized only if the

University of Sri Jayewardenepura
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stood at Rs.5 million or as low as 15.6 per cent and
Rs.20,385,955 existent under 30 of the above Funds
remained without being used for the relevant purposes.
Similarly, 36 research account worth Rs.40,074,900
remained unutilized for more than a period of 04 years
as 31st December of the year under review and 08
research accounts totaling Rs.4,699,502 and 15 special
funds totalling Rs.73,067,553 had not been utilized

during the year end review.

relevant objectives and criteria could be

achieved.

(i)

A clerk worked at the faculty of Humanities and Social
Sciences head defrauded visiting lecturer allowances of
Rs.3,763,349 by changing the computerized details and
without being taken any legal action against her,
arrangements had been made to recover a sum of
Rs.3,355,624 of that amount in 03 installments. The
balance of Rs.407,725 and the relevant financial cost
had not been recovered up to date and no action
whatsoever had been taken against those who are
responsible for authorizing, recommending and giving
lecturer

approval for the payment of visiting

allowances.

According to the recommendations of
the formal enquiry, her consent has been
obtained to recover the balance amount
from her University Provident Fund. The
amount due from the officer has been
shown as a balance in the financial
statements according to the financial
standards.

The relevant clerk has settled a sum of
Rs.3,355,624 of the relevant amount to
the university and due to crediting the
amount received from her to the Visiting
Lecturer Allowance Account, its
expenditure has not decreased. After
settling the instances of double payments
and unpaid allowances, the amount
recovered has been credited to the
relevant account and allocations have

been made for the allowances further

remain payable to the lecturers.

@)

Due to 11 defects found in the Salary Reporting System
of the University, the Council had decided to conduct a
system audit and thereby find out defect of the software
and introduce a new computer system in August,2016.
Nevertheless, the University had not taken steps to

introduce a new computer system even by 30 June 2020.

The defects of the computer software as
pointed out by the relevant audit reports

have already been rectified and

procurement activities have been

initiated to purchase an Enterprises

Resource Planning Software.
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(k)

Every public institution should act in accordance with
the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development adopted
by the United Nations. However, the University had
been adequately aware of the manner in which it should
deal with the activities coming under its purview in the
year under review. As such, no action had been taken to
identify the sustainable development goals and targets,
milestones in reaching those targets, and the indicators
to measure the achievement of the targets as per the
Agenda 2030 for Sustainable Development of the
United Nations.

This matter has been taken into account
in the preparation of plans of the
University and plans have been drawn to
take steps whilst including relevant

indicators in the future five years plan.

Senior Professor Sudantha Liyanage

The Vice-chancellor
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